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One. A Letter to Shareholders
Dear Shareholders, Ladies and Gentlemen:
In the year 2004, Mediatek Inc. hit the NT$40 billion mark in terms of the total annual
turnover—an astonishing all-time high which solidly secured its brilliant title of Taiwan’s No. 1 IC
design giant. Meanwhile, it ranked at the top among Taiwan’s TSE/GTSM Listed Companies in
terms of unit profitability per share. Looking ahead, in the IC design services giants of the entire
world, 2004, the FSA (Fabless Semiconductor Association, known as the OEM Society for IC
design services throughout the world) again named Mediatek among the world’s top ten, as the only
Taiwan based heavyweight named for the honors. In the aspects of product R&D and optical
storage, Mediatek has successfully accomplished the pre-production development for HD DVD.
In the aspect of digital consumers, Mediatek successfully launched DVD Recorder backend single
chips wherewith Mediatek garnered the extraordinary honor of being awarded by the Science-based
Industrial Park Administration for the Innovative Product Award for the 7th straight year in a row.
In Wireless products, our wireless communications products began mass production in 2004 and
well lived up to the monthly shipment target of one million sets before the year closed. That
marks a very significant landmark for Mediatek and sets two very remarkable technological pillars:
the establishment of technological competence of RF and communications software development.
Thanks to such remarkable establishment, Mediatek will take advantage to broaden its horizons into
other consumer electronic areas in the digital consumer electronic era which lies ahead.
In 2004, Mediatek netted NT$ 40.054 billion in sales turnover, growing by 5.23% over the
preceding year, which yielded NT$14.323 billion net earnings after tax, dropping by 13.31% when
compared to the preceding year. The EPS came to NT$ 18.73 and shareholders’ equity return rate
36.41%. In 2004, the net profit attained by Mediatek before tax came to NT$ 14.341 billion,
NT$1.74 billion below the net profit before tax forecast at NT$ 16.081 billion, merely 89% of the
target. The major reasons: I. During the first half of the year, Mediatek underwent inadequate
productivity of wafers which led to mounting OEM/ODM costs. As a countermeasure, Mediatek
already successfully obtained backup wafer productivity and well minimized the impact upon such
aspect. II. The prices of optical storage and DVD players slumped. III. The local currency value
was continually appreciating against the greenback during Quarter Four. IV. Amidst the
transitional phase of products old and new, optical storage and high-end consumer products held
quite a high market share and grew at somewhat slower pace. On the other hand, the wireless
communications cell phones were gradually on the rise in Quarter Four but still could make only
limited contribution to the year-round sales turnover. Just because of the aforementioned causes,
Mediatek showed a minor drop in profit in 2004 when compared with the preceding year.
Nevertheless, Mediatek ranked virtually at the top among all Taiwan’s TSE/GTSM Listed
Companies in terms of profitability per share.
Over the past year, Mediatek was challenged by cutthroat competition throughout the world.
Thanks to great teamwork by the entire staff and valuable support by our shareholders, we still
marched forward with brilliant achievements. In the wake of our prolonged development efforts,
our cell phone chips started up robust shipments in Quarter Four, 2004 and will be continually
gaining handsome turnover in 2005. Looking ahead toward the future, with our long accumulated
key and core technology, our dashing managerial team, and with our well designed R&D layout, we
will be incessantly launching new products of added competitive edge to bring up new heights in
sales performance in appreciation of shareholders and staff. Meanwhile, in international vision,
we will integrate global logistic resources to virtually take the lead in the entire industry. At last
but not least, we take great pleasure in extending our heartfelt appreciation once more to our
shareholders for the valuable and consistent support and advice.
Chairman: Ming-Kai Tsai
President: Jyh-Jer Cho
-1-
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Two. Company Profile
1.Company facts in brief:
As officially approved, Mediatek was incorporated at Hsinchu Science-based Industrial Park on
May 28, 1997. Since then, it has been specialized in the R&D, production, manufacture and
marketing of Multimedia IC, computer peripherals oriented integrated circuits (ICs), high-end
consumer-oriented ICs and other ICs of extraordinary application. Meanwhile, it has rendered
design, test runs, maintenance and repair and technological consultation services for software &
hardware of the aforementioned products as well as import and export trade for the
aforementioned products.
1.1 Highlights of Mediatek milestones:
May 1997
Jul 1998
Oct 1998
May 1999
Oct 1999
Jul 2000
Sep 2000
Jul 2001
Oct 2001
Dec 2001
Apr 2002
May 2002
Sep 2002
Jul 2003
Oct 2003
Dec 2003
Jan 2004
Aug 2004
Dec 2004

Incorporation of Mediatek
Launch of the 48X CD-ROM Servo chip set, the world’s fastest chip set
CD-ROM Digital Data /Servo Processor product received the “Innovative
Product Award of the Hsinchu Science-based Industrial Park 1998”
Launch of the 10X DVD-ROM chip sets
The 12X DVD-ROM chipset was crowned the “Innovative Product Award of
the Science-based Industrial Park 1999”
Launch of the 12X CD-RW chip set
The 12/8/40X CD-R/RW chipset received the “Innovative Product Award of the
Science-based Industrial Park 2000”
Listing on the Taiwan Stock Exchange (TAIEX), Stock Code 2454
Crowned with the “Industrial Technology Development Award IX” by the
Ministry of Economic Affairs in recognition of extraordinary achievements.
The highly integrated DVD-Player chipset received the “Innovative Product
Award of the Science-based Industrial Park 2001”
Rolled out COMBI chipsets
Launched the 48X CD-RW chipsets
Crowned “Innovative Product Award of the Science-based Industrial Park 2002”
for COMBI CD-ROM chipsets).
Rolled out DVD-Dual chipsets
National Quality Award in Session XV accorded by the Executive Yuan (the
Cabinet)
Crowned “Innovative Product Award of the Science-based Industrial Park
2003” (for 8X DVD-Dual Rewritable chipsets)
Launched GSM cell phone chipsets
Launched GSM/GPRS Multimedia Cell Phone Chipsets
Crowned “Innovative Product Award of the Science-based Industrial Park 2004”
(for DVD-Recorder Backend single chipsets).

-2-
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2.Company Structure
2.1 Organizational System
December 31, 2004

Shareholders’ Meeting
Supervisors
Board of Directors
Chairman and President

Optical
Storage
BU

Digital
Consumer
BU

Audit

Wireless
Communications
BU

Finance
Division

2.2 Business operations of key departments:
Departments

Business operations

Optical Storage BU..

R&D and promotion of chips in optical storage area

Digital Consumer
...
BU

R&D and promotion of consumer-oriented chips.

Wireless
Communications BU

R&D and promotion of wireless communications oriented chips.

Finance Division

Audit

Finance, accounting, equity, general affairs, personnel, plant
affairs, safety & health affairs, R&D for trial production,
production arrangement in management, import & export.
Internal audit and operating procedure management

-3-
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2.3 Directors and Supervisors:
2.3.1 Particulars of Directors and Supervisors
Title

Chairman

Director

Name

Ming-Kai Tsai

Jyh-Jer Cho

Date when
Date when Term elected for
Elected
(Year)
the first
(Appointed)
time

Shareholding
When Elected
Shares

%

2003.05.16 3 years 1997.05.21 19,504,447 4.24%

2003.05.16 3 years 1997.05.21 14,407,893 3.13%

April 15, 2005/Expressed in shares
Current Shareholding
Shares

31,306,111

23,348,540

%

Shareholding of Shareholding
Spouse and
by Nominee
Underage Children Arrangement
Shares

%

4.07% 42,250,797 5.49%

3.03% 8,866,636

1.15%

Shares

-

-

Education & Experience

Current Positions with Mediatek or Other
Companies

%

-

-

(*1)

MS in Electrical Engineering,
University of Cincinnati, USA

President, Mediatek

President of the 2nd Business Group,
UMC

Chairman of ALi Corporation and Pix Art
Imaging Inc.

MS in Electronic Engineering,
National Chiao Tung University

General manager of Mediatek

Director or Chairman of Mediatek’s subsidiaries

Other heads, Director or
Supervisor served by
spouse or kin within
Second Degree
Relationship
Title Name Relation

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

N/A (*2)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Professor, National Taiwan University, Dept. of
Ph.D. in Business Management, MIT, International Business Administration
USA
Director, Trend Technology & Education
Foundation

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Manager, Multi-media R&D Team,
UMC

Director or General manager of Mediatek’s
subsidiaries
Director of ALi Corporation’s subsidiaries

MS in Electronic Engineering,
National Chiao Tung University
Director

Ding-jen Liu(*2)

2003.05.16 3 years 1997.05.21 11,012,217 2.39%

18,029,261

2.34% 5,182,746

(*3)

0.67%

-

-

(*4)

Executive Deputy General manager,
Mediatek

National Taiwan
University
Director

Statutory
representative:
Ming-Je Tang

2003.05.16 3 years 2002.06.03

1,400

0.00%

2,232

0.00%

-

-

-

-

2003.05.16 3 years 2002.06.03

1,400

0.00%

2,232

0.00%

-

-

-

-

National Chiao
Tung University
Director

Supervisor

Statutory
representative:
Chung-yu Wu
United
Microelectronics
Corporation
Statutory
representative:
Grace Li

Statutory
representative:
Paul Wang

13.13
2003.05.16 3 years 2000.06.09 60,456,040
%

67,387,520

8.76%

-

-

-

-

MS in Accounting, University of
Missouri, USA
Senior Department Manager,
Accounting Division, UMC

-

Ph.D. in Physics, Carnegie-Mellon,
USA
Senior Consultant of IBM, USA

2003.05.16 3 years 2000.06.09

581,260

0.13%

292,232

0.04%

-

-

-

Statutory
representative:
Chung-lang Liu

2003.05.16 3 years 2003.05.16

1,000

0.00%

1,594

0.00%

-

-

-

-

Ph. D., on Electric Engineering, MIT,
USA
President, National Tsing Hua
University

*1: Including 7,085,817 shares as the trusted shares retained for the power to resolve for applicant, shareholding 0.92%.
*2: Mr. Ding-jen Liu already resigned from the post of Director of Mediatek on January 1, 2005. The information of his directorship were as of December 31, 2004.
*3: Including 4,723,878 shares as the trusted shares retained for the power to resolve for applicant, shareholding 0.61%.
*4: Including 4,723,878 shares as the trusted shares retained for the power to resolve for applicant, shareholding 0.61%.
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Dean, College of Computer & Information
Science, National Chiao Tung University

Deputy Director of Auditing Division, UMC

Chairman, Pacific Venture Group, SerComm
Corp.,
Director, Lien Yung Technology, Tung Yung
Technology, Hung Yu Technology, Lien Chang
Technology, Hsin Chang Electronics, Mitac
Supervisor, Les Enfants, TECO

National Tsing Hua
University
Supervisor

Ph.D. in Electronics Engineering
Graduate School, National Chiao
Tung University

Director, Springsoft Inc.

Century Venture
Capital Corp.
Supervisor

Design Manager, Multi-media R&D
Team, UMC

Independent director, Macronix International Co.,
Ltd., Mao Ta Electronic Co., Ltd.
Director, Cmsc Inc.
Chairman, Dramexchange Technology Inc.

2.3.2 Key Shareholders of corporate shareholders:
April 15, 2005

Names of corporate
shareholders

Names of shareholders holding over 10% of the total shares or
shareholders of the top ten shareholding

United Microelectronics
Corporation

The UMC GGR earmarked account consigned by Citibank; Hsun
Chieh Investment Corporation Ltd., Xilinx Holding III Ltd., Cayman
Islands, Silicon Integrated Systems Corp.
TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd., Administration Committee of
Yao Hua Glass Co., Ltd., Singaporean Government Fund Earmarked
Account Consigned by CitiBank, Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd., Earmarked
Account of Fidelity Overseas Fund Consigned by Morgan Express,
Alliance Semiconductor (S.A.) (PTY) Ltd.

Century Venture Capital
Corp.

Chilease Co., Ltd.

Key Shareholders of corporate shareholders as representatives of corporate shareholders
April 15, 2005

The UMC GGR earmarked account consigned by
Citibank
Hsun Chieh Investment Corporation Ltd.,

Names of shareholders holding over 10% of
the total shares or shareholders of the top
ten shareholding
N/A because it is not a company limited by
shares
United Microelectronics Corporation.

Xilinx Holding III Ltd., Cayman Islands

Xilinx Corp.

Silicon Integrated Systems Corp.

United Microelectronics Corporation.

TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd.

Data unavailable.

Names of corporate shareholders

because it is not a company limited by
Administration Committee of Yao Hua Glass Co., Ltd. N/A
shares.
Singaporean Government Fund Earmarked Account
N/A because it is not a company limited by
Consigned by CitiBank
shares.
Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd.

Data unavailable.

Earmarked Account of Fidelity Overseas Fund
Consigned by Morgan Express

N/A because it is not a company limited by
shares.

Alliance Semiconductor (S.A.) (PTY) Ltd.

Alliance Semiconductor (USA) Corporation

Chilease Co., Ltd.

Chung Kuan Investment Co., Ltd.
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2.3.3 Remuneration to Directors and Supervisors

Position
title

Name

Chairman

Ming-Kai Tsai

Director

Jyh-Jer Cho

Director

(Ding-jen Liu)

Director

National Taiwan University
Statutory representative:
Ming-Je Tang

Director

National Chiao Tung University
Statutory representative:
Chung-yu Wu

Supervisor

United Microelectronics
Corporation
Statutory representative: Grace
Li

Supervisor

Century Venture Capital Corp.
Statutory representative: Paul
Wang

Supervisor

National Tsing Hua University
Statutory representative:
Chung-lang Liu

Honorarium
and
remuneration
(Thousand New
Ta i w a n
Dollars)

Remuneration to
directors and
supervisors (*1,
Thousand New
Ta i w a n D o l l a r s )

-

42,406

Amount of bonus to employees as earnings allocated
Cash bonus
(Thousand New
Ta i w a n D o l l a r s )

No. of
shares

Stock bonus
Market price per
share (*2, NT$)

Amount
(NT$)

11 ,5 0 0

210,000

255.87

53,733

To t a l a m o u n t o f
the three
preceding items
(Thousand New
Ta i w a n D o l l a r s )

% of the total
amount to the net
profit after tax,
2004

Number of
warrants for
employees
obtained

107,639

0.65

-

Other
remuneration
(Thousand New
Ta i w a n D o l l a r s )

381

*1: Mr. Yao-chung Lu was discharged from supervisor capacity in May 2003. His remuneration was calculated pro rata to the number of days as he actually served as the supervisor.
He received NT$2,056,000 in 2004.
*2: The price per share based on the closing price averaged in December 2003 to calculate the cash dividend allocated in 2004 with retrospective adjustment for cash dividend, stock
dividend and bonus to employees allocated in 2004.
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2.3.4 Professional Expertise Background of Directors and Supervisors and their
Independency:
Work experience in
Conditions
Compliance with Independence
Name

commerce, law, finance or
business operation for 5 years
or longer

Ming-Kai Tsai
Jyh-Jer Cho

9
9

Ding-jen Liu

9

9

9

9

9

National Taiwan
University
Statutory
representative:
Ming-Je Tang
National Chiao Tung
University
Statutory
representative:
Chung-yu Wu
United
Microelectronics
Corporation
Statutory
representative:
Grace Li
Century Venture
Capital Corp.
Statutory
representative: Paul
Wang
National Tsing Hua
University
Statutory
representative:
Chung-lang Liu

Remarks

Requirements(Note)

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

9
9

9
9

9
9

9
9

9
9

9

9

9

9

9 January 1, 2005

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

Resigning on

9

*:Compliance with any of the following requirements by each individual director or supervisor is

indicated by a“9”in the corresponding space:
(1) Not an employee of Mediatek (the Company) or a director, supervisor or employee of an affiliated company, but
excepting an independent director, independent supervisor of the parent company or subsidiaries.
(2) Not an individual shareholder holding, directly or indirectly, 1% or more of the total shares issued by the
Company or one of the top ten individual shareholders.
(3) Not a spouse or second-degree or closer direct relative of the persons mentioned in the previous two items.
(4) Not a director, supervisor or employee of the institutional shareholder holding, directly or indirectly, 5% or more
of the total stocks issued by the Company or a director, supervisor or employee of one of the top five institutional
shareholders.
(5) Not a director, supervisor, manager of or a shareholder holding 5% or more of the total stocks issued by any
particular company or institution engaged in financial or business dealings with the Company.
(6) Not a professional, the owner, partner, director, supervisor, manager or the spouse of the above persons of a
solely-owned business, partnership, company or institution that has provided financial, business or legal services
and consultation to the Company or its affiliated companies within the past year.
(7) Not an institutional body or a representative as stipulated in Article 27 of the Company Law.
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2.4 Key managerial officers
2.4.1 Particulars of key managerial officers:
April 15, 2005/Expressed in number of shares
No. of shares held
Position title

Name

Hired on

No. of shares held by
spouse, minor children

No. of shares held in
others’ names

Academic & professional highlights

No. of
Shareholding No. of shares Shareholding
No. of
Shareholding
shares held
ratio
held
ratio
shares held
ratio
Chairman &
President

General
manager

Ming-Kai Tsai 1997.05.21 31,306,111

Jyh-Jer Cho

1997.05.21

Executive
Ching-chiang
2002.02.05
Deputy General
Hsien
manager

Deputy General
manager

Wen-chen
Huang

Deputy General Chih-chiang
manager
Hsu

Mingto Yu

3,375,982

3.03%

0.44%

42,250,797

8,866,636

5.49%

1.15%

-

-

-

-

MS in Electronic Engineering, National
Chiao Tung University

(*1)

1,674,031

MS in Electronic Engineering,, National
Taiwan University

0.22%

-

-

Engineer, R&D Multimedia Team, UMC

668,171

0.09%

-

-

-

-

2004.02.12

29,809

0.00%

-

-

-

-

Director or General Manager
of Mediatek's subsidiaries
Director of ALi Corporation’s
subsidiaries
Director or Chairman of
Mediatek's subsidiaries

Title

Name

Relation

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Director or Chairman of ALi
Corporation’s subsidiaries

Department of Electronic Engineering, Feng
Director or Chairman of
Chia University
Mediatek’s subsidiaries
Electronics Dept. Manager, Winbond
MS in Electronic Engineering, University of
California, St. Barbara
Nil
Software Manager, Conexant System, Inc.

2001.08.31

44,800

361,584

0.01%

0.05%

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

*1: Including 7,085,817 shares as the trusted shares retained for the power to resolve for applicant, shareholding 0.92%
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Director or Chairman of
MS in Electrical Engineering, University of
Mediatek's subsidiaries
Cincinnati, USA
Chairman of ALi Corporation
President of the 2nd Business Group, UMC
and Pix Art Imaging Inc.

Manager, Multi-media R&D Team, UMC

2003.06.01

Deputy General
Hsi-yuan Hsu 2005.03.25
manager

Senior Head of
Financial
Division (CFO)
and spokesman

23,348,540

4.07%

Current Positions with Other
Companies

Managers served by spouse
or kin within Second Degree
Relationship

MS, Electronics, National Chiao Tung
University
Executive Vice President, Yang Chih
Technology Co., Ltd.

Integral Communications
(USA) Corporation,
Representative of Taiwan
Branch

MBA, University of Pennsylvania USA,
Wharton School

Director or Supervisor of
Mediatek’s subsidiaries

Financial Manager, Taiwan Semiconductor Supervisor or Chairman of ALi
Corporation’s subsidiaries
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

2.4.2 Remuneration to General manager and Deputy General managers
December 31, 2004

Po sition title

Name

General manager
Executive Deputy
General manager
Deputy General
manager
Deputy General
manager

Jyh-Jer Cho
Ching-chiang
Hsien
Wen-chen
Huang
Chih-chiang
Hsu

A moun t of earn ing s allo cated as bonu s to
Bonus,
e mp lo yee s
e x trao rd inary
S a l ar y
Sto ck bonu s
( Thousand d isbu rs e me n t Cash bonu s
N ew Ta iw an
( Thousand
( Thousand
Sto cks
M a r k e t p r ice
A moun t
Do llars)
N ew Ta iw an N ew Ta iw an (Nu mb er
p er shar e
(N T$)
Do llars)
Do llars)
of sh ares)
(*N T$)

5,970

1,355

25,900

330,000

255.87

84,437

Total amount of % of the
the three
total amount
preceding items to the net
(Thousand New profit after
Taiwan Dollars) tax, 2003

117,662

0.71

Number of
warrants
O th er
for
employees r e mun er a tion
obtained

-

-

*:The price per share based on the closing price averaged in December 2003 to calculate the cash dividend allocated in 2004 with retrospective adjustment for cash dividend, stock
dividend and bonus to employees allocated in 2004.

2.4.3 Names of managerial officers allocated with bonus to employees and status of allocation:
December 31, 2004
Stock bonus

Position title

Name

Chairman & President
General manager
Executive Deputy General manager
Deputy General manager

Ming-Kai Tsai
Jyh-Jer Cho
Ching-chiang Hsien
Wen-chen Huang

Deputy General manager

Chih-chiang Hsu

Treasurer and spokesman

Mingto Yu

Cash bonus

Total (Thousand % of the total amount to
New Taiwan
the net profit after tax,
Stocks (Number of shares) Market price (NT$) Amount (NT$) Amount (NT$)
Dollars)
2003

615,000

255.87

157,360

41,400

198,760

1.20

*: The price per share based on the closing price averaged in December 2003 to calculate the cash dividend allocated in 2004 with retrospective adjustment for cash dividend, stock
dividend and bonus to employees allocated in 2004.
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2.5 Change in share transfer and pledged shareholding of directors and supervisors, managerial
officers and shareholders holding over 10% of the total shares:

Position title

Name

Chairman & President Ming-Kai Tsai
Director & General
Jyh-Jer Cho
manager
Director
(Ding-jen Liu)(*1)
National Taiwan
Director
University
National Chiao Tung
Director
University
United
Supervisor
Microelectronics
Corporation (UMC)
Yi Hua Venture Capital
Supervisor
Investment Co., Ltd.
National Tsing Hua
Supervisor
University
Executive Deputy
Ching-chiang Hsien
General manager
Deputy General
Wen-chen Huang
manager
Deputy General
Chih-chiang Hsu (*2)
manager
Deputy General
Hsi-yuan Hsu(*3)
manager
Treasurer and
Mingto Yu
spokesman

Expressed in number of shares
2004
Jan 1~Apr 15, 2005
Increase/decrease Increase/decrease Increase/decrease Increase/decrease
of shares held of shares pledged of shares held of shares pledged
4,775,108
3,497,885

-

-

-

(1,961,109)

-

N /A

N /A

342

-

-

-

342

-

-

-

6,041,366

-

(10,040,000)

-

(29,169)

-

(70,000)

-

244

-

-

-

569,940

-

(50,000)

-

123,324

-

(54,000)

-

26,809

-

(7,000)

-

N /A

N /A

-

-

118,915

-

-

-

*1: Resigning from the post of Mediatek’s director on January 1, 2005. The increase/decrease of shareholding held and pledged
during Year 2004 covers the period starting from January 1, 2004 till December 31, 2004.
*2: Newly appointed as Mediatek’s Deputy General Manager on February 12, 2004. The increase/decrease of shareholding held
and pledged during Year 2004 covers the period starting from February 12, 2004 till December 31, 2004.
*3: Newly appointed as Mediatek’s Deputy General Manager on March 25, 2005. , The increase/decrease of shareholding held
and pledged during Year 2005 covers the period starting from March 25, 2005 till April 15, 2004.
*4: Shareholding handed over to trust is deemed as shareholder transfer.

2.6 Mediatek’s consolidated long-term investment shareholding ratio:
Expressed in number of shares; % / As of December 31, 2004

Long-term investment

MediaTek Investment Co.

Investment with enterprises under
Consolidated investment
direct or indirect control by
Mediatek’s investment (1)
directors and supervisors,
(1)+(2)
managerial officers (2)
Shareholding
Shareholding
Shareholding
No. of shares
No. of shares
No. of shares
ratio
ratio
ratio
185,000,000

100.00%

0

0.00%

Hsu-Ta Investment Ltd.

N/A

100.00%

N/A

0.00%

N/A

100.00%

Hsu-Kang Investment Ltd.

N/A

100.00%

N/A

0.00%

N/A

100.00%

Hsu-Chia Investment Ltd.

N/A

100.00%

N/A

0.00%

N/A

100.00%

9,900,000

99.00%

0

0.00%

9,900,000

99.00%

56,956,200

31.28%

0

0.00%

56,956,200

31.28%

1,500,000

5.66%

0

0.00%

1,500,000

5.66%

Wiseali Technology Inc.
ALi Corporation
Yuantonix,Inc.
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185,000,000

100.00%

3 Capital and shares:
3.1 Capital sources:
Expressed in thousand shares;Thousand New Taiwan Dollars/As of April 15, 2005
Authorized capital
Month, Issuing
year
price

No. of
shares

Amount

Paid-in capital
No. of
shares

Amount

Remarks
Capital sources

Capital provided
with property
other than cash

Others

May
1997

10

20,000

200,000

20,000

200,000

Founding capital

Technology &
patents 30,000

1997.05.28 Science-based
Industrial Park Administration
(86)-Yuan-Shang-Tze 10164

Sep
1997

10

80,000

800,000

55,000

550,000

Capital augment in
cash
350,000

-

1997.09.26
Science-based
Industrial Park Administration
(86)-Yuan-Shang-Tze 19782

62,916

Earnings converted
629,162 into capital augment
79,162

-

1998.08.05
Science-based
Industrial Park Administration
(87)-Yuan-Shang-Tze 19355

-

88.08.21Science-based
Industrial Park Administration
(88)-Yuan-Shang-Tze 018036

-

2000.09.15Science-based
Industrial Park Administration
(89)-Yuan-Shang-Tze 020099

Aug
1998

10

80,000

800,000

Aug
1999

10

Earnings converted
220,000 2,200,000 116,774 1,167,743 into capital augment
538,581

Sep
2000

10

Earnings converted
220,000 2,200,000 216,866 2,168,666 into capital augment
1,000,923

Sep
2001

10

Earnings converted
570,000 5,700,000 316,006 3,160,056 into capital augment
991,390

-

Sep
2002

10

Earnings converted
570,000 5,700,000 460,465 4,604,654 into capital augment
1,444,597

-

Aug
2003

10

Earnings converted
896,000 8,960,000 641,547 6,415,473 into capital augment
1,810,819

-

Jul
2004

10

Earnings converted
896,000 8,960,000 772,773 7,727,729 into capital augment
1,312,256

-

Oct
2004

10

896,000 8,960,000 769,336 7,693,359

Capital reduction for
treasury stocks
(34,370)

-

2001.07.11Securities and
Futures
Commission-(90)-Tai-Tsai-Ch
eng-(I)-144160
2002.08.01Letter of Securities
and Futures Commission
Tai-Tsai-Cheng-I-Tze
0910142914
2003.06.20 Letter of
Securities and Futures
Commission
Tai-Tsai-Cheng-I-Tze
0920127376
2004.07.08 Securities and
Futures Bureau Letter
Chi-I-Tze 0930130229
2004.10.15Science-based
Industrial Park Administration
Yuan-Shang-Tze-0930029178

3.2 Capital and shares:
Expressed in number of shares/As of April 15, 2005

Category of
shares
Common
shares

Authorized shares
Outstanding shares

Unissued shares

Total

769,335,831

126,664,169

896,000,000
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Remarks
As listed stocks

3.3 Shareholder composition:
April 15, 2005

Quantity

Shareholder
Government
structure
entities

No. of shareholder
accounts
Shareholding by
number
Shareholding by %

Financial
institutions
1

20

692,000

32,952,350

0.09%

4.28%

Other judicial
persons
247

Individuals

Foreign entities
and
corporations

Total

26,046

562

26,876

137,132,747 321,963,885

276,588,849

769,335,831

35.95%

100.00%

17.83%

41.85%

3.4 Status of shareholding scattering:
April 15, 2005

Shareholding grade

No. of shareholder
accounts

No. of shares held

Shareholding ratio

1~999

6,570

1,903,347

0.25%

1,000~5,000

15,430

30,794,098

4.00%

5,001~10,000

1,974

14,235,738

1.85%

10,001~15,000

741

9,060,244

1.18%

15,001~20,000

358

6,283,168

0.82%

20,001~30,000

435

10,800,248

1.40%

30,001~50,000

404

15,579,626

2.02%

50,001~100,000

357

25,560,837

3.32%

100,001~200,000

232

33,825,551

4.40%

200,001~400,000

146

40,081,201

5.21%

400,001~600,000

62

30,564,388

3.97%

600,001~800,000

36

24,573,222

3.19%

800,001~1,000,000

25

21,966,542

2.86%

106

504,107,621

65.53%

26,876

769,335,831

100.00%

1,000,001 up
Total
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3.5 Roster of key shareholders:
April 15, 2005
Shares
Shareholding in number
Names of Major Shareholders
United Microelectronics Corporation (UMC)
Tsui-hsing Lee
Ming-Kai Tsai
Jyh-Jer Cho
Earmarked investment account of the emerging markets consigned
by Morgan Stanley & Express of the United States
(Ding-jen Liu) (*)
Earmarked investment account of American Growth Fund consigned
by the Central Trust of China
Earmarked investment account of the World Growth Fund & Gain
Fund Corporation consigned by Morgan Stanley & Express of the
United States
Singaporean Government Fund Earmarked Account Consigned by
CitiBank
Charles Wei

Shareholding by %

67,387,520
39,487,654
31,306,111
23,348,540

8.76%
5.13%
4.07%
3.03%

14,716,673

1.91%

13,305,383

1.73%

12,416,759

1.61%

12,059,969

1.57%

11,460,540

1.49%

9,230,553

1.20%

*:Excluding 4,723,878 shares trusted, retained with the resolving power, 0.61% in shareholding ratio.

3.6 Market price per share, net worth, earnings, dividend and relevant data over the past two
years:
Expressed in New Taiwan Dollars and shares
Year
Descriptions
Highest
Low e s t
Av erag e
Net value per
Before Distribution
share
A f t e r D i s tr ib u t io n
Number of shares in weighted
average
Before
Retroaction
EPS
Adjustment
EPS
Af ter
Retroaction
Adju stme n t
Cash dividend
Stock dividend
Gratuitous Stocks allocated
Dividend per
allocation
with capital
share
reserve
Outstanding dividend
accumulated
P/E ratio(*1)
Analysis on
Dividend
yield ratio (*2)
investment return
Cash dividend yield ratio(*3)
Market price per
share

Year 2003
(Allocated in 2004)
434.0
252.0
324.9
56.17
46.63

Year 2004
2005 (as of April 30,
2005) (*4)
(Allocated in 2005)
396.0
253.5
187.0
171.0
276.3
215.4
55.42
58.95
*
*

636,424,600

764,869,784

763,286,131

25.96

18.73

3.72

21.55

*

**

8.5457
1.809695

*
*

**
**

-

*

**

-

-

**

12.52
38.02
2.6%

14.75
*
*

**
**
**

*: Subject to the final decision to be resolved in the shareholders＇meeting.
**: N/A
*1: P/E ratio=Closing price per share averaged in the year/EPS
*2: Dividend yield ratio =Closing price per share averaged in the year/Cash dividend per share
*3: Cash dividend yield ratio=Cash dividend per share/Closing price per share averaged in the year
*4: The net worth per share, EPS refer to the updates of the latest quarter up to the Yearbook publication date duly audited by the
CPA. All other data refers to the update of the year as of the Yearbook publication date.
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3.7 The Mediatek dividend policies and the policy enforcement:
3.7.1 The Mediatek dividend policies set forth in its Articles of Incorporation: (Having been
officially resolved in the board of directors meeting but not yet in the shareholders’
meeting):
The Company’s bonus to employees may be allocated either in cash or in stocks,
provided, that the ratio of cash bonus to shareholders shall not exceed 10% of the total
amount of bonus to shareholders. Mediatek is currently in the growing phase and
the dividend shall be duly allocated in line with the current and future investment
environments, demand for capital, competition status at home and throughout the
world, factors of capital budgets, with consideration of interests for shareholders,
balanced dividend and long-term financial planning. For the allocation, the board of
directors shall propose the right ratio and submit the proposed ratio to the
shareholders’ meeting for final decision.
3.7.2 Dividend allocation proposed in the current shareholders’ meeting (Having been
officially resolved in the board of directors meeting but not yet in the shareholders’
meeting):
As proposed by the board of directors, Mediatek will allocate dividends for year 2004
in the following manner:
A.Common share dividend: NT$769,335,830 in total, with one hundred shares to be
allocated for every thousand shares. Allocation will be made on a base day which
the board of directors will fix after the allocation passes the resolution in the
shareholders’ meeting and is reported to and approved by the competent authority.
B.Common share cash dividend: NT$7,693,358,310 in total. Allocation will be
made on a base day which the board of directors will fix after the allocation passes
the resolution in the shareholders’ meeting.
3.8 The impact upon the 2005 business performance and EPS of the gratuitous share allocation
proposed in the present shareholders’ meeting: N/A.
3.9 Bonus to employees and remuneration to directors and supervisors:
3.9.1 Information regarding bonus to employees and remuneration to directors and
supervisors as set forth in Mediatek’s Articles of Incorporation:
Out of the earnings made by the Company as shown through the annual account
closing, the sum to pay tax and make good the previous loss, if any, shall be first
withheld, then 10% as legal reserve and then the special reserve to be duly
appropriated according to law or as required by the competent authority. The
remuneration to directors and supervisors shall be 0.5% maximum of the balance
after deducting of the four aforementioned items. The remuneration to directors and
supervisors shall be paid in cash. The final balance plus the unappropriated retained
earnings accumulated previously, if any, shall be the bonus to employees and bonus
to shareholders and shall be, except the part which is retained to be allocated only in
subsequent year(s) in response to decision resolved, allocated by the principle that
the bonus to employees shall not be below the minimum of 10% of the aggregate of
the bonus to employees and bonus to shareholders and shall not exceed the maximum
of 15% of the bonus to employees and bonus to shareholders.
The bonus to
employees may be allocated either in cash or in stocks and shall be allocated to the
targets including employees of Mediatek’s affiliates who meet the specified
requirements. The board of directors is authorized with full powers to resolve such
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specified requirements.
3.9.2 Information regarding the amounts proposed by the board of directors regarding the
bonus to employees and remuneration to directors and supervisors and the calculation
of EPS:
The ratios of 2004 earnings officially resolved in the board of directors meeting held
on April 29, 2005 have so far not yet been resolved by the shareholders’ meeting.
As proposed in the board of directors, the cash bonus, stock bonus to employees and
the remuneration to directors and supervisors amount to NT$868,139,301,
NT$177,811,660 and NT$36,675,329 respectively.
The stock bonus to employees currently proposed numbers 17,781,166 shares,
accounting for 18.77% of the earnings converted into capital augment. After
allocation of the bonus to employees and remuneration to directors and supervisors as
proposed, the EPS is anticipated at @NT$17.31.
3.9.3 The earnings of the preceding year used for allocation for the bonus to employees and
remuneration to directors and supervisors:
Here at Mediatek, the board of directors resolved the allocation ratios of 2003
earnings in the meeting held on March 18, 2004. The resolved ratios were formally
resolved in the regular meeting of shareholders held on June 9, 2004 exactly as
proposed. The actual allocation is exactly the same as what was resolved. The cash
bonus, stock bonus to employees and the remuneration to directors and supervisors
amounts to NT$659,240,000, NT$157,471,000 and NT$44,462,000 respectively.
3.10 Repurchase of the Mediatek shares during January 1, 2004~April 30, 2005:
Safeguard Mediatek credit standing and the shareholders’
Purpose of repurchase
equity.
Period of repurchase
May 8, 2004 ~July 7, 2004
Volume anticipated for
12,000,000 shares
repurchase
Price range anticipated for
NT$203.0 ~NT$500.1
repurchase
Volume of actual repurchase 3,437,000 shares
Total amount of repurchase
NT$935,705,000
Mediatek was approved by the Science-based Industrial Park
Administration with Letter Yuan-Shang-Tze-0930029178 dated
Subsequent activities
October 15, 2004; with 3,437,000 shares registered for capital
reduction for treasury stocks.

4. Performance in corporate bonds: Nil.
5. Performance in preferred shares: Nil.
6. Performance in GDR: Nil.
7. Performance in employee warrant: Nil.
8. Performance in M&A or transfer-in of new shares by other firms: Nil.
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Three. Status of Business Performance
1. Business Contents
1.1 Business Scope:
1.1.1 The contents of business operated by Mediatek mainly includes the following:
A. Research, development, manufacturing and sales of the following products:
a. Multi-media integrated circuit (IC).
b. Integrated circuit (IC) for computer peripherals.
c. Integrated circuit (IC) for high-end consumer electronics.
d. Integrated circuit (IC) for other special applications.
B. Software and hardware application design, testing, maintenance and technical
consultation services for the above products.
C. Import and export of products related to the above.
1.1.2 Sales percentage(Year 2004)
Product item
Sales percentage

Multimedia IC chipsets

Others

97.75%

2.25%

1.1.3 Products currently operated by Mediatek:
A. Optical storage chipsets.
B. DVD-Players single chips.
C. DVD-Recorder chipsets.
D. Cell phone chipsets.
1.1.4 New products planned for development ahead:
A.
B.
C.
D.
E.

HD-DVD/Blue-ray chipsets.
High performance DVD Player single chips.
High performance DVD-Recorder chipsets.
New generation and high integration cell phone chipsets.
Digital television chipsets.

1.2 An overview of the industry:
1.2.1 Optical storage industry:
The CD-ROM industry is closely linked to the PC market. At the moment, PC market
is growing each and every year, though at an insignificant scale. That is to mean the
CD-ROM market is growing at a same pace as well. This is especially true in
notebook computers which virtually outpace PC market in growth. The slim style
CD-ROMs oriented to notebooks are growing at a more significant pace. Those
CD-ROM models like CD-ROM, DVD-ROM, CD-R/RW and Combi are defined as
ripe, or mature products and are subject to quite cutthroat competition. Thanks to
Mediatek for the policy of continual insistence on the core competitive edge and
services to customers, we have taken firm command of an admirable market share.
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DVD-Rewritable has matured in high speed storage technology amidst the cutthroat
competition over the past year. In the future, we will continually march towards high
capacity storage, e.g., Blu-ray, HD-DVD and such high capacity products. We shall
continue the consistent efforts in innovation and services to live up to the satisfaction of
consumers throughout the world in their need for high technology.
1.2.2 Digital consumer-oriented electronics industry:
DVD-Players are quite affordable to users at the current pricing level. As a result,
DVD-Player shipment volume has been rising at a continual pace in those newly
emerging markets as well (e.g., China, Russia, India…) in addition to America and
Europe. The DVD-Player market has never ceased its pace in growth. Meanwhile,
home audio and car audio has been shifted from CD platforms to DVD-Players. The
demand in the overall market is believed to continually grow in the years ahead. As
the solution becomes increasingly mature, the costs for DVD-Recorders have come
down at a rapid pace. DVD-Recorders are anticipated to be retailed at a price level
well acceptable to consumers within 2005 and are anticipated to grow at another wave
of rapid pace. Besides, HDD equipped products will take up a growing share to play
the pivotal role in the home media centers.
1.2.3 Wireless communications industry:
In the wake of the promotional efforts by international heavyweights, cell phones have
been prevalent in the market with gradually increasing range of models. The addition
of camera and A/V play functions into cell phones has triggered a replacement fever
and has led to new highs in sales in the market. It, meanwhile, has made cell phones a
sort of electronic vogue, in particular in the metropolitan markets. Such bullish trend
is anticipated to be continually going on. On the other hand, basic cell phones for
communication function alone will be growing at a very astonishing size in markets
where the cell phones are not yet popular, because of the dropping prices. In the
promotion of new cell phone products, cost control and rapid software & hardware
integration will be the very key to the success in preemptive seizure of the markets.
As multimedia applications on cell phones has a stable rise of demand and more and
more manufacturers, either up- or down-stream, have invested their resources into the
cell phone markets, Mediatek will take advantage of the vast hands-on experiences
accumulated in the consumer-oriented products to win a significant slice of the wireless
communications industry market.
1.3 Status of Technology and Research and Development:
1.3.1 Mediatek invested NT$3,518,067,000 and NT$1,532,476,000 respectively on R&D in
the last year and the current year as of the Annual Report publication date.
1.3.2 The technologies or products that have been successfully developed in fiscal 2004 and
fiscal 2005 up to the annual report publication date include the following:

1.
2.
3.
4.

R&D fruits
52X High performance CD-R/RW single chips
52X High performance Combi single chips
16X DVD-Rewritable chipsets
Highly Integrated DVD-Player chipsets
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Awards conferred upon Mediatek
DVD-Recorder Backend single
chips received 2004 “Innovative
Product Award of Science-based
Industrial Park”

5. Highly Integrated GSM chipsets
6. Highly Integrated GPRS chipsets
1.4 Short-term and long-term development projects:
1.4.1 Optical storage products:
Other than the efforts to maintain the product lines to safeguard the existent high
market share, we shall further develop core technology to roll out even higher
performance DVD-Rewritable chips to further boost the market share. Meanwhile,
we will continually develop next generation high capacity CD-ROM products Blu-ray
and HD DVD control chips. Through such efforts, we will successfully land in the
market at the very initial phase of market growth, train and foster SOC design and
system development experts. Through such efforts, Mediatek will be able to
safeguard it’s competitive edge in the optical storage industry.
1.4.2 Digital consumer-oriented electronic products:
Other than the efforts to continually launch DVD Player chips of added functions at
more competitive pricing, we will combine the advantage in DVD RW Servo in the
aspect of DVD Recorders to provide better quality and added competitive edge.
1.4.3 Wireless communications products:
We shall launch multifunction cell phone chipsets at more competitive pricing and
higher integration. Meanwhile, we shall develop more key accounts among the
heavyweight brand names in the world markets. In next generation cell phones, we
will continually invest heavy resources in development. In line with the demand for
the very basic cell phones aiming at the newly emerged markets, our Wireless
Communications Department will continually launch a variety of products of
mainstream specifications. By upgraded quality and more competitive pricing,
Mediatek will win added acclaim from customers.

2. Market, Production and Sales Performance:
2.1 Market Analysis
2.1.1 Markets of key products:
Expressed in Thousand New Taiwan Dollars
Year 2004

Year
Markets

Sales amount

%

World markets

33,017,313 (*)

82.43%

Domestic markets

7,036,989

17.57%

Total

40,054,302

100.00%

*: Including NT$4,783,000 revenue for technological services rendered to overseas clients.

2.1.2 Market share:
In Year 2004, Mediatek took up a 31% market share in multimedia IC chipsets.
2.1.3 Market supply, demand and growth potential in the future:
A.Optical storage products:
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Among all optical storage oriented industry throughout the world, Mediatek Inc. is
the only heavyweight which provides overall product lines. From CD-ROM in the
early phase to the prospering DVD-Rewritable products today, other than integral
range of the products, we render integral customer services to enable customers to
land in the markets in real-time and enjoy attractive profits. This explains why
Mediatek still garners remarkable market share even amidst cutthroat competition.
In the aspect of supply, the key CD-ROM suppliers include Mediatek, Sony and
Sanyo. The key DVD-ROM suppliers include Matsushita and Mediatek. The
major CD-R/RW suppliers include Mediatek and Samsung Semiconductor; major
Combi chipset suppliers Mediatek and Matsushita; major DVD-Rewritable suppliers,
Mediatek, Renesas, NEC, Matsushita and Philips. Of course there are lots of other
Taiwan companies attempting to enter the optical storage industry. They,
nevertheless, are insignificantly influential in the market. In the aspect of demand,
the IT market the world over is in the phase of a moderate growth. Further with
new products (e.g., DVD-Rewritable) rolling out one after another, CD-ROM
chipsets demand will still further grow. In addition, with notebook computers
significantly growing, CD-ROM drivers have got added momentum. Further as
demands for PS2, Xbox and such Game consoles are growing, CD-ROM chipsets
have got firm boost to further grow.
B. Digital consumer oriented electronic products:
Mediatek took the lead to launch Generation III Integration DVD Player in 2003.
Since then, we have further taken the lead in the industry. As the entire market is
continually on the rise, we anticipate to maintain growth at a solid pace in DVD
Players. As to DVD Recorders, as we have laid solid foundation in the former and
latter phase integration, we will be continually grow in such new products.
C. Wireless communications products:
At the moment, GSM/GPRS cell phones have become communications products of
the highest popularity of the world. World market demand for mobile phones hit 600
million sets in 2004 of which GSM/GPRS accounted for a great majority. Such a
share is believed to continually grow in the current year. The cell phones equipped
with multimedia functions are selling at an even faster pace. We anticipate to see
continual growth of such industry in the years ahead. We provide cell phone
manufacturers with comprehensive references as well as communications protocol
software stability and the interface for integrated tests to help design and, in
particular, we provide solid interfaces to enable cell phone manufacturers to
complete new product development at a quickening pace. Previously, the
complicated process for cell phone accreditation used to lead to prolonged period for
product development. Thanks to the “Total Solution” we provide them, they can
now tremendously cut short the time required to launch new products to market.
On the grounds of such a foundation, we shall continually make use of the existent
advantage to integrate added audio and video functions into next generation
communications chipsets. Before too long in the future, we anticipate to be able to
catch up with competitors and further take the lead in the entire market.
2.1.4 Competitive edges
A. Outstanding management team
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Our management team members have been our close partners in the multi-media
business for years. Meanwhile, more and more high-caliber talents have joined our
team, including numerous senior IC designers and system engineers. Over 85% of
our employees hold a master’s or higher degree. The valuable rapport built over
years of working together and professional excellence is the cornerstone of
Mediatek’s development in the days and years ahead.
B. Engineering know-how of system-on-chips (SOC)
Systematic Single Chips have been constantly the red-hot issue discussed in the
technology industry. In either IC design or system design, Mediatek Inc. boasts a
huge number of high-caliber talents.
While design department and system
department go closely hand-in-hand, we have been able to develop numerous new
products for striking advantage in the market every year.
2.1.5 Advantages and disadvantages in future prospects and countermeasures
Advantages
A. Continual growth in the CD-ROM market demand and broadened applications
Over the past few years, the PC market has not grown at a pace as fast as before.
Some large-scale manufacturers have shifted their production lines from the PC
market to living rooms. The application of CD-ROM drivers has been expanded
from PC to audio and video entertainment.
Under such tide, CD-ROM drivers
have been expanded in application, e.g., PS2, Xbox, Camcorder and the like. All
these call for CD-ROM drivers as the carriers. Mediatek will, as well, continually
march toward 3C integration.
B. Taiwanese manufacturers will gradually replace Japanese counterparts in the market
of slim-type CD-ROM
Notebook market saw a tremendous growth in 2004. It is anticipated that within a
few years, notebooks will outpace overall PC market in growth. This trend has
driven the slim CD-ROM drives to be equipped for notebooks to further take off.
Slim CD-ROM drivers call for a higher entry threshold and used to be dominated by
Japanese heavyweights. As the CD-ROM industry is in gradual growth, Taiwanese
manufacturers have started up R&D for slim CD-ROMs one after another. Their
products have been adopted by notebook manufacturers as well. The development
of such markets will bring handsome additional profits to Taiwanese manufacturers.
C. Continual rise of Global popularity of DVD-Players
Featuring the advantages of high-quality images and huge storage capacity,
DVD-Players have gradually replaced video recorders and video cassette recorders
and VCD-players. Meanwhile, Chinese manufacturers have aggressively focused
on DVD-Player manufacturing. Their low-price marketing strategies have
successfully attracted global consumers to this product. As a natural result,
DVD-Players have recorded the fastest popularity pace in human history. While
DVD-Players are believed to continually expand popularity in the entire world, this
industry is believed to maintain incessant growth. In the two years ahead,
DVD-Recorders will become another red-hot consumer-oriented electronic product
following DVD-Players. In turn, they will, step-by-step, replace DVD-Players in
the extended trend of rapid growth like DVD-Players before.
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D. Rapid popularization of mobile communications
Whenever a new model of cell phone with new functions hits the market, there is
bound to be a replacement fever. In high per capita income countries over the past
few years, in particular, mobile communications equipment has become so popular
that almost each and every citizen holds one cell phone in hand. Meanwhile, cell
phones are replaced at a quickening pace as well. In developing countries, cell
phones have become popular at a very rapid pace. The technology of wireless
communications has been continually developed and utilized. In the foreseeable
future, there will definitely be a tremendous opportunity in the market and a
tremendous niche for Taiwan firms in the fields of IC, cell phone R&D design and
OEM.
E. The comprehensive IC foundry infrastructure in Taiwan will boost the IC design
industry
Taiwan is renowned for advanced information technology and the unsurpassed
manufacturing capabilities. The tremendous domestic demand market suggests a
major advantage to Mediatek. Meanwhile, Taiwan’s semiconductor OEM system
is virtually dominating the entire world. Amidst the rapid and effective
coordination in the supply system, Mediatek is virtually free of any risk in supply
shortage.
F. Powerful management team and high quality human resources
The Mediatek management team has a close entrepreneurial partnership in the
multi-media industry.
The team members boast vast hands-on experience
accumulated in the field and co-work among themselves in close tacit accord.
More than 85% of our employees hold a masters or higher academic degree. The
exceptional quality of our staff members is one of the keys to our leading position,
leaving competitors in the dust.
Disadvantages and Our Countermeasures:
A. New technologies emerge to change product platforms on each passing day.
Consequently, product life cycles get shortened. Amidst cutthroat competition for the
end products, we are subject to the pressure of price-cuts at any moment.
Countermeasures:
Mediatek builds momentum all the time to boost it’s competitive edge by
developing new products, upgrading the quality of human resources and offering
better and better chipsets. Other than the goal of maintaining the current markets,
we shall do further R&D to map out new products for the next generation.
Through such efforts, we launch high quality products virtually ahead of industry
peers and enter new markets early enough to safeguard our competitiveness.
B. Since our products concentrate on information oriented multi-media chipsets, our
profitability is significantly challenged because of changes in economic cycles and
product life span:
Countermeasures:
We put in aggressive R&D efforts on multi-media chipsets and try to expand the
scope of our business into digital consumer electronics and wireless
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communications. We earnestly hope that through Taiwan’s self-sufficiency in key
wireless communication components, we will invigorate development of local
wireless communication industry.
2.2 Key Applications and Production Process of Major Products:
2.2.1 Key applications of our major products
Currently our major products include optical storage chipsets and high-end digital
consumer chipsets as well as wireless communications chipsets. These products are
primarily used in PCs and digital home appliances and cell phones. The applications
include notably the following:
A. The CD-ROM and DVD-ROM chipsets are primarily used as the storage facility of
game consoles and for multi-media PCs. The former is classified as a closed
market with very limited buyers, notably Sony, Nintendo and Microsoft. The latter
market is PC market, the one most familiar to manufacturers and consumers in
Taiwan. The CD-R/RW chipsets are mainly used in the storage facility of
multi-media PC and recordable vehicles of digital home appliances. Combi chipsets
are primarily aimed at Slim DVD-Rooms and high-end PC storage equipment.
DVD-Rewritable chipsets are used for high level PC storage equipment and DVD
VTRs.
B. DVD-Player chipsets are used for DVD players in the home appliance field.
DVD-Recorder chipsets are used for the newly developed DVD recorders. Digital
TV Processing chips are aimed at digital monitors on TVs.
C. Wireless Communications Chipsets are mainly used for cell phones and have been
developed from the simple Voice Only to the current mainstream of GPRS, and
further to even higher level multimedia audio and video cell phone sets. All these
represent our expertise in the wireless communications chipsets.
2.2.2 Production process of major products

The flowchart of developing a chip from design to finished product is shown
below:
Wafer

CAD
CAE

Design

Mask

Wafer
manufacture

Leadframe

Wafer

test

Packaging

Packaging &
test

Flowchart of the product manufacture
A. Design flow:

Based on the specifications of product outline, design engineers, aided by
tools such as CAD, transform circuits into a drawing that can be placed in
production, which is then manufactured through the wafer work:
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B. Mask flow:
The finished IC circuit’s design is stored in a tape as a database for masking
company to produce. There are four stages in the manufacturing of mask, namely,
glass process, Cr film coating, resist coating and shipping. The finished mask is
then delivered to wafer fabs.
C. Wafer fabrication
Wafer fabrication is outsourced to the foundry. The wafer begins from entering a
module, through etching, photo, slim film and diffusion with mask during each
process area. Finished wafer must be tested electrically before it can be shipped.
D. Test flow:
A completed wafer must be sorted to determine whether it is in sound electrical
function. Qualified and disqualified wafers are marked accordingly.
E. Assembly flow:
After wafer sorting, qualified products are delivered to an assembly house for IC
assembly, with the flowchart shown below:

2.3 Supply of Primary Raw Materials:
Wafers are our primary product materials and come mainly from United Microelectronics
Corporation (UMC), Chartered (CSM) and UMC Japan (UMCJ). Those suppliers maintain
quite a high level in quality and process, well satisfactory to Mediatek in availability and
punctuality.
We negotiate prices with suppliers based on the market supply and demand
status. Besides, on a periodic basis, we regularly review product quality and services of
suppliers who provide technological services to us as well. . In addition, other than
strengthening cooperation with existing foundry partners, we also maintain dialogues with
other foundry players globally to ensure better security and alternatives of resources, quality
and prices.
2.4 Key accounts having purchased (sold) worth over 10% of the total value in either of the past
two years as well as Their purchased (sold) amount and percentage:
2.4.1 Key accounts having purchased worth over 10% of the total purchase value in either
of the past two years:
Expressed in Thousand New Taiwan Dollars
Year 2003
Year 2004
Customer
Purchase
% of the total
Customer
Purchase
% of the total
names
values
annual purchase
names
values
annual purchase
UMC
8,185,626
73.04%
UMC
7,690,155
56.03%
Customer A 1,329,251
-

11.86%
-

Customer A
Customer B
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3,134,717
1,436,473

22.84%
10.47%

Reasons of increase/decrease changes： Change in product line and outsourcing strategies.
2.4.2 Customers with sales accounting for over 10% of the total in either of the past two
years:
Expressed in Thousand New Taiwan Dollars
Year 2003
Customer’s
name
Customer A

% out of the
Sales amount total annual
sales turnover
5,927,138
14.90

Customer’s
name
Customer A

Year 2004
% out of the total
Sales
annual sales
amount
turnover
8,755,428
20.90

Reasons of increase/decrease changes: No significant change in the past two years.

2.5 Output Volume and Value in the Last Two Years:
Expressed in Thousand Pcs./Thousand New Taiwan Dollars
Year

Year 2003

Output
volume/value

Productivity

Key product

Multimedia IC
chipsets
*:

N/A

Year 2004

Output
Output
Output value Productivity
volume
volume
279,551

18,696,075

N/A

Output
value

301,970 21,458,958

Note：We employ IC foundry services for wafer fabrication, then hire packaging and testing companies for
packaging and testing operations. Thus, there is no limit to production capacity.

2.6 Sales Volume and Value in the Last Two Years:
Expressed in Thousand Pcs./Thousand New Taiwan Dollars
Year 2003

Sales
volume/value

Year 2004

Year

Domestic sales
Key
product

Multimedia IC chipsets

Volume

Value

32,965

4,635,164

Others

N/A

24,646

Total

32,965

4,659,810

Export
Volume

Value

Volume

235,150 33,404,609 49,467

-

-

Value
6,139,009

N/A

897,980

235,150 33,404,609 49,467

7,036,989
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Domestic sales

Export
Volume

Value

240,476 33,012,530
N/A

4,783

240,476 33,017,313

3. Facts of human resources:
Year

2005 (As of April
30, 2005)
67

Year 2003

Year 2004

R&D

43
546

62
773

Marketing

20

23

23

Manu factur ing

31

37

36

To tal

640

895

984

Average Age

30.9

31.2

31.2

Av erag e Y ea rs of Serv ic e (S en ior ity)

2.0

2.1

2.1

Doctoral Degree

5.78%

4.80%

5.28%

Master’s Degree

78.13%

80.34%

80.49%

Employees’
Education Level Bach elor’ s / Co llege Degr ee

15.31%

14.30%

13.82%

H igh Schoo l

0.78%

0.56%

0.41%

Administration
Number of
Employees

100.00%

To tal

100.00%

858

100.00%

4.Environmental Protection Expenditure
4.1 Losses (Including Indemnification) and Penalties as a Result of Environmental Pollution in
Recent Years and as of the Printing Date of this Annual Report: Nil.
4.2 Future Strategies (Including Improvement Measures) and Possible Expenditure:
As an IC design firm, we engage in mainly IC R&D design. Meanwhile, we outsource to
renowned leading foundry businesses at home and abroad for wafer production. That means
our business operations do not involve any of the pollution sources or environmental
pollution events stipulated in various environmental protection regulations. Moreover,
Mediatek has been officially granted by Hsinchu County Government, Bureau of
Environmental Protection the privilege of being exempted from the formality to submit
industrial waste clean-away proposals, under Approval Fu-Shou-Huan-Yeh-Tze 0920071591.
In short, Mediatek is totally free of the possibility of pollution to the environment or of
undergoing any loss or penalty in environmental protection.

5.Management-Employee Relations (Labor harmony)
5.1 Fringe benefits to employees:
A. Collective insurance:
Labor Insurance offers basic protection to employees. However, to better take care of
employees with comprehensive insurance coverage, we provide collective insurance to all
employees as a supplement to Labor Insurance. Other than our employees themselves,
the collective insurance also covers their spouses, parents and children. The Mediatek
fringe benefits well cover both employees themselves and their families.
B. Social activities:
To encourage employees to engage in constructive leisure activities, Mediatek has a policy
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to have employees take the initiative to organize a variety of employee clubs. The
Employee Benefit Committee offers financial aid to these clubs and sponsors a variety of
social and entertaining activities on a periodic basis
C. Miscellaneous:
Other employee benefits include health check-up for new recruits, annual health check-up
for incumbent employees, subsidy for childbirth, emergency aid, cash gifts to newly-weds
and condolence cash envelopes. These thoughtful fringe benefits are meant to show that
the company cares about its employees. There are also other benefits that aim at
strengthening employees’ loyalty to Mediatek. These include scholarships for employee’s
children, meal subsidies, gift certificates for celebrating traditional festivals, gift
certificates upon employees’ birthdays, discount at designated stores, annual company
travel and on-the-job educational & training programs which prove very helpful to boost
employees’ loyalty.
5.2 Educational & training systems and enforcement:
Mediatek provides integral and sound educational & training programs and systems to put
into effect thoroughly the Mediatek philosophy. In “human-friendly philosophy, we provide
sound and comprehensive educational & training programs to bring the entire staff into
maximum possible play to accomplish overall growth.” In line with different levels and
attributes of duties, the educational & training programs can be classified into the four
categories below:
A. Department head training systems:
Develop department heads’ expertise and functions for department heads of various levels
to draw up sound blueprints to deal with all sorts of challenges.
B. Engineer training systems：
Based on the engineering personnel’s various expertise and various maturity levels, we
develop sound blueprints to help them deal with challenges.
C. Professional expertise training systems:
We map out a series of educational & training programs, in the sub-categories including
legal affairs, intellectual property rights, computer & information, human resources,
finance & accounting, marketing and language programs.
D. Newcomer training programs：
Aiming at newcomers, we provide sound training programs, including newcomers as staff
and newly hired engineers.
5.3 Retirement plans and the status of implementation:
Our retirement plan complies with the Labor Standards Law. Mediatek deposits retirement
funds monthly into the earmarked account of the Worker Retirement Reserves Supervisory
Committee for exclusive and earmarked use in accordance with the Law. Mediatek further
lists the retirement fund as liabilities on financial statements based on the retirement actuary
report by a qualified actuary in compliance with “Accounting Process Standards of
Retirement Fund” as set forth in the R.O.C. SFAS NO. 18. Mediatek acknowledges the
pension liabilities accordingly.
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5.4 Status of management-employee relations and measures to safeguard employees:
Here at Mediatek, we firmly stick to the “human-friendly” policy under which we spare no
effort to enhance labor harmony and assure a happy win-win strategy to both Mediatek and
employees.
The accords reached by and between company and employees and the efforts to safeguard
employees’ interests include notably the following:
A. Working Rules: Mediatek has enacted sound working rules which well live up to the
Mediatek philosophy and enhance consensus between the management and the labor
sides.
B. Meeting on communications among employees themselves: Here at Mediatek, we hold
meetings on a periodic basis to enhance labor harmony. In the events, all employees are
encouraged to speak up on the Mediatek strategies, development, future prospects,
department goals and policies. On all issues, they are given chances to talk with their
department heads face-to-face. Such efforts prove highly conducive to Mediatek
operations and better consensus.
C. Human Resources Committee: On a monthly basis, the Human Resources Committee
convenes meetings. In the event, high-level department heads exchange their voices,
resolve decisions on key issues and reach consensuses.
D. Employees’ suggestion boxes: Mediatek installs employees’ suggestion boxes and
provides designated personnel to take the initiative to reply to their suggestions.
E. E-mail: Each and every employee is provided with an e-mail address wherewith all staff
members may receive Mediatek updates within the shortest possible period of time. Also
through the e-mail system, all employees may directly speak up and express problems to
the people concerned in the management.
F. Public announcement of major information: Mediatek announces all major information
and updates through the company website. So the entire staff are kept immediately
informed of the Mediatek updates.
5.5 Losses incurred by labor disputes in recent years until the annual report date: Thanks to the
human-friendly policy and the exceptional efforts to ensure labor harmony, as well as our
efforts to comply with the Labor Standards Law (Quite a few Mediatek regulations even
exceed the Labor Standards Law in favor of employees), we have recorded admirable labor
harmony and have not seen any major labor disputes at all.
5.6 The amount anticipated presently and in the future in labor disputes and the countermeasures:
Nil.
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6. Major Contracts
Nature of

Contract

Contract

Counterparts

Technological Chih Yuan
Licensing
Technology

Contract Periods
Starting from
1998.5.14

Highlights of accords
Design and usage of 8032 turbo

Restrictions
Nil

mega-cell
Technological Optical-Electronics & 2000.1.4-2006.1.3
Licensing
Systems
Laboratories, ITRI
Technological Chih Yuan
Starting from
Licensing
Technology
2000.8.1
Technological Industrial Technology 2000.8.31-2005.8.3
Licensing
Research Institute 0
(ITRI)
Licensing and
Valid permanently
ESS Technology
settlement on
starting from
International, Inc. and
litigation
2003.6.11
ESS Technology, Inc.
Purchase
assets

of Tvia Inc. (USA)

Patent &
Silicon Image,
Technological Inc.(USA)
Licensing

Purchase
assets

of PixTel (India, USA
and Canada)

Starting from
2003.6.17

Fifteen years
starting from
2003.12.19 (to be
automatically
renewed upon
expiry)

Starting from
2004.5.31(USA
and Canada)
Starting from
2004.6.2 (India)
Construction Fu Tsu Construction 2004.8.3-2006.6.30
work
Co., Ltd.

Techn ical develop men t of
PRML
0.18um/0.25um

Nil

Nil

Dual Band GSM Transceiver IC Nil

Licensing part of ESS know-how
and intellectual property rights to
Mediatek and out-of-court
settlement of litigation
Acquiring Tvia’s video
technology, patents and its
assets and employees in USA
and China.

Mediatek is entitled to integrate
the HDMI Transmitter and
Receiver patent and technology
into Mediatek’s own products
concerned.

Acquiring technology, patents
and other intellectual property
rights related to PixTel
communications products

Nil

Within two years from
execution of the contract,
under no circumstances
shall Tvia compete against
Mediatek in products and
markets concerned.
1. Mediatek may
continually manufacture
and market after expiry
of the agreement the
products which have
been licensed prior to
expiry.
2. Equally applicable to
Mediatek’s subsidiaries
PixTel should be dissolved
within a specified time
limit after execution of
this Agreement.

The earthwork, steel structure
Nil
and curtain wall works of
the Mediatek Headquarters
Intellectual
Reaching out-of-court settlement Confined to the optical
VIS Electronics Co., Starting from
property
2004.8.3
with VIS Electronics Co., Ltd.
storage products which
Ltd. and Western
rights
and its subsidiary Western Digital Western Digital Taiwan
licensing and Digital Taiwan Co.,
Taiwan Co., Ltd.Mediatek
Co., Ltd. had completed
settlement on
licenses part of the intellectual
in manufacture prior to
Ltd.
litigation
property rights concerned to
May 14, 2004 and which
Western Digital Taiwan Co., Ltd. had used Mediatek’s
(permanent licensing for
intellectual property
copyrght and business secrets,
rights.
five years for patents)
Purchase of Sarnoff Corporation Starting from
Acquiring patents and patents
Nil
assets
2004.10.22
pending from Sarnoff in 211
cases
Purchase of Yang Chih
Starting from
Acquiring certain patents and
Nil
assets
Technology Co., Ltd. 2004.10.28
patents pending as well as
technology from Yang Chih
Technology Co., Ltd.
Construction Ying Chien
2004.11.20-2006.6. The E & M Engineering Contract Nil
work
Engineering Co., Ltd. 30
for Mediatek Headquarters
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Four. Execution Of Capital Utilization Plan
1. Contents of Plan:
Previous public offerings of securities or private fund-raising via securities not yet completed, or
such efforts already completed in the last three years effects of which plans are yet to be
materialized: Nil.

2. Status of Execution
With regard to the purpose of individual plans referred to in the previous paragraph, details of
such plans are analyzed up till the quarter preceding the publication date of this Annual Report,
and the status of execution and originally estimated effects being compared: Nil.
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Five. Financial Profile
1. Condensed Balance Sheets:
Expressed in Thousand New Taiwan Dollars
Financial data over the past five years
Descriptions
2000

2001

2002

2003

2005(as of March
31, 2005)(*2)

2004

Current assets

6,193,690

14,414,772

22,798,210

29,198,230

32,065,252

34,655,847

Long-term investment

1,719,334

1,949,238

6,496,617

11,459,763

12,051,928

11,943,546

Fixed assets

306,266

534,980

894,976

1,048,591

2,026,699

2,342,403

Intangible assets

103,200

146,029

213,207

275,229

1,397,248

1,662,517

Other assets

899,992

864,952

2,905

5,490

8,385

8,574

Total assets

9,222,482

17,909,971

30,405,915

41,987,303

47,549,512

50,612,887

Before distribution

2,578,932

4,697,410

6,490,956

5,887,267

4,837,168

5,178,575

After distribution

2,856,718

6,202,334

10,685,021

12,044,121

*1

*1

Long-term liabilities

13,500

23,759

30,896

10,643

-

-

Other liabilities

16,324

23,719

36,242

54,319

74,064

81,514

Before distribution

2,608,756

4,744,888

6,558,094

5,952,229

4,911,232

5,260,089

After distribution

2,886,542

6,249,812

10,752,159

12,109,083

*1

*1

2,168,666

3,160,056

4,604,654

6,415,473

7,693,359

7,693,359

71,260

71,260

82,102

115,906

155,924

155,924

4,373,800

9,807,658

19,091,531

29,608,736

35,559,616

38,399,603

3,104,624

6,858,136

13,086,647

22,139,626

*1

*1

-

126,109

125,504

(49,071)

(714,649)

(840,118)

-

-

(55,970)

(55,970)

(55,970)

(55,970)

6,613,726

13,165,083

23,847,821

36,035,074

42,638,280

45,352,798

6,335,940

11,660,159

19,653,756

29,878,220

*1

*1

Current
liabilities

Total
liabilities
Share capital

Capital reserve
Before distribution
Retained
earnings
After distribution
(including
legal reserve
and special
reserve)
Cumulative
translation
adjustments
Treasury stocks
Before distribution
Total
shareholders’
equity
After distribution

*1: Subject to the final decision to be resolved in the shareholders＇meeting..
*2: Unaudited data, having been read by the CPAs only.
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2. Condensed income statement
Expressed in Thousand New Taiwan Dollars

Descriptions

2005(as of March

Financial data over the past five years
2000

Operating revenues

2001

2002

2003

31, 2005)(*2)

2004

12,861,702

15,375,350

29,513,149

38,064,419 40,054,302

9,018,799

Gross operating profit

5,363,389

7,901,603

14,672,230

19,654,973 19,615,448

4,210,530

Operating interest

3,656,584

5,942,364

12,723,337

15,080,780 14,751,591

2,769,319

331,652

1,037,723

307,879

1,903,858

244,631

187,796

Nonoperating
expenditures & loss

(493,024)

(1,928)

(203,176)

(375,594)

(654,945)

(34,236)

Net profit before tax

3,495,212

6,978,159

12,828,040

16,609,044 14,341,277

2,922,879

Profit/loss this term

3,326,543

6,703,034

12,233,439

16,522,089 14,322,985

2,839,987

15.34

21.21

26.79

25.96

18.73

3.72

4.30

8.67

15.96

21.55

*1

*1

Nonoperating revenues &
interest

Before Retroactive
EPS Adjustment
(NT$) Af ter Re troa c tiv e
Adju stme n t

*1: Subject to the final decision to be resolved in the shareholders’ meeting.
*2: Unaudited data, having been read by the CPAs only.

3. Information of auditing CPAs and their auditing opinions
Year

CPA House

Names of auditing CPAs

2000

Diwan Ernst & Young

Chin-lai Wang, Chien-kuo Yang

2001

Diwan Ernst & Young

Chin-lai Wang, Chien-kuo Yang

2002

Diwan Ernst & Young

Chin-lai Wang, Chien-kuo Yang

2003
2004

Diwan Ernst & Young
Diwan Ernst & Young

Chien-kuo Yang, Hui-hsin Yeh
Hui-hsin Yeh, Ting-ming Chang
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Audit opinions
Unqualified opinions
after amendment
Unqualified opinions
after amendment
Unqualified opinions
after amendment
Unqualified opinions
Unqualified opinions

4. Financial Analysis over the Past Five Years;
Financial data over the past five years

Items of analysis
2000
Financial
structure
(%)

Solvency
(%)

Debts Ratio

2003

2004

26.49

21.57

14.18

10.33

10.39

2,169.21

2,469.73

2,668.08

3,437.54

2,103.83

1,936.17

Current Ratio

240.16

306.87

351.23

495.96

662.89

669.22

Quick Ratio

203.35

292.17

325.25

458.56

585.60

619.95

7,733.77

9,955.58

N/A

377,480.27

N/A

N/A

11.43

7.18

8.33

9.59

10.52

9.73

32

51

44

38

35

41

Average Inventory Turnover (Times)

7.65

7.19

12.57

9.53

6.94

6.12

Average Payables Turnover (Times)

8.98

5.99

5.66

4.87

6.01

7.19

48

51

29

38

53

60

Fixed Assets Turnover
(Times)

46.44

36.55

41.28

39.17

26.05

16.51

Total Assets Turnover
(Times)

1.79

1.13

1.22

1.05

0.89

0.74

Return on Total Assets (%)

46.19

49.41

50.64

45.65

31.99

23.15

Return on Shareholders’
Equity (%)

67.10

67.78

66.10

55.18

36.41

25.82

Operating Income

168.61

188.05

276.31

235.07

191.74

143.98

Income before
Taxes

161.17

220.82

278.59

258.89

186.41

151.97

25.86

43.60

41.45

43.41

35.76

31.49

15.34

21.21

26.79

25.96

18.73

3.72

4.30

8.67

15.96

21.55

N/A

N/A

Cash Flow Ratio (%)

132.97

155.90

183.61

270.8

244.99

346.40

Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio
(%)

186.15

337.56

362.39

347.59

256.89

346.16

58.85

56.68

44.49

33.47

13.76

40.59

Operating leverage

1.10

1.12

1.07

1.08

1.11

1.22

Financial leverage

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

Long-term Fund to Fixed
Assets

Average Collection Turnover (Times)
Average Collection Days

Average Sales Turnover Days

To Paid-in
Capital (%)
Profitability

Net profitability (%)
Before Retroactive
Adjustment
EPS (NT$)

Cash flow

2002

28.29

No. of times of interest
assurance

Operating
Performance

2001

2005 (as of
March 31,
2005)(*)

After Retroactive
Adjustment

Cash Flow Reinvestment
Ratio (%)

Leverage

Note：Unaudited data, having been read by the CPAs only.
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Financial ratios are calculated based on the formula below:
1. Financial structure:
(1) % of liabilities to assets = Total liabilities/Total assets.
(2) % of long-term funds to fixed assets = (Net shareholders’ equity + Long-term liabilities)/Net
fixed assets
2. Solvency:
(1) Current ratio + Current assets/Current liabilities
(2) Quick ratio = (Current assets - Inventory - Prepaid expenses) / Current liabilities.
(3) No. of times of interest assurance = Net profit before income tax and interest
expenses/Interest expenditures this term
3. Operating Performance
(1) Receivables (including accounts receivable and notes receivable incurred by business)
Turnover rate = Net sales/Receivables averaged in various terms (including accounts
receivable and notes receivable incurred by business) balance
(2) Average No. of cashing days = 365/Turnover rate of receivables.
(3) Inventory turnover rate = Sales costs/Average inventory value
(4) Payables (including accounts payable and notes payable incurred by business) Turnover rate =
Sales costs/Payables averaged in various terms (including accounts payable and notes payable
incurred by business) balance
(5) No. of days in average sales = 365/ Stock turnover rate
(6) Turnover rate of fixed assets = Net sales/Net fixed assets
(7) Turnover rate of overall assets = Net sales/Total fixed assets
4. Profitability
(1) Asset return rate = [Profit (loss) after tax + Interest expense × (1 - Tax rate)] / Average total
assets
(2) Return rate of shareholders’ equity = Profit (loss) after tax/Average shareholders’ equity, net
(3) Net profit rate = Profit (loss) after tax/Net sales
(4) EPS = (Net profit after tax - Dividend of preferred shares) / Weighted average of outstanding
shares
5. Cash flow
(1) Cash flow ratio = Net cash flow of operating activities / Current liabilities
(2) Adequacy of cash flow = Net cash flow of operating activities in the past five years / (Capital
expenditures + Increased inventory + Cash dividend) of the past five years
(3) Ratio of cash reinvestment : (Net cash flow of operating activities - Cash dividend) / (Gross
fixed assets + Long-term investment + Other assets + Operating funds)
6. Leverage:
(1) Operating leverage = (Net operating revenues - Variable operating costs and
expenses)/Operating profits
(2) Financial leverage = Operating profit / (Operating profit - interest expense)
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5. Supervisors’ Review Report
Mediatek Inc.
Supervisors’ Review Report
In accordance with Article 219 of the Company Law, we have examined the Financial
Statements for the year ending 2004 submitted by the Board of Directors and audited by the
independent auditors of Diwan, Ernst & Young, who consider the above mentioned reports and
statements to present fairly the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of MediaTek
Inc., along with the Business Report and Allocation of Earnings and prove them to well live up to
the laws and regulations concerned.
To:
Mediatek Inc., the Regular Meeting Of Shareholders 2005

Mediatek Inc.
Supervisor

: Grace Li(United Microelectronics Corporation (UMC) Corporate
[judicial person] representative )

Supervisor

: Paul Wang (Yi Hua Venture Capital Investment Co., Ltd. Corporate
[judicial person] representative )

Supervisor

: Chiung-lang Liu (National Tsing Hua University Corporate
[judicial person] representative )

May 3, 2005
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6. Financial Statements & CPAs’ Audit Report
Mediatek Inc.
CPAs’ Audit Report
We have examined the accompanying balance sheet of Mediatek Inc. as of December 31, 2004 and
December 31, 2003 and related income statements, the change in shareholders' equity and cash flow
statement for the periods starting from January 1 until December 31, 2004 and January 1 until
December 31, 2003. The management of the Company is responsible for preparing the
aforementioned financial statements while we are responsible for offering opinions on the
aforementioned financial statements of Mediatek Inc.
Our examinations were duly made in accordance with the “Rules Governing Certification of
Financial Statements by a Certified Public Accountant” and Generally Accepted Auditing
Principles to check for the presence of any major misrepresentation of the financial statements.
Our auditing includes random sample check of the amounts shown on the financial statements and
the disclosed evidence. In turn, we evaluated the accounting principles and major accounting
estimation adopted by the management in preparing the financial statements to evaluate the overall
expression of the financial statements. We believe such auditing would provide reasonable
grounds on the opinions provided.
In our opinions, the major issues of the financial statements mentioned in Paragraph I prove to have
been worked out in accordance with “Regulations Governing Securities Issuers' Financial
Statements” and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, presenting fairly the financial position
of Mediatek Inc. as of December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003 and the results of its operation
and its cash flow for the periods starting from January 1 until December 31, 2004 and from January
1 until December 31, 2003.
Mediatek Inc. has duly worked out the Consolidated Financial Statements to cover Fiscal 2004 and
2003 for which we have duly issued the Audit Report of unqualified opinions. The Consolidated
Financial Statements herewith are provided for reference.
To:

Mediatek Inc.
Diwan Ernst & Young
Approval Code by the Securities and Futures
Commission, Ministry of Finance for Financial
Statements Certification:
(90)-Tai-Tsai-Cheng-(VI)-100690
(91)-Tai-Tsai-Cheng-(VI)-144183
Hui-hsin Yeh

CPA:
Ting-ming Chang

February 2, 2005
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MEDIATEK INC.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WITH
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003

.
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English Translation of a Report Originally Issued in Chinese
Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
MediaTek Inc.
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of MediaTek Inc. as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, and the related statements of income, changes in shareholders' equity, and cash flows for the
years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the “Rules Governing Auditing and Certification of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants” and generally accepted auditing standards in
the Republic of China (R.O.C.). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of MediaTek Inc. as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the R.O.C.
The Company has prepared consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2004 and 2003
and for the years then ended. We also have expressed an unqualified audit opinion on those
consolidated financial statements.

Diwan, Ernst & Young
February 2, 2005
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

Notice to Readers
The reader is advised that these financial statements have been prepared originally in Chinese. In the event of a conflict
between these financial statements and the original Chinese version or difference in interpretation between the two
versions, the Chinese language financial statements shall prevail.
The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position and results of operations and
cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the R.O.C. and not those of any
other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such financial statements are those generally
accepted and applied in the R.O.C.
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English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

MEDIATEK INC.
BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2004 and 2003
(Amounts in thousand New Taiwan dollars)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments(net)
Notes and accounts receivable(net)
Other receivables
Inventories(net)
Prepayments and other current assets
Deferred income tax assets-current(net)
Restricted deposits-current
Total current assets

Notes
2, 4(1)
2, 4(2)
2, 4(3),5
4(4),10(1)
2, 4(5)

2004
$

2, 4(17)
6,7(2)

Long-term investments
Long-term equity investments
Accounted for under equity method
Accounted for under cost method
Long-term bond investments
Total long-term investments

2, 4(6)

Property, plant and equipment
Buildings and facilities
Machinery and equipment
Research and development equipment
Miscellaneous equipment
Total cost
Less : Accumulated depreciation
Add : Construction in progress
Prepayments for equipment
Property, plant and equipment(net)

2, 4(7),5

Intangible assets
Software
Patents and IPs
Prepayments for patents and technical rights
Total intangible assets

2

22,770,147
869,901
3,488,579
270,334
3,251,668
563,942
768,911
81,770
32,065,252

$

11,969,352
15,000
67,576
12,051,928

8,385
$

47,549,512

Other liabilities
Accrued pension liabilities
Total liabilities

734,712
100,835 Shareholders' equities
466,837 Capital
28,924
Common stock
1,331,308 Capital reserve
(310,004) Additional paid-in capital
279
Treasury stock transaction
27,008
Donated assets
1,048,591
Long-term investment transaction
Total capital reserve
Retained earnings
174,962
Legal reserve
100,267
Special reserve
Undistributed earnings
275,229 Other
Cumulative translation adjustments
Treasury stock-cost
5,490
Total shareholders' equities

213,108
1,078,429
105,711
1,397,248

5, 7(2)
5

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITIES Notes
Current liabilities
21,603,107 Notes and accounts payable
1,086,918 Payables to related parties
5
3,706,372 Income tax payable
2, 4(17)
240,528 Accrued expenses
7
2,075,508 Payables to equipment suppliers
139,677 Long-term debts-current portion
4(8)
262,733 Other current liabilities
83,387
Total current liabilities
29,198,230
Long-term liabilities
Long-term debts, less current portion
4(8)

11,444,763
15,000
11,459,763

739,276
60,388
607,151
41,183
1,447,998
(384,618)
943,865
19,454
2,026,699

Other assets
Refundable deposits
Total assets

2003

$

41,987,303 Total liabilities and shareholders' equities

The accompanying notes are an integral part to these financial statements.
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2004
$

2003

1,618,663
1,003,112
559,410
1,393,070
140,660
10,643
111,610
4,837,168

$

2,253,181
1,928,180
312,827
1,326,411
17,539
49,129
5,887,267

-

10,643

2, 4(9)

74,064
4,911,232

54,319
5,952,229

4(10)
4(12)

7,693,359

6,415,473

69,689
84,975
1,260
155,924

70,000
41,198
1,260
3,448
115,906

4(11)
4(13)
4(13)

4,147,524
49,071
31,363,021

2,495,315
27,113,421

2
2, 4(14)

(714,649)
(55,970)
42,638,280

(49,071)
(55,970)
36,035,074

$

47,549,512

$

41,987,303

English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
MEDIATEK INC.
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003
(Amounts in thousand New Taiwan dollars, except earnings per share)
Notes
2, 4(15), 5

Gross sales
Less : Sales returns and discounts
Net sales
Cost of goods sold
Gross profits

4.(16)

Operating expenses
Selling expenses
Administration expenses

2, 4(16),5,7

Research and development expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Non-operating income
Interest income
Gain on disposal of short-term investments
Reversal of bad debts
Reversal of accrued license fee
Others
Total non-operating income

$

Income before income tax
Income tax expense
Net income

(434,436)
(911,354)
(3,518,067)
(4,863,857)
14,751,591

(183,444)
(440,456)
(3,950,293)
(4,574,193)
15,080,780

(44)
(250,105)
(52,631)
(66,833)
(5,981)
(375,594)
16,609,044
(86,955)
16,522,089

$

$
$

18.75 $
18.73 $

21.67
21.55

$
$

18.60 $
18.58 $

21.49
21.38

2, 4(18)

Pro-forma data: (Assuming that the Company’s shares owned by
2, 4(18)
its subsidiary were not treated as treasury stock)
Earnings Per Share (in New Taiwan dollars)
Income before income tax
Net income

The accompanying notes are an integral part to these financial statements.
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198,652
82,303
165
1,557,540
65,198
1,903,858

14,341,277
(18,292)
14,322,985 $

2, 4(17)

Earnings Per Share (in New Taiwan dollars)
Income before income tax
Net income

38,064,419
(18,409,446)
19,654,973

(127,845)
(116,962)
(409,050)
(1,088)
(654,945)

2, 4(6)
2, 10
2, 4(5)

2003
39,778,263
(1,713,844)

40,054,302
(20,438,854)
19,615,448

191,866
18,983
21,804
11,978
244,631

2
2
7(1)

Non-operating expenses
Interest expense
Net loss from equity investments
Foreign exchange loss(net)
Inventory loss provision
Others
Total non-operating expenses

2004
41,885,020 $
(1,830,718)

English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
MEDIATEK INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITIES
For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003
(Amounts in thousand New Taiwan dollars)

Balance as of January1, 2003

$

Common

Capital

Legal

Special

Undistributed

stock

reserve

reserve

reserve

earnings

4,604,654

$

82,102

$

1,271,971

$

-

$

17,819,560

Cumulative
translation
adjustments
$

Treasury

Total

stock

125,504

$

(55,970) $

23,847,821

Appropriation and distribution of 2002 earnings:
Legal reserve

-

-

1,223,344

-

(1,223,344)

-

-

Directors' and supervisors' remuneration

-

-

-

-

(55,050)

-

-

Capitalization of employees' bonus
Stock dividends

(55,050)

199,190

-

-

-

(654,482)

-

-

(455,292)

1,611,629

-

-

-

(5,295,352)

-

-

(3,683,723)

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2003

-

-

-

-

16,522,089

-

-

16,522,089

The effects of subsidiaries shareholding of the Company's stock

-

30,356

-

-

-

-

-

30,356

-

3,448

-

-

-

-

-

3,448

recorded as treasury stock
The effects of change in long-term equity investment due to change in
investment percentage
-

-

-

-

-

(174,575)

6,415,473

115,906

2,495,315

-

27,113,421

(49,071)

Legal reserve

-

-

1,652,209

-

(1,652,209)

-

-

Special reserve

-

-

-

49,071

(49,071)

-

-

Directors' and supervisors' remuneration

-

-

-

-

(44,462)

-

-

Cumulative translation adjustments
Balance as of December 31, 2003

(55,970)

(174,575)
36,035,074

Appropriation and distribution of 2003 earnings:

Capitalization of employees' bonus
Stock dividends
Purchase of treasury stock

(44,462)

157,471

-

-

-

(816,711)

-

-

(659,240)

1,154,785

-

-

-

(6,607,937)

-

-

(5,453,152)

-

Cancellation of treasury stock

-

(34,370)

(311)

-

-

-

-

(901,024)

-

(935,705)

-

935,705

(935,705)
-

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2004

-

-

-

-

14,322,985

-

-

14,322,985

The effects of subsidiaries shareholding of the Company's stock

-

43,777

-

-

-

-

-

43,777

-

(3,448)

-

-

-

-

(5,419)

recorded as treasury stock
The effects of change in long-term equity investment due to change in

(1,971)

investment percentage
-

Cumulative translation adjustments
Balance as of December 31, 2004

$

7,693,359

$

155,924

$

4,147,524

$

49,071

The accompanying notes are an integral part to these financial statements.
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$

31,363,021

(665,578)
$

(714,649) $

(55,970) $

(665,578)
42,638,280

English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
MEDIATEK INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

(Amounts in thousand New Taiwan dollars)
2004
Cash flows from operating activities :
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Amortization
Reversal of bad debt
Inventory loss provision
Cash dividends from investees
Net loss from equity investments
Gain on disposal of short-term investments
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities
Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Others receivable
Inventories
Net changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
Prepayments and other current assets
Accounts payable
Payables to related parties
Income taxes payable
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities
Accrued pension liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

14,322,985

239,597
(29,806)
(1,585,210)
(506,178)
(424,265)
(634,518)
(925,068)
246,583
66,659
62,481
19,745
11,850,806

120,008
(35,113)
(76,524)
(475,089)
(214,781)
144,186
847,882
(51,958)
(123,231)
(1,282,409)
1,963
18,077
15,942,992

1,617
236,000
(1,347,230)
1,238
(1,002,966)
(1,459,432)
(2,895)
(3,573,668)

843,613
2,821,385
(5,365,000)
17,247
(291,878)
(244,734)
(2,585)
(2,221,952)

$

(17,539)
(935,705)
(5,453,152)
(44,462)
(659,240)
(7,110,098)
1,167,040
21,603,107
22,770,147 $

(16,189)
(3,683,723)
(55,050)
(455,292)
(4,210,254)
9,510,786
12,092,321
21,603,107

$
$

276,940
-

$
$

422,072
44

$

1,143,626 $
(140,660)
1,002,966 $

291,878
291,878

$
$
$
$
$

1,312,256
10,643
(665,578)
(5,419)
(935,705)

The accompanying notes are an integral part to these financial statements.
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16,522,089
130,490
179,996
(165)
66,833
10,978
250,105
(82,303)
(8,042)

$
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$

158,526
343,764
(21,804)
409,050
127,845
(18,983)
(597)

Cash flows from investing activities :
Decrease in restricted deposits
Decrease in short-term investments
Increase in long-term investments
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Increase in intangible assets
Increase in refundable deposits
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities :
Decrease in long-term debts
Buying treasury stocks
Cash dividends
Directors' and supervisors' remuneration
Employee bonus
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information :
Income tax paid during the year
Interest paid during the year
Activities partially effected cash flows :
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Less: increase in payables to equipment suppliers
Cash paid for the purchase of property, plant and equipment
Non-cash activities :
Stock dividends and employee bonus capitalized
Long-term debts-current portion
Cumulative translation adjustments
Long-term equity investment adjustments
Cancellation of treasury stock

2003

$
$
$
$
$

1,810,819
17,539
(174,575)
3,448
-

English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in Thousand of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specified Otherwise)
1. Organization and Operation
MediaTek Inc. (the "Company") was incorporated in the Hsinchu Science- Based Industrial Park
("HSIP"), Taiwan on May 28, 1997. The Company operates principally as a designer,
manufacturer and supplier of integrated circuit chips and decoders of optical storage.
As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company’s employees totaled 895 and 639, respectively.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with the R.O.C.’s “Guidelines
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuer” and generally accepted
accounting standards. Significant accounting policies are summarized as follows:
Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash, and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in
interest rates. Commercial papers, negotiable certificates of deposit, and bank acceptances with
original maturities of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.
Foreign Currency Transactions
The Company maintains its accounting records in New Taiwan dollars ("NT Dollars" or "NT$"),
the national currency of the R.O.C. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in
NT Dollars using the exchange rates in effect at the dates of the transactions. Assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into NT Dollars using the exchange rates in effect
at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains or losses are included in other income or losses.
The assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries are translated into NT Dollars, with the local
currency of each foreign subsidiary as its functional currency, at current exchange rates in effect at
the balance sheet date. Revenue and expense accounts are translated using a weighted average
exchange rate for the relevant period. Translation gains and losses are included as a component of
shareholders’ equity. The accumulated exchange gains or losses resulting from the translation are
recorded as cumulative translation adjustments under shareholders’ equity.
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English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
Short-term Investments
Short-term investments are recorded at cost when acquired and are stated at the lower of aggregate
cost or market value at the balance sheet date. The market value of listed equity securities or
closed-end funds is determined by the average closing price during the last month of the fiscal year.
The market value for open-end funds is determined by their equity per unit at the balance sheet
date. The amount by which aggregate cost exceeds market value is reported as a loss in the current
year. In subsequent periods, recoveries of market value are recognized as a gain to the extent that
the market value does not exceed the original aggregate cost of the investment. No revenue is
recognized when stock dividends are received. Instead, the number of shares increases and the cost
per share is recalculated. Gain or loss on disposal of open-end funds is recognized using
first- in-first-out method. Interest income of credit- linked structured deposits matured within a year
is accrued based on the contracted interest rate.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The allowance for doubtful accounts are provided based on the collectibility and aging analysis of
notes receivable, accounts receivable, receivables from related parties and by examining
current trends in the credit quality of its customers as well as its internal credit policies.
Inventories
Inventories are carried at lower of cost or market value using the weighted average cost method.
Replacement cost is used to determine the market value of raw materials. Net realizable value is
used to determine the market value of work in process and finished goods. The lower of cost or
market value is applied on aggregate basis to total inventory. Inventories that are not sold within or
moved for further manufactory 60 days are deemed to be slow-moving items and certain allowance
is set aside to reflect any possible loss from obsolescence.
Long-term Investments
Long-term equity investments
(1) Long-term investments accounted for under cost method
Long-term investments in which the Company holds less than 20% of the outstanding voting
shares of the investee companies and is not able to exercise significant influence over the
investee companies are stated at cost except for investments in listed companies which are
stated at lower of cost or market value. The unrealized loss on long-term investments is
recorded as a contra equity account. If it is evidenced that the stock price is unlikely to
recover in the future, an other-than-temporary loss will be recognized in the current period,
and the cost of a long-term investment shall be reduced to the market price, which will then
become the new cost.
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English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
(2) Long-term investments accounted for under equity method
Long-term investments in which the Company holds an interest of 20% or more and has the
ability to exercise significant influence over the investee’s operating and financial policies
are accounted for under the equity method of accounting. The difference between the cost of
the investment and the underlying equity in the investee’s net assets at the date of acquisition
is amortized over five years. Adjustment to capital reserve is required when holding
percentage changes due to unproportional subscription to investee’s new shares issued. If the
capital reserve is insufficient, retained earnings are adjusted.
Unrealized intercompany gains and losses are eliminated under the equity method. Profit
from sales of depreciable assets between the investee and the Company is amortized and
recognized based on the assets’ economic service lives. Profit from other types of
intercompany transactions is recognized when realized.
When equity in loss of an investee exceeds carrying value accounted for by the equity
method, the Company recognizes the investme nt loss by reducing the balance of the
investment to zero. However, if the Company intends to provide further financial supports
for the investee company, or the investee company’s losses are temporary and there exists
sufficient evidence showing imminent return to profitable operatio ns, then the Company
shall continue to recognize investment losses in proportion to the stock ownership
percentage. Such credit long-term investment balance shall first offset the advance, if any,
the Company made to the investee company. The remaining credit balance is recorded under
other liabilities.
Long-term Bond Investments
Long-term bond investments are recorded at cost when acquired and accounted for under
cost method.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
computed on a straight- line basis over the following useful lives:
Buildings and facilities
Machinery and equipment
Research and development equipment
Miscellaneous equipment

3 to 50
3 to 5
3 to 5
2 to 5
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years
years
years
years

English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
Improvements and replacements are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful lives
while ordinary repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
When property, plant and equipment are disposed of, their original cost and accumulated
depreciation are written off and related gains or losses are included in other income or losses.
Intangible Assets
Software, patents and IPS are stated at cost and amortized on a straight- line basis over the
following useful lives:
Computer software
Patents and technical rights

3 years
3 years

Capital Expenditures vs. Revenue Expenditures
If the expenditure increases the future service potential of the plant assets and the lump sum
purchase price per transaction exceeds criteria, the expenditure is capitalized, while the others are
expensed as incurred.
Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized in accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 32, "Accounting for Revenue Recognition."
Employee Retirement Benefits
In accordance with the Labor Standards Law of the R.O.C., the Company makes a monthly
contribution equal to 2% of the wages and salaries paid during the period to a pension fund
maintained with the Central Trust of China. The fund is administered by the Employees'
Retirement Fund Committee and is deposited in the committee's name. Therefore, the pension
fund is not included in the financial statements of the Company.
The Company has a defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all of its employees and
adopts the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 18, "Accounting for
Pensions." the minimum pension liability was recorded for the excess of accumulated pension
obligations over the fair value of plan assets. Net transition assets or obligations from the plan
assets are amortized using the straight- line method over the employees’ expected average
remaining service period of 20 years.
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MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
Income Tax
In accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.22,”Accounting
for Income Taxes,” income tax is accounted for under the inter-period and intra-period income tax
allocation method. Provision for income tax includes deferred tax resulting from temporary
differences and investment tax credits. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
expected tax consequences of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their reported amounts in the financial statements using enacted tax rates and laws that will be
in effect when the difference is expected to reverse. Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets is
provided to the extent that it is more likely than not that the tax benefits will not be realized.
Income tax credit is accounted for in accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 12, "Accounting for Income Tax Credit." Income tax credits resulting
from the acquisition of equipment, research and development expenditures and employee training
shall be recognized using the flow-through method.
Income taxes (10%) on undistributed earnings are recorded as expenses in the year when the
stockholders have resolved that the earnings shall be retained.
Financial instruments-hedging purpose
a. Foreign exchange forward contracts
A forward foreign exchange contract obligates the Company to exchange predetermined
amounts of specified foreign currencies at specified exchange rates for another currency on a
specified date. For contracts that are designated as hedges, discounts or premiums, being the
difference between the spot exchange rate and the forward exchange rate at the inception of the
contract, are accreted or amortized to the income statement over the contract lives using the
straight- line method. Realized gains and losses from settlement or unrealized gains and losses
resulting from changes in the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date are recorded in the
income statement as foreign exchange gains or losses in the period in which they relate. The
related amounts due to or from counter parties are included in other current assets or other
current liabilities.
b. Option contracts
At maturity the Company or the financial institution, depending upon which party has the right
of the option, exercises the option to receive a said amount denominated in one currency and
pay a said amount in a different currency. The conversion rate is stated in the contract. For
options, premiums are amortized over the contract lives using the straight- line method. Gains
and losses are recorded in the income statement upon exercise.
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MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
Earnings Per Share
In accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.24, “Earnings Per
Share,” the Company presents basic earnings per share. Earnings per common share are computed
by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common share outstanding during the
year. Earnings per common share are adjusted retroactively by stock dividends resulting from
retained earnings or capital surplus. Furthermore, if the base date of the capital increase for a stock
dividend is before the issuance date of the financial statements, the earnings per common share
shall be adjusted retroactively.
In accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 30, “Account ing
for Treasury Stock,” the Pro-Forma earnings per share were computed as follows assuming that
the Company’s shares owned by its subsidiary were not treated as treasury stock.
Treasury Stock
The Company’s shares owned by its subsidiaries were accounting-treated as treasury stock
according to R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accenting Standards No. 30, “Accounting for
Treasury Stock.” Cash dividends distributed to the Company’s subsidiaries are deducted from
investment income account and credited to capital reserves-treasury stock transaction.
In accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 30, “Accounting
for Treasury Stock,” treasury stock transactions are accounted for under cost method. The gross
cost of shares reacquired is recorded in a contra shareholders’ equity account called treasury stock.
At the date of subsequent resale, the treasury stock account is credited for the cost of the treasury
stock. When treasury stock is sold for more than its acquisition cost, the difference is credited to
capital reserve – treasury stock transaction. If treasury stock is sold for less than its acquisition
cost, the difference is charged to the same capital reserve account to the extent the capital reserve
account to reduce to zero. If the balance of the capital reserve is insufficient, any further reduction
shall be charged to retained earnings instead.
When treasury stock is retired, the treasury stock account is credited and all capital account
balances related to the treasury shares, including capital reserve – treasury stock transaction, are
reduced on a proportionate basis. Any difference, if on credit side, is recorded in capital reserve –
treasury stock transaction; if on debit side, retained earnings is charged.

3. Reasons and Effects for Change in Accounting Principles
None.
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MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
4. Contents of Significant Accounts
(1) Cash and Cash Equivalents
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004

Savings and checking accounts
Time deposits
Cash equivalents- CP-Repo and bonds-Repo

$1,088,629
16,546,510
5,135,008

$1,524,883
16,233,157
3,855,067

$22,770,147

$21,603,107

Total

2003

As of December 31, 2004, the Company has committed to sell the CP-Repo and bonds-Repo,
in cost amount of NT$4,780,544 thousand and NT$354,464 thousand, back to the brokers
during the three month period ended March 31, 2005.
Cash and cash equivalents were not pledged as of December 31, 2004.
(2) Short-term Investments-Net
As of December 31,
2004
In thousand NTD

Cost

Mutual fund
Government bonds
Credit- linked structured deposits

$370,085
499,816
-

Subtotal
Less: Allowance for market value decline
Net

869,901
$869,901

2003
Market
Value
$370,255
499,816
-

Cost

Market
Value

$650,000
301,006
135,912

$653,500
300,093
136,422

870,071 1,086,918
-

1,090,015
-

$870,071 $1,086,918 $1,090,015

Short-term investments were not pledged as of December 31, 2004. Please refer to the Note
10 for risk disclosure of credit- linked structured deposits.
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MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
(3) Notes and Accounts Receivable-Net
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD
Accounts receivable
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts
Net

2004

2003

$3,677,576
(198,429)

$3,913,803
(219,363)

3,479,147

3,694,440

Accounts receivable from related parties
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

9,432
-

12,802
(870)

Net

9,432

11,932

$3,488,579

$3,706,372

Total

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, accounts receivable from the most significant customer
amounted to NT$1,711,982 thousand and NT$1,303,878 thousand, representing 46.43% and
33.21% of total accounts receivable, respective ly. While, account s receivable from the most 5
significant customers totaled to NT$2,721,530 thousand and NT$2,460,720 thousand,
representing 73.81% and 62.67% of total accounts receivable, respectively.

(4) Others Receivable
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004

Forward exchange contracts receivable net
Interest receivable
VAT refundable
Others
Total

2003

$86,436
24,373
158,879
646

$8,253
13,715
218,034
526

$270,334

$240,528

(5) Inventories-Net
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004

2003

Raw materials
Work in process
Finished goods
Inventories in transit

$946
1,877,726
1,732,020
127,327

$2,381
1,267,715
830,473
52,240

Subtotal
Less: Allowance for inventory obsolescence

3,738,019
(486,351)

2,152,809
（77,301）

Net

$3,251,668
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MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
a.The insurance coverage for inventories amounted to NT$300,000 thousand and NT$700,000
thousand as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The subcontractors provided
insurance policies for the inventories at their hand for processing. Thus, the subcontractors
will assume the responsibility of damage, if any.
b. Inventories were not pledged as of December 31, 2004.
(6) Long-term Investments
a.
Investee Companies

As of December 31, 2004
Types

Amounts

Ownership

Accounting

(NT$’000)

(%)

Method

100.00%

Equity

Shares/units

Long-term equity investments
MediaTek Investment Corp.

Common share

185,000,000 $1,554,175

Hsu-Ta Investment Limited

Capital

-

3,316,653

100.00%

Equity

Hsu-Chia Investment Limited

Capital

-

3,083,444

100.00%

Equity

Hsu-Kang Investment Limited

Capital

-

3,083,407

100.00%

Equity

ALi Corporation

Common share

56,956,200

635,740

31.28%

Equity

Wiseali Technology Inc.

Common share

9,900,000

286,209

99.00%

Equity

Subtotal

11,959,628

Add：Unrealized loss on disposal of long-term equity investments
Total equity Method
Yuantonix, Inc.

9,724
11,969,352

Common share

1,500,000

15,000

5.66%

Cost

236

67,576

-

Cost

Long-term bonds Investments
EoNex Technologies, Inc.

Convertible bonds

Total

$12,051,928

As of December 31, 2003
Investee Companies

Types

Amounts

Ownership

Accounting

( NT$’000)

(%)

Method

100.00%

Equity

Shares/units

Long-term equity investments
MediaTek Investment Corp.

Common share

185,000,000 $1,487,775

Hsu-Ta Investment Limited

Capital

-

3,478,891

100.00%

Equity

Hsu-Chia Investment Limited

Capital

-

3,234,176

100.00%

Equity

Hsu-Kang Investment Limited

Capital

-

3,234,197

100.00%

Equity

Subtotal

11,435,039

Add：Unrealized loss on disposal of long-term equity investments
Total equity Method
Yuantonix, Inc.

11,444,763
Common share

Total

1,500,000

15,000
$11,459,763
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MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
b. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, loss in earning from equity investment
amounted to NT$127,845 thousand and NT$250,105 thousand, respectively. The loss was
recognized based on the audited financial statements of the investee companies.
c. During July 2002, the Company sold certain equity investments to MediaTek Capital Corp.
(a subsidiary of MediaTek Investment Corp.) and Gaintech Co. Ltd. (a subsidiary of
MediaTek Investment Corp.) at an aggregate price of NT$186,837 thousand. Loss from
disposal of investment of NT$9,724 thousand was deemed unrealized.
d. Long-term investments were not pledged as of December 31, 2004.
(7) Property, Plant and Equipment
a. The insurance coverage for property, plant and equipment amounted to NT$1,400,396
thousand and NT$1,277,837 thousand as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
b. No interest was capitalized for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
c. Property, Plant and Equipment were not pledged as of December 31, 2004.
(8) Long-term Debts
The authorities of HSIP financed the Company by providing free- interest loans for certain
R&D projects:
Original
Items

Second project

As of December 31,

balance

2004

2003

(NT$’000)

(NT$’000)

(NT$’000)

17,180

$-

$6,896

Repayment

The first repayment of NT$3,388 thousand was
made in May 2002. The remaining portion is
repayable in

eight quarterly

installments,

starting January 1, 2003, each of NT$1,724
thousand.

Third project

24,000

10,643

21,286

The first repayment of NT$2,715 thousand was
made in August 2003. The remaining portion is
repayable in eight quarterly installments,
starting January 1, 2003, each of NT$2,661
thousand.

Total long-term debts

10,643

28,182

Less: Current portion

(10,643)

（17,539）

Total

$-

$10,643
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MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
(9) Accrued Pension Liabilities
a. The components of net pension cost
For the year ended December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004

2003

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization
Over statement

$18,667
1,913
(748)
(86)
10,078

$16,782
1,773
(567)
88
7,145

Net pension cost

$29,824

$25,221

b. The funded status of the Company’s pension plans
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004

Benefit obligations
Vested benefit obligation
Non-vested benefit obligation

2003

$(42,505)

$(24,743)

(42,505)
(49,997)

(24,743)
(29,902)

Projected benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

(92,502)
31,436

(54,645)
21,361

Funded status of pension plan
Unrecognized net transitional obligation
Unrecognized loss (gain)
Over-accrual

(61,066)
1,148
10,393
(24,539)

(33,284)
1,236
(7,553)
(14,718)

$(74,064)

$(54,319)

Accumulated benefit obligation
Effect of projected future salary increase

Accrued pension liabilities

c. The pension fund is not included in the financial statements of the Company. As of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, the fund amounted to NT$ 31,436 thousands and NT$21,361
thousands, respectively.
d. The vested benefit was nil as of December 31, 2004 and 2003.
The underlying actuarial assumptions:
For the year ended December 31,
Discount rate
Rate of increase in future compensation levels
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets
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MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
(10) Common Stock
As of January 1, 2003, the authorized and issued common shares of the Company amounted
to NT$5,700,000 thousand and NT$4,604,654 thousand, divided into 570,000,000 shares and
460,465,370 shares, respectively, each share at par value of NT$10.
Based on the resolution of shareholders’ general meeting on May 16, 2003, the Company
increased its authorized capital to NT$8,960,000 thousand, divided into 896,000 thousand
shares, each share at par value of NT$10. Among the authorized capital, 40,000 thousand
shares were reserved for the grant of options to qualified employees. The shareholders further
resolved to issue 181,081,886 new shares for the capitalization of shareholders’ bonus of
NT$1,611,629 thousand and employees’ bonus of NT$199,190 thousand. The capitalization
had been governmentally approved.
Following the resolution of the shareholders’ annual general meeting on June 9, 2004, the
Company issued 131,225,575 new shares, each share at par value of NT$10, for the
capitalization of shareholders’ bonus of NT$1,154,785 thousand and employees’ bonus of
NT$157,471 thousand. The capitalization had been governmentally approved.
Based on the approval from the Company’s board of directors meeting held on May 7, 2004,
the Company was allowed to purchase back its own common share. The Company bought
3,437,000 shares from market during the period from May 8 to July 7, 2004. On September
22, 2004, the Board further resolved to cancel the treasury stocks and the measurement date
was at September 29, 2004. The cancellation of shares has been successfully updated to
government.
As of December 31, 2004, the authorized and issued common shares of the Company
amounted to NT$8,960,000 thousand and NT$7,693,359 thousand, divided into 896,000,000
shares and 769,335,831 shares, respectively, each share at par value of NT$10.
(11) Legal Reserve
According to the R.O.C. Company Law, 10% of the Company's net income, after deducting
previous years' losses, if any, is appropriated as legal reserve prior to any distribution until
such reserve is equal to the Company's paid- in capital. When the legal reserve is equal to or
more than 50% of paid- in capital, 50% of such reserve may be distributed to the Company's
shareholders through the issuance of additional common share.
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MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
(12) Capital Reserve
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004

Additional paid- in capital
Treasury stock transaction
Donated assets
Long-term investment transaction
Total

2003

$69,689
84,975
1,260
-

$70,000
41,198
1,260
3,448

$155,924

$115,906

According to the R.O.C. Company Law, capital reserve can only be used for making up
deficiencies or distributions of stock dividends. The Company shall not use capital reserve to
make up its loss unless legal reserve is insufficient for making good suc h losses.
For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the cash dividends of NT$43,777 thousand
and NT$30,356 thousand, respectively, distributed to the Company’s subsidiary were credited
to the Company’s capital reserve account in accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 30, “Accounting for Treasury Stock.”
(13) Earnings Distribution
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2002 may be appropriated or distributed in the
following sequences:
(a) Income tax obligation;
(b) Offsetting accumulated deficits, if any;
(c) Legal reserve at 10% of net income;
(d) Reserve or reverse for special reserve in compliance with the Company Law or the
Securities and Exchange Law;
(e) Remuneration for directors and supervisors at 0.5% of the remaining of (a) through (d);
(f) 10% to 15% of the remaining balance after the appropriations from (a) to (e) shall be
distributed as employees' bonus.
(g) The remaining balance after all the above appropriations and distributions shall be
shareholders’ dividends, and may be retained or distributed proportionally.
Shareholders’ dividends and employee bonuses may be distributed in form of shares or cash,
or both. According the Company’s articles, cash dividend to be distributed shall not be more
than 70% of total earnings to be distributed. While, remuneration for directors and supervisors
is limited to cash.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
In accordance with an amendment to the Company's articles of incorporation on May 16,
2003, the Company may appropriate or distribute proportionally the net income for the year
ended December 31, 2003 at following sequences:
(a) Income tax obligation;
(b) Offsetting accumulated deficits, if any;
(c) Legal reserve at 10% of net income;
(d) Reserve or reverse for special reserve in compliance with the Company Law or the
Securities and Exchange Law;
(e) Remuneration for directors and supervisors to a maximum of 0.5% of the remaining of (a)
through (d);
(f) 10% to 15% of the remaining balance after the appropriations from (a) to (e) shall be
distributed as employees' bonus. Employees serving the Company’s subsidiaries are
inclusive;
(g) The remaining balance after all the above appropriations and distributions shall be
shareholders’ dividends, and may be retained or distributed proportionally.
Dividend and employee bonuses may be distributed in form of shares or cash, or both.
According to the amended articles, cash dividend to be distributed might not be less than 10%
of total earnings to be distributed while this guideline may be adjusted according to the
Company’s judgment on current performance. Remuneration for directors and supervisors is
limited to cash.
The Company's articles of incorporation, further amended on June 9, 2004, provide that net
income for the year ended December 31, 2004 may be appropriated or distributed
proportionally at following sequences:
(a) Income tax obligation;
(b) Offsetting accumulated deficits, if any;
(b) Legal reserve at 10% of net income;
(d) Reserve or reverse for special reserve in compliance with the Company Law or the
Securities and Exchange Law;
(e) Remuneration for directors and supervisors to a maximum of 0.5% of the remaining of (a)
through (d), while remuneration for directors and supervisors’ services are limited to cash.
(f) The remaining balance after all the above appropriations and distributio ns, combining
with inappropriate earnings from prior years, shall be fully for shareholders’ dividends and
employee bonuses and may be retained or distributed proportionally. The portion of
employee bonus may be within 10% to 15% of total earnings resolved to distribute for
shareholders’ dividends and employee bonuses. Employee bonuses may be distributed in
form of shares or cash, or both. The qualification of employees entitled to the bonuses is at
the discretion of board meeting. Employees serving the Company’s subsidiaries are
inclusive.
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MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
Shareholders’ dividends may be distributed in form of shares or cash, or both. According to
the amended articles, cash dividend to be distributed might not be less than 10% of total
dividends to be distributed while this guideline may be adjusted according to the Company’s
judgment on current performance.
According to the regulations of Securities and Futures Bureau, Financial Supervisory
Commission, Executive Yuan, R.O.C, the Company is required to appropriate a special
reserve in the amount equal to the sum of debit elements under shareholders’ equity, such as
unrealized loss on long-term equity investment, negative cumulative translation adjustment, at
each year-end. Such special reserve is prohibited from being distributed. However, if any of
the debit elements is reversed, the special reserve in the amount equal to the reversal may be
released for earnings distribution.
(14) Treasury Stock
a. Following the resolution of board meeting on May 7, 2004, the Company bought its own
common shares back from open market. Treasury stock transactions for the year ended
December 31, 2004 were summarized as follows:
January 1, 2004
Purpose

Increase

Amounts
Shares

Decrease

Amounts
Shares

Amounts
Shares

( NT$’000)

December 31, 2004

( NT$’000)

Amounts
Shares

( NT$’000)

( NT$’000)

Protecting
shareholders’
equity

-

-

3,437,000

$935,705

3,437,000

$935,705

-

-

b. According to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Law, total shares bought back shall not
exceed 10% of the Company’s issued stocks. Total bought-back amounts shall not exceed
the sum of retained earnings and the realized capital reserve. The maximum shares that the
Company was allowed to buy back, calculated based on the financial statements as of
December 31, 2004, were 76,933,584 shares, and the maximum amount were
NT$34,915,916 thousand.
c. In compliance with the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Law, treasury stock shall not be
pledged, nor does it possess voting rights or the rights to receive dividends. The Company
shall cancel the treasury shares and file a change in registered paid- in capital to government
within 6 months. The Board had resolved to cancel the treasury stocks amounted to
3,437,000 shares and set the measurement date for reducing capital at September 29, 2004.
The cancellation of treasury stocks and reducing capital has been successfully filed to
government.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
d. The Company’s shares owned by its subsidiaries are also accounted for as treasury stock. These
shares were shown as follows:
January 1, 2004
Owner

Shares

Amount

Additions
Shares

(NT$’000)
MediaTek

5,122,656

$55,970

Capital Corp.

Shares

(NT$’000)
927,044

$-

6,049,700

Shares

Amount

Additions
Shares

(NT$’000)
MediaTek

Amount

Amount

Market Value

(NT$’000)

(NT$’000)

$55,970

$1,280,177

(Note)

January 1, 2003
Owner

December 31, 2004

3,794,560

$55,970

Capital Corp.

December 31, 2003

Amount

Shares

(NT$’000)
1,328,096

$-

5,122,656

Amount

Market Value

(NT$’000)

(NT$’000)

$55,970

$1,624,102

(Note)

(Note) Stock dividend received.

(15) Sales Revenues-Net
For the year ended December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004

2003

$40,982,258

$39,753,617

902,762

24,646

Subtotal

41,885,020

39,778,263

Less: Sales returns and sales discount

(1,830,718)

(1,713,844)

$40,054,302

$38,064,419

Revenues from sales of chipsets
Others

Net sales

Net sales from the Company’s first 10 significant customers totaled to NT$24,973,666
thousand and NT$24,974,056 thousand, respectively, representing 62.35% and 65.61% of the
Company’s net sales, for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
(16) Personnel, Deprecation and Amortization Expenses
For the year ended December 31,
2004

2003

Recorded
under cost
of goods
sold

Recorded
under
operating
expense

Total

Recorded
under cost
of goods
sold

$45,472

$1,031,909

$1,077,381

$43,817

$721,665

$765,482

Insurance expense

2,084

40,893

42,977

1,734

28,230

29,964

Pension expense

1,322

28,502

29,824

1,496

23,725

25,221

297

14,792

15,089

540

6,696

7,236

Total

$49,175

$1,116,096

$1,165,271

$47,587

$780,316

$827,903

Depreciation

$14,759

$143,767

$158,526

$26,461

$104,029

$130,490

Amortization

$150

$343,614

$343,764

$-

$179,996

$179,996

In thousand NTD
Personnel Expense
Salary expense

Other

Recorded
under
operating
expense

Total

(17) Income Tax
a. Pursuant to the “Statute for the Establishment and Administration of Science-Based
Industrial Park,” the Company was granted several periods of tax holidays with respect to
income derived from approved investments. The tax holidays expired on December 31,
2004.
b. Pursuant to the “Statute for Upgrading Industries,” the Company is entitled to an income
tax exemption period for five consecutive years on the income generated from qualifying
high technology activities. The Company has elected the tax exemption period to be from
January 1, 2002 through December 31, 2006 , January 1, 2003 through December 31, 2007
and January 1, 2004 through December 31, 2008.
c. The Company’s income tax returns for the years 1998 and 1999 have been assessed and
approved by the tax authorities in 2002 and 2003, respectively. The Company should pay
additional income tax of NT$26,947 thousand and NT$41,290 thousand for the years 1998
and 1999, respectively. The Company has recorded the additional assessed tax as expenses
and also has filed a reinvestigation to the tax authorities and filed an administrative appeal
to the Ministry of Finance (“MOF”). The administrative appeal was rejected in December
2004. The Company will file an administrative proceeding in future.

- 58 Global Reports LLC

English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
d. The Company’s income tax returns for the year 2000 have been assessed and approved by
the tax authorities in November 2004, and the Company was imposed to pay additional tax
of NT$142,862 thousand. The Company has recorded the additional tax as an expense and
filed an administrative appeal to the tax authorities in December 2004.
e. The Company’s available investment tax credits as of December 31, 2004 were as follows:
Nature of
Total credit amount Unused amount
Year
Year incurred
Expenditures
(NT$’000)
(NT$’000)
expired
2003
2004
(Estimate)
2004
(Estimate)

R&D

$923,466

297,850

2007

R&D

1,224,202

1,224,202

2008

1,712

1,712

2008

Human development

$2,149,380

$1,523,764

f.
(a) Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) (In thousand NTD)

As of December 31, 2004

Total deferred income tax liabilities

$(969)

Total deferred income tax assets

$1,538,425

Valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets
(b) Temporary differences that generated deferred income tax
assets (liabilities) (In thousand NTD)

$768,545

As of December 31, 2004
Amount

Deductible temporary difference-Recognition of
unrealized accrued expenses

$433,730

$5,354

Deductible temporary difference-Recognition of
unrealized allowance for inventory obsolescence

$486,351

$6,003

Deductible temporary difference-Unrealized allowance
for doubtful accounts recognition

$161,559

$1,994

Deductible temporary difference-Unrealized technology
license fee

$106,112

$1,310

Taxable temporary difference-Unrealized foreign
exchange gain

$(78,485)

Investment tax credits

$(969)
$1,523,764
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(c)

In thousand NTD

As of December 31, 2004

Deferred income tax assets-current
Valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets-current
Net deferred income tax assets-current
Deferred income tax liabilities-current
Net deferred income tax assets and liabilities-current

$1,538,425
(768,545)
769,880
(969)
$768,911

(d) Income tax payable and income tax expense are reconciled as follows:
For the year ended
In thousand NTD
December 31, 2004
Income tax payable
10% tax on undistributed earnings
Investment tax credits
Deferred income tax effects
Investment tax credits
Valuation allowance
Unrealized technology license fee
Others
Accruals for additional prior year income tax
Prior year income tax adjustment
Others
Income tax expense

$171,295
617,864
(394,579)
(769,503)
253,254
12,988
(2,917)
142,862
(14,671)
1,699
$18,292

(e) Integrated income tax information

As of December 31, 2004

Balance of the imputation credit account (ICA)
(In thousand NTD)
Expected creditable ratio

$547,753
2.96%(Note)

Note: The ratio was computed based on the amount of actual available shareholders’ tax
credits plus estimated income tax payable as of December 31, 2004.
(f) Information related to undistributed retained earnings
(In thousand NTD)
Prior to 1998
After 1998 (inclusive)

$31,363,021

Total

$31,363,021
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g.
(a) Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) (In thousand NTD)

As of December 31, 2003

Total deferred income tax liabilities

$(309)

Total deferred income tax assets

$778,333

Valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets

$515,291

(b) Temporary differences that generated deferred income tax
assets (liabilities) (In thousand NTD)

As of December 31, 2003
Amount

Deductible temporary difference-Recognition of
unrealized accrued expenses

$433,730

$6,126

$77,301

$1,092

Deductible temporary difference- Unrealized allowance
for doubtful accounts recognition

$180,967

$2,556

Deductible temporary difference-Unrealized technology
license fee

$1,012,216

$14,298

Deductible temporary difference-Recognition of
unrealized allowance for inventory obsolescence

Taxable temporary difference-Unrealized foreign
exchange gain
Investment tax credits
(c)

In thousand NTD

Net deferred income tax assets-current
Deferred income tax liabilities-current
Net deferred income tax assets and liabilities-current
In thousand NTD
Deferred income tax assets-noncurrent
Valuation allowance for deferred income tax
assets- noncurrent

$(309)

As of December 31, 2003
$776,834
(513,792)
263,042
(309)
$262,733
As of December 31, 2003
$1,499
(1,499)

Net deferred income tax assets- noncurrent

-

Deferred income tax liabilities-noncurrent

-

Net deferred income tax assets and liabilities- noncurrent
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(e) Income tax payable and income tax expense are reconciled as follows:
For the year ended
In thousand NTD
December 31, 2003
Income tax payable-current
10% tax on undistributed earnings
Investment tax credits
Deferred income tax effects
Investment tax credits
Valuation allowance
Unrealized accrued expense
Unrealized technology license fee
Others
Accruals for additional prior year income tax
Prior year income tax adjustment
Others
Income tax expense

(718,632)
389,767
119,398
(14,298)
8,984
41,290
(138,078)
3,270
$86,955

(f) Integrated income tax information

As of December 31, 2003

Balance of the imputation credit account (ICA)
(In thousand NTD)
Actual creditable ratio

$597,381
3.08%

(g) Information related to undistributed retained earnings
(In thousand NTD)
Prior to 1998
After 1998 (inclusive)

As of December 31, 2003
$27,113,421

Total

$27,113,421
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(18) Basic Earnings Per Share
The weighted average numbers of common shares outstanding were computed as follows: (in
shares)
For the year ended December 31,
Contents

2004

2003

Common shares outstanding, beginning
Stock dividend, August 25, 2003
Stock issuance for employees’ bonus, August 25, 2003
Purchase and disposal of treasury stock ( Remark 1)
Stock dividend, August 5, 2004
Stock issuance for employees’ bonus, August 5, 2004

641,547,256
(2,018,628)
115,735,176
15,782,096

460,465,370
161,162,879
19,919,007
115,478,506
15,747,069

Subtotal
Less: the Company’s shares owned by its subsidiary
(Remark 2)

771,045,900
(6,176,116)

772,772,831
(6,176,116)

Weighted average shares outstanding, ending

764,869,784

766,596,715

Remark 1: Computed in a weighted-average basis.
Remark 2: Adjusted retroactively by stock dividends and computed in a weighted-average
basis.
For the year ended December 31, 2004,
(Numerator) Income (NT$’000)
(Denominator)
Before tax
After tax
Shares
$14,341,277

$14,322,985

764,869,784

For the year ended December 31, 2003,
(Numerator) Income (NT$’000)
(Denominator)
Before tax
After tax
Shares
$16,609,044

$16,522,089

766,596,715

Earnings per share (NT$)
Before tax
$18.75

After tax
$18.73

Earnings per share (NT$)
Before tax
$21.67

After tax
$21.55

The Pro-Forma earnings per share were computed as follows assuming that the Company’s shares
owned by its subsidiary were not treated as treasury stock:
For the year ended December 31, 2004,
(Numerator) Income (NT$’000)
Earnings per share (NT$)
(Denominator)
Before tax
$14,341,277

After tax

Shares

$14,322,985

771,045,900
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For the year ended December 31, 2003,
(Numerator) Income (NT$’000)
(Denominator)
Before tax
After tax
Shares
$16,609,044

$16,522,089

772,772,831

Earnings per share (NT$)
Before tax

After tax

$21.49

5. Related Party Transactions
(1) Related Parties and Relations
Related parties

$21.38

Relations

United Microelectronics Corp. (“UMC”)
King Yuan Electronics Co., Ltd.
(“KING YUAN”)
PixArt Imaging Inc. (“PII”)
Alpha Imaging Technology Corporation (“AIT”)

The supervisor of the Company
The chairmen of the Company and KING
YUAN are close relatives.
Same person represents the chairman of
both companies’ boards.
Affiliated company

ALi Corporation (“ALi”)
Wiseali Technology Inc. (“Wiseali”)
UMC Japan (“UMCJ”)
MediaTek Limited (“MTL”)
CrystalMedia Technology, Inc. (“CrystalMedia”)
Wireless ICs, Inc. (“Wireless”)
MediaTek Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“MSL”)

Equity invetee
Equity invetee
Affiliated company of UMC
Affiliated company
Affiliated company
Affiliated company
Affiliated company

(2) Major Transactions with related partie s
a. Purchases
For the year ended December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004
Amount

2003
% of total
purchase

Amount

% of total
purchase

UMC
UMCJ

$7,690,155
799,601

56.03
5.83

$8,185,626
1,099,645

73.04
9.81

Total

$8,489,756

61.86

$9,285,271

82.85

Prices for purchase from related parties are not comparable because the manufacturing process
and product specification are significantly different. Payment terms to UMC and UMCJ were
end-of-month 45 to 60 days, which were similar those to other suppliers.

- 64 Global Reports LLC

English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
b. Sales
For the year ended December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004
Amount

2003
% of net
sales

Amount

% of net
sales

MTL
AIT

$47,461
-

0.12
-

$361,659
7,106

0.95
0.02

Total

$47,461

0.12

$368,765

0.97

Sales prices to the related parties were similar to those to third-party customers while trade
credit terms were end-of- month 45 to 60 days. While, trade credit terms for third-party
customers are the same or in advanced receipts.
c. The Company paid NT$912,641 thousand and NT$647,681 thousand to KING YUAN for
the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, for its various IC testing and
experimental services. On the other hand, the Company’s revenue from providing
manufacturing technology services to KING YUAN amounted to NT$7,539 thousand for
the year ended December 31, 2003.
d. The Company sold certain machinery to KING YAUN during April 2003 at a price of
NT$7,667 thousand, resulting in a gain on disposal of machinery of NT$2,950 thousand.
e. The Company paid NT$201,482 thousand and NT$15,654 thousand commission to MTL
for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
f. During August 2003, the Company has entered into technology transfer agreeme nts with
CystalMedia and Wireless in amount of US$4,250 thousand and US$5,100 thousand,
respectively. The Company has fully paid and recorded it under the caption of intangible
assets.
g. The Company has entered into a facility lease agreement with PII during the year ended
December 31, 2001. In August 2002, the Company exercised purchase rights for the
underlying facility, as permitted by the agreement and approved by HSIP. The title of
leased facility has been transferred to the Company in March 2003 and the Company
recorded the facility under the caption of building and facility. In January 2003, the
Company has entered into another facility purchase agreement with PII in amount of
NT$31,270 thousand. The Company has fully paid the price.
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h. The Company has entered into a manufacturing contract with UMC. Under the contract, the
Company pledged a time deposit of NT$864,000 thousand to UMC as a production deposit.
On August 2003, the time deposit was released from pledge.
i. The Company purchased R&D equipment from ALi in amount of NT$3,592 thousand
during the year ended December 31, 2004.
j. The Company purchased certain patents and technical rights from ALi totally at the price
of NT$274,381 thousand. The Company has fully paid the price during the year ended
December 31, 2004. The title of NT$168,670 thousand of the underlying patents and
technical rights have been transferred to the Company during the year ended December 31,
2004 and was recorded under the caption of patents and technical rights. As of December
31, 2004, the remaining balance of NT$105,771 thousand of the patents and technical
rights has not yet been transferred to the Company, but recorded under the caption of
prepayments for patents and technical rights.
k. The Company bought 8,751,000 shares of Wiseali’s common stock from ALi totally at
the price of NT$253,779 thousand in November 2004.
l. The Company purchased R&D equipment and miscellaneous supplies from Wiseali at
prices of NT$8,862 thousand and NT$1,227 thousand, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2004. As of December 31, 2004, the Company has fully paid the prices.
m.The Company has paid NT$8,284 thousand on behalf of MSL for certain operating expense.
As of December 31, 2004, the Company did not collect it from MSL yet.
n. The Company has provided certain technology license and services to AIT in amount of
NT$11,547 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2004.
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(3) Receivables and payables resulting from the above transactions:
a. Receivables from related parties
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004
Amount

2003
%

MTL
MSL
AIT

$885
8,284
263

0.03
0.24
-

Subtotal
Less: Allowance for doubtful
accounts

9,432
-

0.27
-

$9,432

0.27

Net

Amount

%

$12,566
236

0.34
0.01

12,802
(870)

0.35
(0.03)

$11,932

0.32

The above receivable s from related parties were accounted for under the caption of
accounts receivable because of its nature and immateriality.
b. Payables to related parties
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD
UMC
UMCJ
KING YUAN
Total

2004

2003

Amount

%

Amount

%

$790,985
86,712
125,415

30.17
3.31
4.78

$1,716,616
71,185
140,379

41.05
1.70
3.36

$1,003,112

38.26

$1,928,180

46.11

6. Assets Pledged As Collateral
(1) As of December 31, 2004
In thousand NTD
Net book value Secured financial institutions Contents (Purpose)
Restricted deposits-current
$42,000
Farmers Bank of China
Long-term debt
Restricted deposits-current
39,770
Pixtel
Contract executed
deposits
Total
$81,770
(2) As of December 31, 2003
In thousand NTD
Net book value Secured financial institutions Contents (Purpose)
Restricted deposits-current
$63,000
Farmers Bank of China
Long-term debt
Restricted deposits-current
20,387
Tiva
Contract executed
deposits
Total

$83,387
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7. Commitments and Contingencies
(1) Law suits
a. The Company acquired its manufacturing technology of CD-ROM control chips mainly
from UMC. UMC, however, was involved in certain legal action with OAK, an U.S.
company, for patents of such technology. In October 1997, OAK filed a complaint with the
United States Northern District Court of California alleged that UMC breached a prior
Settlement Agreement and later sought against the Company and UMC for the damages,
injunctive and other relief. In April 1998, OAK filed a complaint with the International
Trade Commission (“ITC ”) against the Company and UMC for the infringement of the
patents stated above and violation of Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930. In May 2001,
the Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit (“CAFC”) affirmed that there was no violation
of Section 337. OAK did not appeal to Supreme Court of the United States regarding the
CAFC’s decision within the legal period. In August 2003, Zoran Corporation acquired
OAK and succeeded to OAK’s position in this litigation. As a result, the only dispute for
certain damages between the Company and Zoran that remains pending is that in Northern
District Court of California. It is probable that the Company would suffer no more
significant litigation loss from the underlying dispute. Accordingly, the Company has made
a reversal of related loyalty fee accrual amounted to NT$1,557,540 thousand, recorded as
non-operating income for the year ended December 31, 2003. While, the remaining balance
of related royalty fee accrual amounted to NT$419,056 thousand was still recorded as
accrued expenses as of December 31, 2004.
b. On March 10, 2004, Zoran and OAK filed a complaint with the U.S. ITC (“the ITC
Complaint”) naming MediaTek as a proposed respondent. By the ITC Complaint, Zoran
and OAK alleged that the Company has engaged in unfair trade practices in violation of
Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930. They alleged that certain of the Company’s chipsets
infringed their own patents (U.S. Patent No.6466736, No.6584527 and No.6546440).
Around March 18, 2004, Zoran and OAK also filed a complaint against the Company with
the U.S. District Court for the Central District of California based on the same patents and
the same allegations of infringement as were the subject of the ITC Complaint. The District
Court action has been transferred to the District Court for the Northern District of
California. The Company has engaged U.S. attorneys to defend both cases vigorously.

- 68 Global Reports LLC

English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
c. On July 23, 2004, the Company filed a complaint against Zoran and OAK with the U.S.
ITC and the District Court for the District of Delaware alleging patent infringement. The
Company alleged that optical disc drive controller products of Zoran and OAK infringe the
Company’s patents (U.S Patent No.6229773 and No.5970031). The Company further
requested the ITC to issue an order to bar any importation of Zoran and OAK’s products
infringing MediaTek’s U.S Patents. The Company also requested that the Court stops
Zoran and OAK to further infringe the Company’s patents and that Zoran and OAK shall
compensate the Company’s losses by the amount tripling of the losses. The Company
further amended the complaint to add Sunext Technology Co., Ltd. (“Sunex”) as a
co-defendant. In addition to the patents allegedly infringed in the original complaint, the
Company further alleged that optical disc drive products of Zoran, OAK, and Sunext
infringe another MediaTek’s patent (U.S Patent No 6170043) too. The ITC accepted the
company’s Amendment to the complaint on October 7, 2004.
d. The Company is the defendant in a lawsuit brought by mo tion picture studios, including
Metro-Goldwyn-Mayer Studios Inc., Paramount Pictures Corporation, Sony Pictures
Entertainment Inc., Twentieth Century Fox Film Corporation, Universal City Studios LLLP,
The Walt Disney Company and Warner Bros. Entertainment Inc. The lawsuit was filed on
or about August 23, 2004, with the Los Angeles Superior Court of the State of California.
Plaintiffs have alleged that the Company breached its agreement (the license agreement
between MediaTek and the DVD Copy Control Association, the licensor of a DVD
encryption system called the “Content Scramble System,” or “CSS”) by selling
descrambler chips to entities that are not licensed by CSS. The Company has engaged U.S.
attorneys to defend this District Court case vigorously.
e. In June 2002, the Company filed a complaint with the Northern District of California
against VIA Technologies, Inc., (“VIA”) and AOpen, Inc. (“AOpen”), alleging that VIA
and AOpen are infringing two patents related to optical disc drivers. In September 2003,
the District Court granted the Company’s motion for preliminary injunction against VIA
and AOpen. The Company has also named the U.S. subsidiaries of VIA and Aopen, as well
as VIA Optical Solution, Inc. (“ VIA Optical ”), as co-defendants.
f. In June 2003,VIA filed a complaint against the Company with the Northern District of
California, alleging that the Company infringes its own patent (U.S. Patent No. 6459665).
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g. In June and July 2003, VIA filed a complaint against the Company the Hsinchu District
Court of Taiwan, alleging that the Company infringed its own patent (Taiwan Patent No.
163889). VIA’s compliant alleged that the Company’s DVD-ROM and COMBI chipsets
infringed the patent.
h. The Company, VIA and its subsidiary-VIA Optical entered into a settlement agreement that
resolved all litigations about the patents in the U.S. and Taiwan on August 3, 2004.
According to the settlement agreement, all parties shall dismiss all their complaints in all
jurisdictions. Under this settlement agreement, the Company has licensed VIA Optical
certain copyrights and trade secrets and VIA Optical shall pay the Company a fee of US$25
million for usage of the rights upon the agreement made effected and shall annually pay
US$5 million during the following 5 years.
i. The Company and its subsidiary-MediaTek (ShenZhen) Inc. filed a complaint with the
ShenZhen Intermediate People’s Court against Zoran and Zoran’s Shenzhen representative
office, alleging that they have infringed the Company’s patent (PRC Patent No.
97120448.9). The Company is seeking court orders to prohibit Zoran from dealing in any
IC products that infringe the subject patent, monetary damages and the cessation of sale,
importation and exportation of Zoran’s infringing products in/from China.
(2) Commitments
a. In 2002, ESS Technology, Inc. (“ESS”) filed a complaint with the Northern District of
California, against the Company, alleging that the Company infringed ESS copyrights in
firmware used with ESS chipsets in DVD players. In June 2003, ESS and the Company
entered into a settlement agreement resolving all of the issues in dispute between two
parties. Under this settlement agreement, ESS has licensed the Company certain copyrights
and the Company should pay ESS a fee of US$45 million for usage of the rights in the past.
The Company recorded such amount as R&D expenses. Also, the settlement agreement
provides that the Company should pay quarterly royalties based on the sales volume of the
DVD player chipsets within 2 years, starting from third quarter of the year 2003. The
maximum royalties are no more than US$45 million.
b. The Company has entered into an assets purchasing agreement with Pixtel
Communications, Inc. (“Pixtel”) in May 2004. The Company then acquired Pixtel’s
wireless communication related software technology and patents in amount of US$8,305
thousand. As of December 31, 2004, the Company has paid US$7,059 thousand, equivalent
to NT$236,125 thousand, for this agreement and recorded it as R&D expenses. Also, the
Company has deposited the remaining balance of US$1,246 thousand, equivalent to
NT$39,770 thousand, in an escrow account and recorded it as restricted deposits-current.
- 70 Global Reports LLC

English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
c. The Company has entered into several contracts in total of NT$3,241,269 thousand (sale
tax excluded) for constructing its headquarter tower. As of December 31, 2004, the
Company has paid out NT$941,243 thousand. The other amount of NT$2,300,026
thousand remained an irrevocable commitment.
d. As of December 31, 2004, totaling US$31,377 thousand of the Company’s other significant
contracts remained unpaid.
g. The Company has entered certain lease agreements for land with the Administrative
Bureau of HSIP for its need of operation. Related rent incurred in the future would be as
follows:
Lease Period

Amount

2005.01.01~2005.12.31
2006.01.01~2006.12.31
2007.01.01~2007.12.31
2008.01.01-2008.12.31
2009.01.01~2023.12.31

$25,474
25,474
25,474
24,406
343,084

Total

$443,912

8. Significant Casualty Loss
None

9. Significant Subsequent Events
None
10. Others
(1) Financial Instruments
a. Derivative Financial Instruments
(i) Contract Amount or Nominal Amount and Credit Risk
? . As of December 31, 2004,
Financial

Contract amount
Type

Maturity

Instruments
Forward exchange

(US$’000 )
Sell USD

January 2005~ February 2005

-Hedging
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? . As of December 31, 2003,
Financial

Contract amount
Type

Maturity

Instruments
Forward exchange
-Hedging

Credit
Exercise rate

(US$’000 )
Sell USD

January 2004~ February 2004

Purchase USD

January 2004

risk

$105,000 33.975~34.235
$1,000

34.235

-

Credit risk relates to the extent to which failures by counter parties to discharge their
obligations could reduce the amount of future cash flows from financial assets on hand as
of the balance sheet date. The Company minimizes exposure to credit risks by only
dealing with reputable banks.
(ii) Price risk
The Company considers that the price risk related to the hedge transactions is minimal as
gains or losses from contracts for hedging purposes are likely to be offset by gains or losses
from the underlying assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.
(iii) Liquidity risks
The exchange rate of the forward exchange contracts are fixed, the Company anticipate that
they have enough USD assets, no significant additional cash requirement is anticipated, and
therefore, cash flow risk is minimal.
(iv) Types of derivative financial instruments, purpose of holding the derivative financial
instruments and the strategy for achieving the hedging purpose:
The Company’s derivative financial instruments are not held for trading purpose and held for
decreasing cost of hedging. The purpose of holding forward exchange contracts is to hedge
exchange rate fluctuation risk resulting from assets, liabilities or commitments denominated
in foreign currency. The Company’s hedging strategy is to avoid majority of market price
risk. Derivative financial instruments selected for hedging are highly anti-co-related with the
fluctuatio n of the fair value of derivatives hedged. Derivatives are evaluated periodically.
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(v) Presentation of derivative financial instruments
Forward exchange contracts receivable and payable are reported under current assets or
liability on a net basis. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, details were as follows:
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD
Forward contract receivable
Forward contract payable
Discount

2004
$4,221,450
(4,149,210)
14,196

Forward exchange contracts receivable - net

$86,436

2003
$3,574,425
(3,567,690)
1,518
$8,253

The forward exchange contracts receivable- net is classified under the caption of others
receivable.
Foreign exchange gain (loss) incurred from the derivatives for the years ended December 31,
2004 and 2003 amounted to NT$148,914 thousand and NT$13,399 thousand, respectively.
b. Disclosures of risks for short-term investments in credit- linked notes and structured deposits
(i) Contract amount (In thousand USD)
As of December 31,
Underlying investments

2004

POU CHEN Credit-linked deposit
(owned by MTK)
NanYa Plastics Credit- linked deposit
(owned by Core Tech Resources Inc.)
Mega Fin Hold
(owned by Core Tech Resources Inc.)
Quanta Computer
(owned by Core Tech Resources Inc.)
Delta Electronic Inc. Credit- linked deposit
(owned by Gaintech Co. Limited)

2003

-

$4,000

$1,000

-

$2,450

-

$1,500

-

$5,000

-

(ii) Credit risk
Default by the issuers of underlying securities may reduce the value of credit-linked
deposits to zero. The Company minimizes the credit risk by selecting counter parties who
are reputable and in good financial standing.
(iii) Liquidity risk
The Company is unable to have the credit-linked investments redeemed or called before
maturity, which being the liquidity risk. In minimizing suc h risk, the Company only
invests in securities whose maturities are within a year.
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(iv) Market risk
There is no market risk for the underlying investment except for the fluctuations in the
exchange rate of US Dollar to NT Dollar.
(v) Cash flow risk
No cash flow risk was involved as the entire amounts of credit- liked investments have
been fully paid.
c. Fair value of financial instruments
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004
Carrying
value

2003
Fair value

Carrying
value

Fair value

Non-derivative
Assets
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted
deposits
Short-term investments
Receivables
Other receivables
(exclud ing forward exchange
contracts receivable -net)
Long-term investments
- Those with market value
- Those without market value
Long-term bond investments
- Those without market value
Refundable deposit
Liabilities
Payables
(including due to related parties)
Income taxes payable
Accrued expenses
Payables to equipment suppliers
Long-term debts
(including current portion)
Derivatives
Forward exchange contracts- hedging

$22,851,917
$869,901
$3,488,579
$183,898

$635,740
$11,348,612

$870,071
$3,488,579
$183,898

$21,686,494

$1,086,918
$3,706,372
$232,275

$1,090,015
$3,706,372
$232,275

$1,144,820
- $11,459,763

-

$67,576
$8,385

$8,385

$2,621,775

$2,621,775

$559,410
$1,393,070
$140,660
$10,643

$86,436
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$22,851,917 $21,686,494

$5,490

$5,490

$4,181,361

$4,181,361

$559,410
$1,393,070
$140,660
$10,643

$312,827
$1,326,411
$28,182

$312,827
$1,326,411
$28,182

$74,485

$8,253

$7,262

English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of derivative financial
instruments are as follows:
(i) The fair value of the Company’s short-term financial instruments is based on the
carrying value of those instruments at reporting date due to the short maturity of those
instruments. The method is applied to cash and cash equivalents, receivables, other
receivables, accrued expenses, payables, payables to equipment suppliers, and income
taxes payable.
(? ) The fair value of the Company’s short-term investments and long-term investments is
based on market prices at the reporting date if market prices are available. The fair value
of the Company’s long-term investments is based on relevant financial or any other
information if market prices are not available.
(? ) The fair value of the Company’s refundable deposits and restricted deposits is based on
the book value at the reporting date because the estimated future cash receipts were
similar to the book value.
(? ) The fair value of long-term debts is estimated using the discounted cash flow method
based on the Company’s borrowing rates for similar types of borrowings.
(? ) The fair value of derivative financial instruments (normally including unrealized gains
or losses from outstanding forward exchange contracts) is the amount that the Company
is entitled to receive or obligated to pay, assuming the Company terminated contracts at
reporting date.
(2) Others
Certain accounts in the financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2003 have
been reclassified to conform to the presentation of the current period.
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MEDIATEK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
11. Segment Information
(1) Major Customers
Sales to customers representing over 10% of the Company’s net sales were as follows:
For the year ended December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004

2003

Customers

Amounts

%

Amounts

%

A

$7,978,784

19.92%

$5,821,199

15.29%

(2) Export Sales
The Company’s export sales totaled NT$33,012,530 thousand and NT$33,404,609 thousand
for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, representing 82.42% and
87.75% of the Company’s net sales for corresponding years.
(3) Geographic data
The Company has no significant foreign operation.
(4) Industry data
The Company operates predominantly in one industry segment, which being the designing,
manufacturing, and supply of integrated circuit chips and decoders.
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7. Consolidated Financial Statements & CPAs’ Audit Report:
Mediatek Inc. & Its Subsidiaries
CPAs’ Audit Report
We have examined the accompanying balance sheet of Mediatek Inc. and its Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003 and related income statement, the change in
shareholders' equity and cash flow statement for the periods starting from January 1 until December
31, 2004 and January 1 until December 31, 2003. The management of the Company is responsible
for preparing for the aforementioned financial statements while we are responsible for offering
opinions on the aforementioned financial statements.
Our examinations were duly made in accordance with the “Rules Governing Certification of
Financial Statements by a Certified Public Accountant” and Generally Accepted Auditing Principles
to check for the presence of any major misrepresentation of the financial statements. Our auditing
includes random sample check of the amounts shown on the financial statements and the disclosed
evidence. In turn, we evaluated the accounting principles and major accounting estimation
adopted by the management in preparing for the financial statements to evaluate the overall
expression of the financial statements. We believe such auditing would provide reasonable
grounds on the opinions provided.
In our opinions, the major issues of the financial statements mentioned in Paragraph I prove to have
been worked out in accordance with “Regulations Governing Securities Issuers' Financial
Statements” and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, presenting fairly the financial position
of Mediatek Inc. and its Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003 and the
results of its operations and its cash flow for the periods starting from January 1 until December 31,
2004 and from January 1 until December 31, 2003.
To:

Mediatek Inc.
Diwan Ernst & Young
Approval Code by the Securities and Futures
Commission, Ministry of Finance for Financial
Statements Certification:
(90)-Tai-Tsai-Cheng-(VI)-100690
(91)-Tai-Tsai-Cheng-(VI)-144183
Hui-hsin Yeh

CPA:
Ting-ming Chang

February 2, 2005
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MEDIATEK INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003

.
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English Translation of a Report Originally Issued in Chinese
Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
MediaTek Inc.
We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of MediaTek Inc. and subsidiaries as of December
31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders'
equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company and subsidiaries’ management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the “Rules Governing Auditing and
Certification of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants” and generally
accepted auditing standards in the Republic of China ( R.O.C. ). These standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of MediaTek Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004
and 2003, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles in the R.O.C.

Diwan, Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
February 2, 2005
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

Notice to Readers
The reader is advised that these financial statements have been prepared originally in Chinese. In the event of a conflict
between these financial statements and the original Chinese version or difference in interpretation between the two
versions, the Chinese language financial statements shall prevail.
The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position and results of operations and
cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the R.O.C and not those of any
other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such financial statements are those generally accepted
and applied in the R.O.C.
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English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
MEDIATEK INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2004 and 2003
(Amounts in thousand New Taiwan dollars)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments(net)
Accounts receivable(net)
Receivables from related parties
Other receivables
Inventories(net)
Prepayments and other current assets
Deferred income tax assets-current(net)
Restricted deposits-current
Total current assets
Long-term investments
Long-term equity investments
Accounted for under equity method
Accounted for under cost method
Long-term bond investments
Total long-term investments
Property, plant and equipment
Buildings and facilities
Machinery and equipment
Research and development equipment
Miscellaneous equipment
Total cost
Less : Accumulated depreciation
Add : Construction in progress
Prepayments for equipment
Property, plant and equipment(net)
Intangible assets
Software
Patents and IPs
Prepayments for patents and technical rights
Total intangible assets

Other assets
Refundable deposits
Deferred expenses
Consolidated debits
Total other assets

Total assets

2004

Note
3, 5(1)
3, 5(2)
3, 5(3)
6(3)
5(4), 10
5(5)

$

3, 5(19)
7, 8

2003

33,117,199 $
1,507,725
3,545,597
36,882
285,384
3,269,229
578,069
768,911
112,563
43,221,559

3, 5(6)

32,121,718
1,711,698
3,726,335
260,971
2,092,557
145,833
262,733
117,974
40,439,819

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITIES Note
Current liabilities
Notes and accounts payable
6(3)
Payables to related parties
3, 5(19)
Income tax payable
8
Accrued expenses
Payables to equipment suppliers
Long-term debts-current portion
5(8)
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Long-term debts, less current portion
635,795
320,952
67,576
1,024,323

3, 5(7), 6

739,276
82,914
655,026
95,365
1,572,581
(413,538)
943,865
19,454
2,122,362

3
3, 6
3, 6

215,153
917,415
105,711
1,238,279

12,568
365
189,610
202,543

3

$

47,809,066 $

340,599
- Other liabilities
340,599 Accrued pension liabilities
Minority interest
Total other liabilities
734,712
Total liabilities
103,334
466,837
84,362
1,389,245 Shareholders' equities
(318,235) Capital
279
Common stock
27,167 Capital reserve
1,098,456
Additional paid-in capital
Treasury stock transaction
Donated assets
174,962
Long-term investment transaction
Total capital reserve
- Retained earnings
174,962
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Undistributed earnings
Cumulative translation adjustments
7,733 Treasury stock-cost
584
Total shareholders' equities
20,597
28,914

42,082,750 Total liabilities and shareholders' equities

The accompanying notes are an integral part to these financial statements.
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2004
$

5(8)

3, 5(9)

2003
1,661,040 $
1,005,529
568,704
1,425,300
144,488
10,643
126,194
4,941,898

2,274,919
1,928,778
325,524
1,337,212
17,539
53,032
5,937,004

-

10,643

74,064
154,824
228,888
5,170,786

54,319
45,710
100,029
6,047,676

7,693,359

6,415,473

69,689
84,975
1,260
155,924

70,000
41,198
1,260
3,448
115,906

5(10)
5(12)

5(11)
5(13)
5(13)
3
3, 5(14)

4,147,524
49,071
31,363,021
(714,649)
(55,970)
42,638,280

$

47,809,066

2,495,315
27,113,421
(49,071)
(55,970)
36,035,074

$

42,082,750

English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
MEDIATEK INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003
(Amounts in thousand New Taiwan dollars, except earnings per share)
Note
Gross sales
Less : Sales returns and discounts
Net sales
Cost of goods sold
Gross profits
Operating expenses
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Non-operating income
Interest income
Gain on disposal of short-term investments
Gain on market price recovery of short-term investments
Reversal of bad debts
Reversal of accrued license fee
Others
Total non-operating income
Non-operating expenses
Interest expense
Loss on decline in market value of short-term investments
Net loss from equity investments
Permanent loss on long-term investments
Foreign exchange loss(net)
Inventory loss provision
Others
Total non-operating expenses
Income before income tax
Income tax expense
Minority interest in (income)loss and (income)loss from
pre-acquisition of the subsidiaries
Net income
Earnings Per Share (in New Taiwan dollars)
Income before income tax
Income tax espense
Minority interest in (income)loss and (income)loss from
pre-acquisition of the subsidiaries
Net income

$
3, 5(17), 6
5(18)

2004
42,383,416 $
(1,836,204)
40,547,212
(20,631,701)
19,915,511

3, 5(18), 6
(250,942)
(1,085,465)
(3,644,503)
(4,980,910)
14,934,601

(247,758)
(558,415)
(3,930,933)
(4,737,106)
14,940,287

351,817
8,706
6,334
21,804
26,336
414,997

3
3
3
8(1)

306,831
91,125
165
1,557,540
67,463
2,023,124

(63)
(358,848)
(13,785)
(119,692)
(411,850)
(9,462)
(913,700)
14,435,898
(27,394)
(85,519)

3
3, 5(6)
3, 5(6)
3
3, 5(5)

3, 5(19)

$

14,322,985

(44)
(13,483)
(62,492)
(142,189)
(52,762)
(66,833)
(6,495)
(344,298)
16,619,113
(101,705)
4,681
$

16,522,089

3, 5(16)
$

18.87 $
(0.03)
(0.11)

21.68
(0.13)
-

$

18.73 $

21.55

The accompanying notes are an integral part to these financial statements.
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2003
39,809,564
(1,713,966)
38,095,598
(18,418,205)
19,677,393

English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
MEDIATEK INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITIES
For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003
(Amounts in thousand New Taiwan dollars)

Balance as of January1, 2003

$

Common

Capital

Legal

Special

Undistributed

stock

reserve

reserve

reserve

earnings

4,604,654 $

82,102 $

Cumulative
translation
adjustments

1,271,971 $

- $

17,819,560 $

Treasury

Total

stock

125,504 $

(55,970) $

23,847,821

Appropriation and distribution of 2002 earnings:
Legal reserve

-

-

1,223,344

-

(1,223,344)

-

-

Directors' and supervisors' remuneration

-

-

-

-

(55,050)

-

-

(55,050)

199,190

-

-

-

(654,482)

-

-

(455,292)

1,611,629

-

-

-

(5,295,352)

-

-

(3,683,723)

-

-

-

-

16,522,089

-

-

16,522,089

Capitalization of employees' bonus
Stock dividends
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2003
The effects of subsidiaries' shareholding of the Company's stock

-

-

30,356

-

-

-

-

-

30,356

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,448

-

-

-

-

-

3,448

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(174,575)

6,415,473

115,906

2,495,315

-

27,113,421

(49,071)

Legal reserve

-

-

1,652,209

-

(1,652,209)

-

-

-

Special reserve

-

-

-

49,071

(49,071)

-

-

-

recorded as treasury stock
The effects of change in long-term equity investment due to change in
investment percentage
Cumulative translation adjustments
Balance as of December 31, 2003

(55,970)

(174,575)
36,035,074

Appropriation and distribution of 2003 earnings:

Directors' and supervisors' remuneration
Capitalization of employees' bonus
Stock dividends
Purchase of treasury stock

-

-

-

(44,462)

-

-

(44,462)

-

-

-

(816,711)

-

-

(659,240)

1,154,785

-

-

-

(6,607,937)

-

-

(5,453,152)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Cancellation of treasury stock

(34,370)

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2004
The effects of subsidiaries shareholding of the Company's stock
recorded as treasury stock
The effects of change in long-term equity investment due to change in

$

(935,705)

(935,705)

-

935,705

-

-

-

14,322,985

-

43,777

-

-

-

-

-

43,777

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(5,419)

-

-

-

(665,578)

7,693,359 $

(3,448)
155,924 $
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(901,024)

4,147,524 $

49,071 $

14,322,985

-

-

-

Cumulative translation adjustments

(311)

-

-

-

investment percentage
Balance as of December 31, 2004

157,471

(1,971)
31,363,021 $

(665,578)
(714,649) $

(55,970) $

42,638,280

English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
MEDIATEK INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003
(Amounts in thousand New Taiwan dollars)
2004
Cash flows from operating activities :
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Minority interest in income (loss)

$

Depreciation
Amortization
Reversal of bad debt
(Reversal) Loss on decline in market value of short-term investments
Gain on disposal of short-term investments
Inventory loss provision
Net loss from equity investments
Permanent loss on long-term investments
Loss (Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities
Notes and accounts receivable
Receivables to related parties
Inventories
Net changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
Others receivable
Prepayments and other current assets
Notes payable and accounts payable
Payables to related parties
Income taxes payable
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities
Accrued pension liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities :
Decrease in restricted deposits
Decrease in short-term investments
Increase in long-term investments
Increase in consolidated debits
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Increase in intangible assets
Increase in deferred expenses
Increase in refundable deposits
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities :
Decrease in long-term debts
Purchase of treasury stock

2003
14,322,985

Cash dividends distributed to shares hold by subsidiaries
Increase (decrease) in minority interest
Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

(4,681)
136,873
143,580
(165)
13,483
(91,125)
66,833
62,492
142,189
(7,552)

201,105
(36,882)
(1,588,522)
(506,178)
(24,413)
(432,236)
(613,879)
(923,249)
243,180
88,088
73,162
19,745
12,092,408

64,932
(492,138)
(212,845)
(83,028)
141,585
869,460
(51,360)
(111,740)
(1,273,364)
5,487
18,077
15,859,082

5,411
219,480
(1,062,164)
(176,009)
(1,087,115)
11,327
(1,297,123)
(138)
(4,835)
(3,391,166)

809,026
3,874,145
(53,124)
(1,910)
(336,649)
17,247
(102,498)
(621)
(3,800)
4,201,816

(17,539)

(16,189)
-

(5,453,152)
(44,462)
(659,240)

(3,683,723)
(55,050)
(455,292)

43,777
18,176
(7,048,145)

30,356
(2,792)
(4,182,690)
(170,492)

(657,616)

$

995,481
32,121,718
33,117,199

$

15,707,716
16,414,002
32,121,718

$

277,080

$

425,161

$

63

$

44

$

1,231,603 $
(144,488)
1,087,115 $

336,649
336,649

$
$
$

1,312,256 $
10,643 $
(935,705) $

1,810,819
17,539

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information :
Income tax paid during the year
Interest paid during the year
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Less:increase in payables to equipment suppliers

$

Cash paid for the purchase of property, plant and equipment
Non-cash activities :
Stock dividends and employee bonus capitalized
Long-term debts-current portion
Cancellation of treasury stock

The accompanying notes are an integral part to these financial statements.
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16,522,089

85,519
181,322
247,516
(21,804)
(6,334)
(8,706)
411,850
358,848
13,785
7,506

(935,705)

Cash dividends
Directors' and supervisors' remuneration
Employee bonus
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MEDIATEK INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in Thousand of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specified Otherwise)

1. Organization and Operation
MediaTek Inc. (the "Company") was incorporated in the Hsinchu Science- Based Industrial Park
("HSIP"), Taiwan on May 28, 1997. The Company operates principally as a designer,
manufacturer and supplier of integrate-circuit chips and decoders of optical storage.
As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the employees of the Company and subsidiaries totaled 1,235
and 771, respectively.
2. Principles of Consolidation
(1) Parent company: Mediate Inc. (the "Company")
(2) The following diagram presents information regarding the relationship and ownership
percentage s among Mediatek Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries of ownership as of
December 31, 2004:
Mediatek Inc.

Wiseali
Technology Inc.
99.00%

Wireless ICs,

100%

Hsu-Ta Investment Ltd.

Hsu-Kang

Ltd.

investment Ltd.

100%

100%

100%

MediaTek Capital

Core Tech

Core Tech

Core Tech

Limited

Corp.

Resources Inc.

Resources Inc.

Resources Inc.

100%

100%

34.96%

32.52%

32.52%

Limited
100%

MediaTek

Alpha Imaging

Pixtel Media

Singapore Pte.

Technology

Technology

Technology, Inc.

Ltd.

Corp.

Private Ltd.

100%

100%

52.66%

99.99%

CrystalMedia

MediaTek Inc. China

MediaTek (ShenZhen) Inc.

100%

100%
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Hsu-Chia Investment

Gaintech Co.

MediaTek

Inc.

MediaTek
Investment Corp.
100%
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MEDIATEK INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
(3) Consolidated entity
Name of subsidiaries

Main Business

Percentage of Ownership

MediaTek Investment Corp.

General investing

100.00%

Hsu-Ta Investment Ltd.

General investing

100.00%

Hsu-Chia Investment Ltd.

General investing

100.00%

Hsu-Kang Investment Ltd.

General investing

100.00%

Wiseali Technology Inc.

IC design and sales

99.00%

Core Tech Resources Inc.

General investing

100.00%

MediaTek Capital Corp.

General investing

100.00%

Gaintech Co. Limited

General investing

100.00%

Alpha Imaging Technology Corp.

IC design and sales

52.66%

Pixtel Media Technology Private Ltd.

Research and development

99.99%

MediaTek Limited

Trading and general investing

100.00%

Wireless ICs, Inc.

Research and development

100.00%

CrystalMedia Technology, Inc.

Research and development

100.00%

MediaTek Singapore Pte. Ltd.

Research and development

100.00%

MediaTek Inc. China

Selling of IC design products

100.00%

MediaTek (ShenZhen) Inc.

Selling of IC design products

100.00%

3. Summary of Significant Account Policies
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the R.O.C.’s
“Guidelines Governing the Preparation of Financ ial Reports by Securities Issuer” and generally
accepted accounting standards. Significant accounting policies are summarized as follows:
Foreign Currency Transactions
The Company maintains its accounting records in New Taiwan Dollars ("NT Dollars" or "N T$"),
while each foreign subsidiary maintains it in the local currency as its functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency at exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Foreign
exchange gains or losses are included in other income or losses. The functional currency of each
foreign subsidiary is as follows:
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MEDIATEK INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
Foreign subsidiary

Functional currency

Core Tech Resources Inc.

USD

Gaintech Co. Limited

USD

MediaTek Limited

USD

Wireless ICs, Inc.

USD

CrystalMedia Technology, Inc.

USD

MediaTek Singapore Pte. Ltd.

SGD

Pixtel Media Technology Private Ltd.

INR

MediaTek Inc. China

RMB

MediaTek (ShenZhen) Inc.

RMB

The assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries are translated into NT Dollars, with the local
currency of each foreign subsidiary as its functional currency, at current exchange rates in effect at
the balance sheet date. Revenue and expense accounts are translated using a weighted average
exchange rate for the relevant period. Translation gains and losses are included as a component of
shareholders’ equity. The accumulated exchange gains or losses resulting from the translation are
recorded as cumulative translation adjustments under shareholders’ equity.
Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash, and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in
interest rates. Commercial papers, negotiable certificates of deposit, and bank acceptances with
original maturities of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.
Short-term Investments
Short-term investments are recorded at cost when acquired and are stated at the lower of aggregate
cost or market value at the balance sheet date. The market value of listed equity securities or
closed-end funds is determined by the average closing price during the last month of the fiscal
year. The market value for open-end funds is determined by their equity per unit at the balance
sheet date. The amount by which aggregate cost exceeds market value is reported as a loss in the
current year. In subsequent periods, recoveries of market value are recognized as a gain to the
extent that the market value does not exceed the original aggregate cost of the investment. No
revenue is recognized when stock dividends are received. Instead, the number of shares increases
and the cost per share is recalculated. Gain or loss on disposal of open-end funds is recognized
using first- in- first-out method. Interest income of credit-linked structured deposits matured within
a year is accrued based on the contracted interest rate.
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The allowance for doubtful accounts are provided based on the collectibility and aging analysis of
notes receivable, accounts receivable, receivables from related parties and by examining
current trends in the credit quality of its customers as well as its internal credit policies.
Inventories
Inventories are carried at lower of cost or market value using the weighted average cost method.
Replacement cost is used to determine the market value of raw materials. Net realizable value is
used to determine the market value of work in process and finished goods. The lower of cost or
market value is applied on aggregate basis to total inventory. A slow-moving reserve is provided
based on inventory aging.
Long-term Investments
Long-term equity investments
(1) Long-term investments accounted for under cost method
Long-term investments in which the Company holds less than 20% of the outstanding voting
shares of the investee companies and is not able to exercise significant influence over the
investee companies are stated at cost except for investments in listed companies which are
stated at lower of cost or market value. The unrealized loss on long-term investments is
recorded as a contra equity account. If it is evidenced that the stock price is unlikely to
recover in the future, an other-than-temporary loss will be recognized in the current period,
and the cost of a long-term investment shall be reduced to the market price, which will then
become the new cost.
(2) Long-term investments accounted for under equity method
Long-term investments in which the Company holds an interest of 20% or more and has the
ability to exercise significant influence over the investee companies are accounted for under
the equity method of accounting. The difference between the cost of the investment and the
underlying equity in the investee’s net assets at the date of acquisition is amortized over five
years. Adjustment to capital reserve is required when holding percentage changes due to
unproportional subscription to investee’s new shares issued. If the capital reserve is
insufficient, retained earnings are adjusted.
Unrealized intercompany gains and losses are eliminated under the equity method. Profit
from sales of depreciable assets between the investee and the Company is amortized and
recognized based on the assets’ economic service lives. Profit from other types of
intercompany transactions is recognized when realized.
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When equity in loss of an investee exceeds carrying value accounted for by the equity
method, the Company recognizes the investment loss by reducing the balance of the
investment to zero. However, if the Company intends to provide further financial supports
for the investee company, or the investee company’s losses are temporary and there exists
sufficient evidence showing imminent return to profitable operations, then the Company
shall continue to recognize investment losses in proportion to the stock ownership
percentage. Such credit long-term investment balance shall first offset the advance, if any,
the Company made to the investee company; the remaining credit balance is recorded under
other liabilities.
For any investee company that was accounted for under equity method and to dissolve at a
dissolution date, the Company shall recognize investment income (loss) up to that date and
cease to apply equity method then and afterwards. If the liquidation procedure is not
completed at the financial statement closing date, an unrealized loss shall be estimated and
charged to income to the extent that the carrying value of the underlying investment in
excess of the estimated recovery value. No gain shall be recognized until the completion of
liquidation if the estimated recovery value is over the carrying value of the underlying
investment at the financial statement closing date.

Long-term Bond Investments
Long-term bond investments are recorded at cost when acquired and accounted for under cost
method.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
computed on a straight- line basis over the following useful lives:
Buildings and facilities
Machinery and equipment
Research and development equipment
Miscellaneous equipment

3 to 50
3 to 5
3 to 5
2 to 7

years
years
years
years

Improvements and replacements are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful lives
while ordinary repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
When property, plant and equipment are disposed of, their original cost and accumulated
deprecia tion are written off and related gains or losses are included in other income or losses.
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Intangible Assets
Software, patents and IPs are stated at cost and amortized on a straight- line basis over the
following useful lives:
Computer software
Patents and technical rights

3 years
3 years

Capital Expenditures vs. Revenue Expenditures
If the expenditure increases the future service potential of an assets and the lump sum purchase
price per transaction exceeds certain, the expenditure is capitalized, while the others are expensed
as incurred.
Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized in accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 32, "Accounting for Revenue Recognition."
Employee Retirement Benefits
In accordance with the Labor Standards Law of the R.O.C., the Company makes a monthly
contribution equal to 2% of the wages and salaries paid during the period to a pension fund
maintained with the Central Trust of China. The fund is administered by the Employees'
Retirement Fund Committee and is deposited in the committee's name. Therefore, the pension fund
is not included in the financial statements of the Company.
The Company has a defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all of its employees and
adopts the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.18, "Accounting for
Pensions." The minimum pension liability was recorded for the excess of accumulated pension
obligations over the fair value of plan assets. Net transition assets or obligations from the plan
assets are amortized using the straight- line method over the employees’ expected average
remaining service period of 20 years.
The Company’s subsidiaries having a defined contribution pension plan make monthly
contributions to pension funds in accordance with the native law. The monthly amount to be
contributed is recorded as an expense as incurred.
Consolidated debits
Consolidated debits represent the excess of the consideration paid for acquisition over the fair
market value of identifiable net assets acquired. Consolidated debits are amortized using the
straight- line method over the estimated lives of 5 years.
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Income Tax
In accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.22, “Accounting
for Income Taxes,” income tax is accounted for under the inter-period and intra-period income tax
allocation method. Provision for income tax includes deferred tax resulting from temporary
differences and investment tax credits. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
expected tax consequences of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their reported amounts in the financial statements using enacted tax rates and laws that will be
in effect when the difference is expected to reverse. Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets is
provided to the extent that it is more likely than not that the tax benefits will not be realized.
Income tax credit is accounted for in accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 12, "Accounting for Income Tax Credit." Income tax credits resulting
from the acquisition of equipment, research and development expenditures, and employee training
shall be recognized using the flow-through method.
Income taxes (10%) on undistributed earnings are recorded as expenses in the year when the
stockholders have resolved that the earnings shall be retained.
Financial instruments-hedging purpose
a. Foreign exchange forward contracts
A forward foreign exchange contract obligates the Company to exchange predetermined
amounts of specified foreign currencies at specified exchange rates for another currency on a
specified date. For contracts that are designated as hedges, discounts or premiums, being the
difference between the spot exchange rate and the forward exchange rate at the inception of the
contract, are accreted or amortized to the income statement over the contract lives using the
straight- line method. Realized gains and losses from settlement or unrealized gains and losses
resulting from changes in the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date are recorded in the
income statement as foreign exchange gains or losses in the period in which they relate. The
related amounts due to or from counter parties are included in other current assets or other
current liabilities.
b. Option contracts
At maturity the Company or the financial institution, depending upon which party has the right
of the option, exercises the option to receive a said amount denominated in one currency and
pay a said amount in a different currency. The conversion rate is stated in the contract. For
options, premiums are amortized over the contract lives using the straight- line method. Gains
and losses are recorded in the income statement upon exercise.
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Earnings Per Share
In accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.24, “Earnings Per
Share,” the Company presents basic earnings per share. Earnings per common share are computed
by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common share outstanding during the
year. Earnings per common share are adjusted retroactively by stock dividends resulting from
retained earnings or capital surplus. Furthermore, if the base date of the capital increase for a stock
dividend is before the issuance date of the financial statements, the earnings per common share
shall be adjusted retroactively.
Treasury Stock
The Company’s shares owned by its subsidiaries were accounting- treated as treasury stock
according to the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 30, “Accounting for
Treasury Stock.” Cash dividends distributed to the Company’s subsidiaries are deducted from
investment income and credited to capital reserves-treasury stock transaction.
In accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 30, “Accounting
for Treasury Stock,” treasury stock transactions are accounted for under cost method. The gross
cost of shares reacquired is recorded in a contra shareholders’ equity account called treasury
stock. At the date of subsequent resale, the treasury stock account is credited for the cost of the
treasury stock. When treasury stock is sold for more than its acquisition cost, the difference is
credited to capital reserve – treasury stock transaction. If treasury stock is sold for less than its
acquisition cost, the difference is charged to the same capital reserve account to the extent the
capital reserve account to reduce to zero. If the balance of the capital reserve is insufficient, any
further reduction shall be charged to retained earnings instead.
When treasury stock is retired, the treasury stock account is credited and all capital account
balances related to the treasury shares, including capital reserve – treasury stock transaction, are
reduced on a proportionate basis. Any difference, if on credit side, is recorded in capital reserve –
treasury stock transaction; if on debit side, retained earnings are charged.

4. Reasons and Effects for Change in Accounting Principles.
None.
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5. Contents of Significant Accounts
(1) Cash and Cash Equivalents
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004

Petty Cash
Savings and checking accounts
Time deposits
Cash equivalents- CP-Repo and bonds-Repo

$92
7,534,786
20,383,479
5,198,842

$30
5,320,074
21,324,012
5,477,602

$33,117,199

$32,121,718

Total

2003

As of December 31, 2004, the Company and its subsidiaries have committed to sell the
CP-Repo and bonds-Repo, in cost amount of NT$4,780,544 thousand and NT$418,298
thousand, back to the brokers during the three- month period ended March 31, 2005.
Cash and cash equivalents were not pledged as of December 31, 2004.
(2) Short-term Investments-Net
As of December 31,
2004
In thousand NTD

Cost

2003
Market
Value

Cost

Market
Value

Mutual fund
Stocks
Short-term notes and bonds
Credit- linked structured deposits

$544,641
542
651,422
317,575

$549,758
539
644,240
318,186

$878,295
598
710,204
135,912

$888,120
573
695,980
136,422

Subtotal
Less: Allowance for market value decline

1,514,180
(6,455)

1,512,723
-

1,725,009
(13,311)

1,721,095
-

Net

$1,507,725

$1,512,723 $1,711,698 $1,721,095

Short-term Investments were not pledged as of December 31, 2004. Please refer to the Note
10 for risk disclosure of credit- linked structured deposits.
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(3) Accounts Receivable-Net
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004

2003

Accounts receivable
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

$3,744,593
(198,996)

$3,945,698
(219,363)

Net

$3,545,597

$3,726,335

(4) Other Receivables
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004

Forward exchange contracts receivable- net
Interest receivable
VAT refundable
Others
Total

2003

$86,764
38,663
159,311
646

$8,253
34,044
218,148
526

$285,384

$260,971

(5) Inventories-Net
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004

2003

Raw materials
Work in process
Finished goods
Inventories in transit

$1,082
1,896,059
1,733,912
127,327

$2,381
1,283,263
831,974
52,240

Subtotal
Less: Allowance for inventory obsolescence

3,758,380
(489,151)

2,169,858
(77,301)

Net

$3,269,229

$2,092,557

a. The insurance coverage for inventories amounted to NT$300,000 thousand and NT$700,000
thousand as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The subcontractors provided
insurance policies for the inventories at their hand for processing. Thus, the subcontractors
will assume the responsibility of damage, if any.
b. Inventories were not pledged as of December 31, 2004.
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(6) Long-term Investments
a.

As of December 31, 2004
Amounts

Investee Companies

Ownership

Accounting

Shares /units

Types

(NT$’000)

(%)

Method

Equity investments-equity method
ALi Corporation

Common share

56,957,405

$635,795

31.28%

Equity

Yuantonix, Inc.

Common share

1,500,000

15,000

5.66%

Cost

Quanta Storage Inc.

Common share

975,000

3,668

0.48%

Cost

Browave Corporation

Common share

940,000

13,922

1.14%

Cost

Equity investments-cost method

Common share

8,000,000

73,049

14.41%

Cost

Legend Tech. V.C. Inv. Corp.

Common share

5,000,000

57,681

6.33%

Cost

Pixart Imaging Inc.

Common share

4,458,811

69,533

7.17%

Cost

Inprocomm Inc.

Common share

2,400,000

-

14.81%

Cost

VIA Optical Solution, Inc.

Common share

77

1

-

Cost

VIA Networking Technologies, Inc.

Common share

4

-

-

Cost

Araftek Inc.

Preferred share

1,100,000

1,574

5.85%

Cost

IPC

Preferred share

2,400,000

26,129

13.83%

Cost

Sino Photonics Venture Holding, Ltd.

Common share

1,200,000

38,300

9.88%

Cost

VenGlobal International Fund

Common share

1,000

20,502

5.66%

Cost

V Web Corp.

Preferred share

1,500,000

1,593

4.75%

Cost

Communication

Technology

Venture

Capital Investment Corp.

and common share
320,952

Subtotal
Long-term bonds Investments
EoNex Technologies, Inc.

Convertible bonds

67,576
$1,024,323

Total
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As of December 31, 2003
Amounts
Investee Companies

Types

Ownership

Accounting

Shares/units
(NT$’000)

(%)

Method

100.00%

Equity

Equity investments-equity method
MediaTek Communications, Inc.

Common share

60,000

Yuantonix, Inc.

Common share

1,500,000

15,000

6.00%

Cost

Quanta Storage Inc.

Common share

750,000

3,668

0.48%

Cost

Browave Corporation

Common share

940,000

13,922

1.14%

Cost

Communication Technology Venture

Common share

8,000,000

73,049

14.41%

Cost

Legend Tech. V.C. Inv. Corp.

Common share

5,000,000

57,681

6.33%

Cost

Pixart Imaging Inc.

Common share

3,429,855

69,533

7.46%

Cost

Inprocomm Inc.

Common share

2,400,000

13,785

14.81%

Cost

VIA Optical Solution, Inc.

Common share

4

-

-

Cost

VIA Networking Technologies, Inc

Common share

77

1

-

Cost

Araftek Inc.

Preferred share

1,100,000

1,676

6.43%

Cost

IPC

Preferred share

2,400,000

27,817

13.83%

Cost

Sino Photonics Venture Holding, Ltd.

Common share

1,200,000

40,774

9.88%

Cost

1,000

21,998

5.66%

Cost

1,500,000

1,695

3.84%

Cost

Equity investments-cost method

Capital Corp.

VenGlobal International Fund
V Web Corp.

Preferred share
and common share

Subtotal

340,599

Total

$340,599

b. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, investment loss accounted for under
equity method amounted to NT$358,848 thousand and NT$62,492 thousand, respectively.
The loss was recognized based on the audited financial statements of the investee
companies.
c. In October 2003, due to the dissolution of MediaTek Communications, the Company
assessed that the investment in MediaTek Communications was of no possibility to be
recovered. Then, the book value of investment in MediaTek Communications has been
written-off and the loss was recorded under the investment loss in the amount of
NT$62,492 thousand. MediaTek Communications has completed the liquidation process on
May 10, 2004.
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d. For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company and its subsidiaries recognized the
investment loss in the amount of NT$13,785 thousand for the permanent diminution of
value in the investment of Inprocomm Inc. For the year ended December 31, 2003, the
Company and its subsidiaries recognized the investment loss in Browave Corporation,
Inprocomm Inc., Araftek Inc., IPC and V Web Corp in amount of NT$142,189 thousand
for the permanent diminution of value in the investment.
e. Long-term investments were not pledged as of December 31, 2004.
(7) Property, Plant and Equipment
a. The insurance coverage for property, plant and equipment amounted to NT$1,407,896
thousand and NT$1,342,837 thousand as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
b. No interest was capitalized for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.
c. Property, plant and equipment were not pledged as of December 31, 2004.
(8) Long-term Debts
The authorities of HSIP financed the Company by providing free- interest loans for certain
R&D projects:
Original
Items
Second project

As of December 31,

balance

2004

2003

(NT$’000)

(NT$’000)

(NT$’000)

17,180

$-

$6,896

Repayment

The first repayment of NT$3,388 thousand was
made in May 2002. The remaining portion is
repayable in

eight quarterly

installments,

starting January 1, 2003, each of NT$1,724
thousand.

Third project

24,000

10,643

21,286

The first repayment of NT$2,715 thousand was
made in August 2003. The remaining portion is
repayable in eight quarterly installments,
starting January 1, 2003, each of NT$2,661
thousand.

Total long-term debts

10,643

28,182

Less: Current portion

(10,643)

（17,539）

Total

$-

$10,643
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(9) Accrued Pension Liabilities
a. The components of net pension cost
For the year ended December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004

2003

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization
Over statement

$18,667
1,913
(748)
(86)
10,078

$16,782
1,773
(567)
88
7,145

Net pension cost

$29,824

$25,221

b. The funded status of the Company’s pension plans
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004

Benefit obligations
Vested benefit obligation
Non-vested benefit obligation

2003

$(42,505)

$(24,743)

(42,505)
(49,997)

(24,743)
(29,902)

Projected benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

(92,502)
31,436

(54,645)
21,361

Funded status of pension plan
Unrecognized net transitional obligation
Unrecognized loss (gain)
Over-accrual

(61,066)
1,148
10,393
(24,539)

(33,284)
1,236
(7,553)
(14,718)

$(74,064)

$(54,319)

Accumulated benefit obligation
Effect of projected future salary increase

Accrued pension liabilities

c. The pension fund is not included in the financial statements of the Company. As of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, the fund amounted to NT$ 31,436 thousand and NT$21,361
thousand, respectively.
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d. The vested benefit was nil as of December 31, 2004 and 2003.
The underlying actuarial assumptions:
For the year ended December 31,
Discount rate
Rate of increase in future compensation levels
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets

2004

2003

3.5%
3.5%
3.5%

3.5%
3.5%
3.5%

e. For those subsidiaries adopting defined contribution pension plans and making contrib ution
to pension funds in accordance with the native law, pension expenses totaled to NT$2,334
thousands and NT$685 thousands for the years ended December 31, 2004 and, 2003,
respectively.
(10) Common Stock
As of January 1, 2003, the authorized and issued common shares of the Company amounted
to NT$5,700,000 thousand and NT$4,604,654 thousand, divided into 570,000,000 shares and
460,465,370 shares, respectively, each share at par value of NT$10.
Based on the resolution of shareholders’ general meeting on May 16, 2003, the Company
increased its authorized capital to NT$8,960,000 thousand, divided into 896,000 thousand
shares, each share at par of NT$10. Among the authorized capital, 40,000 thousand shares
were reserved for the grant of options to qualified employees. The shareholders further
resolved to issue 181,081,886 new shares for the capitalization of shareholders’ bonus of
NT$1,611,629 thousand and employees’ bonus of NT$199,190 thousand. The capitalization
had been governmentally approved.
Following the resolution of the shareholders’ annual general meeting on June 9, 2004, the
Company issued 131,225,575 new shares, each share at par value of NT$10, for the
capitalization of shareholders’ bonus of NT$1,154,785 thousand and employees’ bonus of
NT$157,471 thousand. The capitalization had been governmentally approved.
Based on the approval from the Company’s board of directors meeting held on May 7, 2004,
the Company was allowed to purchase back its own common share. The Company bought
3,437,000 shares from market during the period from May 8 to July 7, 2004. On September
22, 2004, the Board further resolved to cancel the treasury stocks and the measurement date
was at September 29, 2004. The cancellation of shares has been successfully updated to
government.
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As of December 31, 2004, the authorized and issued common shares of the Company
amounted to NT$8,960,000 thousand and NT$7,693,359 thousand, divided into 896,000,000
shares and 769,335,831 shares, respectively, each share at par value of NT$10.
(11) Legal Reserve
According to the R.O.C. Company Law, 10% of the Company's net income, after deducting
previous years' losses, if any, is appropriated as legal reserve prior to any distribution until
such reserve is equal to the Company's paid-in capital. When the legal reserve is equal to or
more than 50% of paid- in capital, 50% of such reserve may be distributed to the Company's
shareholders through the issuance of additional common share.
(12) Capital Reserve
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004

Additional paid- in capital
Treasury stock transaction
Donated assets
Long-term investment transaction
Total

2003

$69,689
84,975
1,260
-

$70,000
41,198
1,260
3,448

$155,924

$115,906

According to the R.O.C. Company Law, capital reserve can only be used for making up
deficiencies or distributions of stock dividends. The Company shall not use capital reserve to
make up its loss unless legal reserve is insufficient for making good such losses.
For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the cash dividends of NT$43,777 thousand
and NT$30,356 thousand, respectively, distributed to the Company’s subsidiary were credited
to the Company’s capital reserve account in accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 30, “Accounting for Treasury Stock.”
(13) Earnings Distribution
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2002 may be appropriated or distributed in the
following sequences:
(a) Income tax obligation;
(b) Offsetting accumulated deficits, if any;
(c) Legal reserve at 10% of net income;
(d) Reserve or reverse for special reserve in compliance with the Company Law or the
Securities and Exchange Law;
(e) Remuneration for directors and supervisors at 0.5% of the remaining of (a) through (d);
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(f) 10% to 15% of the remaining balance after the appropriations from (a) to (e) shall be
distributed as employees' bonus;
(g) The remaining balance after all the above appropriations and distributions shall be
shareholders’ dividends, and may be retained or distributed proportionally.
Shareholders’ dividends and employee bonuses may be distributed in form of shares or cash,
or both. According the Company’s articles, cash dividend to be distributed shall not be more
than 70% of total earnings to be distributed. While, remuneration for directors and supervisors
is limited to cash.
In accordance with an amendment to the Company's articles of incorporation on May 16,
2003, the Company may appropriate or distribute proportionally the net income for the year
ended December 31, 2003 at following sequences:
(a) Income tax obligation;
(b) Offsetting accumulated deficits, if any;
(c) Legal reserve at 10% of net income;
(d) Reserve or reverse for special reserve in compliance with the Company Law or the
Securities and Exchange Law;
(e) Remuneration for directors and supervisors to a maximum of 0.5% of the remaining of (a)
through (d);
(f) 10% to 15% of the remaining balance after the appropriations from (a) to (e) shall be
distributed as employees' bonus. Employees serving the Company’s subsidiaries are
inclusive;
(g) The remaining balance after all the above appropriations and distributions shall be
shareholders’ dividends, and may be retained or distributed proportionally.
Dividend and employee bonuses may be distributed in form of shares or cash, or both.
According to the amended articles, cash dividend to be distributed might not be less than 10%
of total earnings to be distributed while this guideline may be adjusted according to the
Company’s judgment on current performance. Remuneration for directors and supervisors is
limited to cash.
The Company's articles of incorporation, further amended on June 9, 2004, provide that net
income for the year ended December 31, 2004 may be appropriated or distributed
proportionally at following sequences:
(a) Income tax obligation;
(b) Offsetting accumulated deficits, if any;
(c) Legal reserve at 10% of net income;
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(d) Reserve or reverse for special reserve in compliance with the Company Law or the
Securities and Exchange Law;
(e) Remuneration for directors and supervisors to a maximum of 0.5% of the remaining of (a)
through (d), while remuneration for directors and supervisors is limited to cash.
(f) The remaining balance after all the above appropriations and distributions, combining
with inappropriate earnings from prior years, shall be fully for shareholders’ bonus and
employee bonuses and may be retained or distributed proportionally. The portion of
employee bonus may be within 10% to 15% of total earnings resolved to distribute for
shareholders’ dividends and employee bonuses. Employee bonuses may be distributed in
form of shares or cash, or both. The qualification of employees entitled to the bonuses is at
the discretion of board meeting. Employees serving the Company’s subsidiaries are
inclusive.
Shareholders’ dividends may be distributed in form of shares or cash, or both. According to
the amended articles, cash dividend to be distributed might not be less than 10% of total
dividends to be distributed while this guideline may be adjusted according to the Company’s
judgment on current performance.
According to the regulations of the Securities and Future Bureau, Financial Supervisory
Commission, Executive Yuan, R.O.C. the Company is required to appropriate a special
reserve in the amount equal to the sum of debit elements under shareholders’ equity, such as
unrealized loss on long-term equity investment, negative cumulative translation adjustment, at
each year-end. Such special reserve is prohibited from being distributed. However, if any of
the debit elements is reversed, the special reserve in the amount equal to the reversal may be
released for earnings distribution.
(14) Treasury Stock
a. Following the resolution of board meeting on May 7, 2004, the Company bought its own
common shares back from open market. Treasury stock transactions for the year ended
December 31, 2004 were summarized as follows:
January 1, 2004
Purpose

Increase

Amounts
Shares

Decrease

Amounts
Shares

(NT$’000)

December 31, 2004

Amounts
Shares

(NT$’000)

Amounts
Shares

(NT$’000)

(NT$’000)

Protecting
shareholders’
equity

-

-

3,437,000

$935,705
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b. According to the R.O.C Securities and Exchange Law, total shares bought back shall not
exceed 10% of the Company’s issued stocks. Total bought-back amounts shall not exceed
the sum of retained earnings and the realized capital reserve. The maximum shares that the
Company was allowed to buy back, calculated based on the financial statements as of
December 31, 2004, were 76,933,584 shares, and the maximum amount were
NT$34,915,916 thousand.
c. In compliance with the R.O.C Securities and Exchange Law, treasury stock shall not be
pledged, nor does it possess voting rights or the rights to receive dividends. The Company
shall cancel the treasury shares and file a change in registered paid- in capital to government
within 6 months. The Board had resolved to cancel the treasury stocks amounted to
3,437,000 shares and set the measurement date for reducing capital at September 29, 2004.
The cancellation of treasury stocks and reducing capital has been successfully filed to
government.
d. The Company’s shares owned by its subsidiaries are also accounted for as treasury stock. These
shares were shown as follows:
Owner
MediaTek Capital
Corp.

Owner
MediaTek Capital
Corp.

January 1, 2004
Shares
Amount
(NT$’000)
5,122,656
$55,970

Additions
Shares
Amount
(NT$’000)
927,044
$(Note)

December 31, 2004
Amount
Market Value
(NT$’000)
(NT$’000)
6,049,700
$55,970
$1,280,177

January 1, 2003
Shares
Amount
(NT$’000)
3,794,560
$55,970

Additions
Shares
Amount
(NT$’000)
1,328,096
$(Note)

December 31, 2003
Amount
Market Value
(NT$’000)
(NT$’000)
5,122,656
$55,970
$1,624,102

Shares

Shares

(Note) Stock dividend received.

(15) Employees’ Stock Option Plans
Alpha Imaging Technology Corp. (“AIT”), one of the Company’s subsidiaries, has granted
474,000 units and 212,000 units of options to qualified employees on May 31, 2004 and
December 20, 2004, respectively. All of the granted employee’s stock options ha ve been
exercised as of December 31, 2004 and, accordingly, AIT has issued additional 686,000
common shares.
AIT’s above stock option plan is accounted for using intrinsic value method. For the year
ended December 31, 2004, compensation expense related to the employee stock option
amounted to NT$1,272 thousand. Related disclosure was as follows:
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Total
Total
Options
Market Price
Exercise
Shares
Outstanding Available to
(NTD)
Granted Decrease Options Be Exercised Exercisable Price Exercise of
(NTD)
Grant Date (Shares) (Shares) (Shares)
Date
Contract
High Low
(Shares)
Issuance of Remark Remark
2004.05.31 474,000 474,000
474,000
2004.05.31
$12
new shares
Issuance of Remark Remark
2004.12.20 212,000 212,000
212,000
2004.12.20
$12
new shares
Remark: The common shares of AIT have not been publicly traded. In evaluating the fair market value of share,
AIT utilized NT$12 per share, which was the same as the net value per share at that time, for the first
grant, and NT$18 per share, which was equivalent to the price of the most recent cash offerings, for the
second grant.

(16) Basic Earnings Per Share
The weighted average numbers of common shares outstanding were computed as follows:
(in shares)
For the year ended December 31,
Contents

2004

2003

Common shares outstanding, beginning
Stock dividend, August 25, 2003
Stock issuance for employees’ bonus, August 25, 2003
Purchase and disposal of treasury stock ( Remark 1)
Stock dividend, August 5, 2004
Stock issuance for employees’ bonus, August 5, 2004

641,547,256
(2,018,628)
115,735,176
15,782,096

460,465,370
161,162,879
19,919,007
115,478,506
15,747,069

Subtotal
Less: the Company’s shares owned by its subsidiary
(Remark 2)

771,045,900
(6,176,116)

772,772,831
(6,176,116)

Weighted average shares outstanding, ending

764,869,784

766,596,715

Remark 1: Computed in a weighted-average basis.
Remark 2: Adjusted retroactively by stock dividends and computed in a weighted-average
basis.
In thousand NTD

2004

2003

Income before tax
Income tax expense
Minority interest in (income) loss and
(income) loss from pre-acquisition of
the subsidiaries

$14,435,898
(27,394)
(85,519)

$16,619,113
(101,705)
4,681

Net income

$14,322,985

$16,522,089
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Earnings Per Share (in NTD)

2004

2003

Income before tax
Income tax expense
Minority interest in (income) loss and
(income) loss from pre-acquisition of
the subsidiaries

$18.87
(0.03)
(0.11)

$21.68
(0.13)
-

Net income

$18.73

$21.55

(17) Sales Revenues-Net
For the year ended December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004

Revenues from sales of chipsets

2003

$41,430,230

$39,770,509

953,186

39,055

Subtotal

42,383,416

39,809,564

Less: Sales returns and sales discount

(1,836,204)

(1,713,966)

$40,547,212

$38,095,598

Others

Net sales

(18) Personnel, Deprecation and Amortization Expenses
For the year ended December 31,
2004

In thousand NTD
Personnel Expense
Salary expense

Recorded
under cost
of goods
sold

Recorded
under
operating
expense

2003

Total

Recorded
under cost
of goods
sold

$47,002 $1,258,264 $1,305,266

Total

$44,211

$817,027

$861,238

Insurance expense

2,166

46,594

48,760

1,766

31,484

33,250

Pension expense

1,322

30,836

32,158

1,496

24,410

25,906

332

18,173

18,505

555

8,334

8,889

Total

$50,822 $1,353,867 $1,404,689

$48,028

$881,255

$929,283

Depreciation

$19,435

$161,887

$181,322

$28,363

$108,510

$136,873

$150

$247,366

$247,516

$-

$143,580

$143,580

Other

Amortization (Remark)

Remark: including some amortization recorded under non-operating expenses .

- 104 Global Reports LLC

Recorded
under
operating
expense

English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

MEDIATEK INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)

(19) Income Tax
a. Pursuant to the “Statute for the Establishment and Ad ministration of Science-Based
Industrial Park,” the Company was granted several periods of tax holidays with respect to
income derived from approved investments. The tax holidays expired on December 31,
2004.
b. Pursuant to the “Statute for Upgrading Industries,” the Company is entitled to an income
tax exemption period for five consecutive years on the income generated from qualifying
high technology activities. The Company has elected the tax exemption periods to be from
January 1, 2002 through December 31, 2006, from January 1, 2003 through December 31,
2007, and from January 1, 2004 through December 31, 2008, respectively.
c. The Company’s income tax returns for the years 1998 and 1999 have been assessed and
approved by the tax authorities in 2002 and 2003, respectively. The Company should pay
additional income tax of NT$26,947 thousand and NT$41,290 thousand for the years
1998 and 1999, respectively. The Company has recorded the additional assessed tax as
expenses and also has filed a reinvestigation to the tax authorities and filed an
administrative appeal to the Ministry of Finance (“MOF”). The administrative appeal was
rejected in December 2004. The Company will file an administrative proceeding in
future.
d. The Company’s income tax returns for the year 2000 have been assessed and approved by
the tax authorities in November 2004, and the Company was imposed to pay additional
tax of NT$142,862 thousand. The Company has recorded the additional tax as an expense
and filed an administrative appeal to the tax authorities in December 2004.
e. The income tax returns of MediaTek Investment Corp., MediaTek Capital Corp., Hsu-Ta
Investment Limited, Hsu-Chia Investment Limited, Hsu-Kang Investment Limited, Alpha
Imaging Technology Inc. for all the years through 2002 have been assessed and approved
by the tax authorities.
f. According to the R.O.C. Income Tax Law, operating loss can be carried forward for 5
years. As of December 31, 2004, the unutilized accumulated loss carry forwards of Alpha
Imaging Technology Corp. were as follows:
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Year incurred

Total credit amount
(NT$’000)

2003

Unused amount
(NT$’000)

$9,740

Year expired

$5,299

2008

The tax effects of such amounts were included in deferred income tax assets.
g. As of December 31, 2004, Wireless ICs, Inc. (USA) had a net operating loss of
approximately USD1,300 thousand and USD1,200 thousand to be carried over to offset
future income for Federal and California income tax purposes and will expire in the years
2023 and 2012, respectively.
As of December 31, 2004, CrystalMedia Technology, Inc. (USA) had a net operating loss
of approximately USD1,390 thousand and USD1,230 thousand to be carried over to offset
future income for Federal and California income tax purposes and will expire in the years
2023 and 2013, respectively.
The operating loss carry forwards mentioned above have been included in deferred income
tax assets.
h. The Company’s available investment tax credits as of December 31, 2004 were as follows:
Nature of
Total credit amount Unused amount
Year
Year incurred
Expenditures
(NT$’000)
(NT$’000)
expired
2002
2003
2004
(Estimate)
2004
(Estimate)

R&D
R&D

$2,124
930,001

$2,124
304,385

2006
2007

R&D

1,241,145

1,241,145

2008

1,712

1,712

2008

Human development

$2,174,982

$1,549,366

The investment tax credits listed above have been included in deferred income tax assets.
i.
(a) Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) (In thousand NTD)
Total deferred income tax liabilities

(7,004)

Total deferred income tax assets

$1,710,189

Valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets
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(b) Temporary differences that generated from deferred
income tax assets (liabilities) (In thousand NTD)

As of December 31, 2004

The Company and domestic subsidiary
Deductible temporary difference-Recognition of
unrealized accrued expenses

Amount

Tax effect

$433,730

$5,354

Deductible temporary difference-Recognition of
unrealized allowance for inventory obsolescence

$489,151

$6,703

Deductible temporary difference- Unrealized allowance
for doubtful accounts

$161,559

$1,994

Deductible temporary difference-Unrealized technology
license fee

$106,112

$1,310

Taxable temporary difference-Unrealized foreign
exchange gain

$(78,720)

$(1,028)

Deductible temporary difference-other

$360,900

$90,225

$5,299

$1,325

Loss carry forwards
Investment tax credits

$1,549,366

The foreign subsidiary
Research and development tax credit

$17,059

Loss carry forwards

$35,182

Deductible temporary difference-other
Taxable temporary difference-other
(c)

$(5,976)

In thousand NTD

As of December 31, 2004

Deferred income tax assets-current
Valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets-current
Net deferred income tax assets-current
Deferred tax income liabilities-current
Net deferred income tax assets and liabilities-current
(d)

In thousand NTD

$1,541,735
(771,796)
769,939
(1,028)
$768,911
As of December 31, 2004

Deferred income tax assets-noncurrent
Valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets-noncurrent

$168,454
(162,478)

Net deferred income tax assets- noncurrent

5,976

Deferred income tax liabilities-noncurrent

(5,976)

Net deferred income tax assets and liabilities- noncurrent
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(e) Income tax payable and income tax expense are reconciled as follows:
For the year ended
In thousand NTD
December 31, 2004
Income tax payable
10% tax on undistributed earnings
Investment tax credits
Deferred income tax effects
Investment tax credits
Valuation allowance
Loss carry forwards
Unrealized technology license fee
Others
Accruals for additional prior year income tax
Prior year income tax adjustment
Others
Income tax expense

$175,526
622,531
(394,579)
(798,315)
285,621
(13,898)
12,988
7,426
142,862
(14,671)
1,903
$27,394

(f) Integrated income tax information

As of December 31, 2004

Balance of the imputation credit account (ICA)
(In thousand NTD)
Expected creditable ratio

$547,753
2.96%(Note)

Note: The ratio was computed based on the amount of actual available shareholders’ tax credits plus
estimated income tax payable as of December 31, 2004.

(g) Information related to undistributed retained earnings
(In thousand NTD)
Prior to 1998
After 1998 (inclusive)

As of December 31, 2004
$31,363,021

Total

$31,363,021

j.
(a) Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) (In thousand NTD)
Total deferred income tax liabilities

$(2,642)

Total deferred income tax assets

$914,028

Valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets

$648,653
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(b) Temporary differences that generated from deferred
income tax assets (liabilities) (In thousand NTD)
The Company and domestic subsidiary
Deductible temporary difference-Recognition of
unrealized accrued expenses

As of December 31, 2003
Amount
$433,730

$6,126

$77,301

$1,092

Deductible temporary difference-Allowance for doubtful
accounts

$180,967

$2,556

Deductible temporary difference-Unrealized technology
license fee

$1,012,216

$14,298

Deductible temporary difference-Recognition of
unrealized allowance for inventory obsolescence

Taxable temporary difference-Unrealized foreign
exchange gain

$(21,895)

Deductible temporary difference-other reason

$393,650

$98,412

$16,852

$4,213

Loss carry forwards
Investment tax credits

Loss carry forwards
Taxable temporary difference-other reason
In thousand NTD

$825
$(2,333)
As of December 31, 2003

Deferred income tax assets-current
Valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets-current
Net deferred income tax assets-current
Deferred income tax liabilities-current
Net deferred income tax assets and liabilities-current
In thousand NTD

$777,663
(541,621)
263,042
(309)
$262,733
As of December 31, 2003

Deferred income tax assets-noncurrent
Valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets-noncurrent

$136,365
(134,032)

Net deferred income tax assets- noncurrent

2,333

Deferred income tax liabilities-noncurrent

(2,333)

Net deferred income tax assets and liabilities- noncurrent
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(e) Income tax payable and income tax expense are reconciled as follows:
For the year ended
In thousand NTD
December 31, 2003
Income tax payable
10% tax on undistributed earnings
Investment tax credits
Deferred income tax effects
Investment tax credits
Valuation allowance
Loss carry forwards
Unrealized technology license fee
Unrealized accrued expenses
Others
Accruals for additional prior year income tax
Prior year income tax adjustment
Others

$229,318
573,717
(395,254)

Income tax expense

$101,705

(f) Integrated income tax information

As of December 31, 2003

Balance of the imputation credit account (ICA)
(In thousand NTD)
Actual creditable ratio

$597,381
3.08%

(g) Information related to undistributed retained earnings
(In thousand NTD)
Prior to 1998
After 1998 (inclusive)

As of December 31, 2003
$27,113,421

Total

$27,113,421
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6. Related Party Transactions
(1) Related Parties and Relations
Related parties

Relations

United Microelectronics Corp. (“UMC”)
The supervisor of the Company
King Yuan Electronics Co., Ltd. (“KING YUAN”) The chairmen of the Company and KING
YUAN are close relatives.
PixArt Imaging Inc. (“PII”)
Same person represents the chairman of
both companies’ boards.
UMC Japan (“UMCJ”)
Equity investee of UMC
ALi Corporation (“ALi”)
Equity invetee
(2) Major Transactions with related parties
a. Purchases
For the year ended December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004
Amount

2003
% of total
purchase

Amount

% of total
purchase

UMC
UMCJ

$7,690,155
799,601

56.03
5.83

$8,185,626
1,099,645

73.04
9.81

Total

$8,489,756

61.86

$9,285,271

82.85

Prices for purchases from related parties are not comparable because the manufacturing process
and product specification are significantly different. Payment terms to UMC and UMCJ were
end-of-month 45 to 60 days, which were similar those to other suppliers.
b. The Company has entered into a manufacturing contract with UMC. Under the contract, the
Company pledged a time deposit of NT$864,000 thousand to UMC as a production deposit.
On August 2003, the time deposit was released from pledge. A subsidiary of the Company
also pledged a time deposit of NT$30,000 thousand to UMC as a production deposit for the
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. The Company and its subsidiary recorded it
under the caption of restricted deposits.
c. The Company and its subsidiaries paid NT$921,632 thousand and NT$648,653 thousand to
KING YUAN for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, for its
various IC testing and experimental services. On the other hand, the Company’s revenue
from providing manufacturing technology services to KING YUAN amounted to NT$7,539
thousand for the year ended December 31, 2003.
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d. The Company sold certain machinery to KING YAUN during April 2003 at a price of
NT$7,667 thousand, resulting in a gain on disposal of machinery of NT$2,950 thousand.
e. The Company has entered into a facility lease agreement with PII during the year ended
December 31, 2001. In August 2002, the Company exercised purchase rights for the
underlying facility, as permitted by the agreement and approved by HSIP. The title of
leased facility has been transferred to the Company in March 2003 and the Company
recorded the facility under the caption of building and facility. In January 2003, the
Company has entered into another facility purchase agreement with PII in amount of
NT$31,270 thousand. The Company has fully paid the price.
f. The Company and its subsidiaries purchased R&D equipment, machinery equipment and
miscellaneous supplies from ALi in amount of NT$18,902 for the year ended December 31,
2004.
g. The Company purchased certain patents and technical rights from ALi totally at the price of
NT$274,381 thousand. The Company has fully paid the price during the year ended
December 31, 2004. The title of NT$168,670 thousand of the underlying patents and
technical rights have been transferred to the Company during the year ended December 31,
2004 and was recorded under the caption of patents and technical rights. As of December
31, 2004, the remaining balance of NT$105,771 thousand of the patents and technical rights
has not yet been transferred to the Company, but recorded under the caption of prepayments
for patents and technical rights.
h. A subsidiary of the Company has provided certain technology license and services to ALi in
amount of NT$35,125 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2004.
i. The Company bought 8,751,000 shares of Wiseali’s common stock from ALi totally at the
price of NT$253,779 thousand in November 2004.
(3) Receivables and payables resulting from the above transactions:
a. Receivables from related parties
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD
ALi

2004
Amount

%

$36,882

1.03
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b. Payables to related parties
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD
UMC
UMCJ
KING YUAN
Total

7. Assets Pledged As Collateral
(1) As of December 31, 2004
In thousand NTD

2004
Amount

%

$790,985
86,712
127,832

29.66
3.25
4.79

$1,716,616
71,185
140,977

40.84
1.69
3.35

$1,005,529

37.70

1,928,778

45.88

Net book value

Amount

Secured financial institutions

Restricted deposits-current
Restricted deposits-current

$42,000
39,770

Farmers Bank of China
Pixtel

Restricted deposits-current
Restricted deposits-current

30,000
793

UMC
ICBC

Total
(2) As of December 31, 2003
In thousand NTD
Restricted deposits-current
Restricted deposits-current
Restricted deposits-current
Total

%

Contents (Purpose)
Long-term debt
Contract executed
deposits
Production deposit
Pledged forward
exchange contract

$112,563

Net book value

Secured financial institutions

$63,000
30,000
24,974
$117,974

- 113 Global Reports LLC

2003

Farmers Bank of China
UMC
Tiva

Contents (Purpose)
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8. Commitments and Contingencies
(1) Law suits
a. The Company acquired its manufacturing technology of CD-ROM control chips mainly
from UMC. UMC, however, was involved in certain legal action with OAK, an U.S.
company, for patents of such technology. In October 1997, OAK filed a complaint with the
United States Northern District Court of California alleged that UMC breached a prior
Settlement Agreement and later sought against the Company and UMC for the damages,
injunctive and other relief. In April 1998, OAK filed a complaint with the International
Trade Commission (“ITC ”) against the Company and UMC for the infringement of the
patents stated above and violation of Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930. In May 2001,
the Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit (“CAFC”) affirmed that there was no violation
of Section 337. OAK did not appeal to Supreme Court of the United States regarding the
CAFC’s decision within the legal period. In August 2003, Zoran Corporation acquired
OAK and succeeded to OAK’s position in this litigation. As a result, the only dispute for
certain damages between the Company and Zoran that remains pending is that in Northern
District Court of California. It is probable that the Company would suffer no more
significant litigation loss from the underlying dispute. Accordingly, the Company has made
a reversal of related loyalty fee accrual amounted to NT$1,557,540 thousand, recorded as
non-operating income for the year ended December 31, 2003. While, the remaining balance
of related royalty fee accrual amounted to NT$419,056 thousand was still recorded as
accrued expenses as of December 31, 2004.
b. On March 10, 2004, Zoran and OAK filed a complaint with the U.S. ITC (“the ITC
Complaint”) naming MediaTek as a proposed respondent. By the ITC Complaint, Zoran
and OAK alleged that the Company has engaged in unfair trade practices in violation of
Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930. They alleged that certain of the Company’s chipsets
infringed their own patents (U.S. Patent No.6466736, No.6584527 and No.6546440).
Around March 18, 2004, Zoran and OAK also filed a comp laint against the Company with
the U.S. District Court for the Central District of California based on the same patents and
the same allegations of infringement as were the subject of the ITC Complaint. The District
Court action has been transferred to the District Court for the Northern District of
California. The Company has engaged U.S. attorneys to defend both cases vigorously.

- 114 Global Reports LLC

English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

MEDIATEK INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
c. On July 23, 2004, the Company filed a complaint against Zoran and OAK with the U.S.
ITC and the District Court for the District of Delaware alleging patent infringement. The
Company alleged that optical disc drive controller products of Zoran and OAK infringe the
Company’s patents (U.S Patent No.6229773 and No.5970031). The Company further
requested the ITC to issue an order to bar any importation of Zoran and OAK’s products
infringing MediaTek’s U.S Patents. The Company also requested that the Court stops
Zoran and OAK to further infringe the Company’s patents and that Zoran and OAK shall
compensate the Company’s losses by the amount tripling of the losses. The Company
further amended the complaint to add Sunext Technology Co., Ltd. (“Sunex”) as a
co-defendant. In addition to the patents allegedly infringed in the original complaint, the
Company further alleged that optical disc drive products of Zoran, OAK, and Sunext
infringe another MediaTek’s patent (U.S Patent No 6170043) too. The ITC accepted the
company’s Amendment to the complaint on October 7, 2004.
d. The Company is the defendant in a lawsuit brought by motion picture studios, including
Metro-Goldwyn-Mayer Studios Inc., Paramount Pictures Corporation, Sony Pictures
Entertainment Inc., Twentieth Century Fox Film Corporation, Universal City Studios LLLP,
The Walt Disney Company and Warner Bros. Entertainment Inc. The lawsuit was filed on
or about August 23, 2004, with the Los Angeles Superior Court of the State of California.
Plaintiffs have alleged that the Company breached its agreement (the license agreement
between MediaTek and the DVD Copy Control Association, the licensor of a DVD
encryption system called the “Content Scramble System,” or “CSS”) by selling
descrambler chips to entities that are not licensed by CSS. The Company has engaged U.S.
attorneys to defend this District Court case vigorously.
e. In June 2002, the Company filed a complaint with the Northern District of California
against VIA Technologies, Inc., (“VIA”) and AOpen, Inc. (“AOpen”), alleging that VIA
and AOpen are infringing two patents related to optical disc drivers. In September 2003,
the District Court granted the Company’s motion for preliminary injunction against VIA
and AOpen. The Company has also named the U.S. subsidiaries of VIA and Aopen, as well
as VIA Optical Solution, Inc. (“ VIA Optical ”), as co-defendants.
f. In June 2003,VIA filed a complaint against the Company with the Northern District of
California, alleging that the Company infringes its own patent (U.S. Patent No. 6459665).
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MEDIATEK INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
g. In June and July 2003, VIA filed a complaint against the Company the Hsinchu District
Court of Taiwan, alleging that the Company infringed its own patent (Taiwan Patent No.
163889). VIA’s compliant alleged that the Company’s DVD-ROM and COMBI chipsets
infringed the patent.
h. The Company, VIA and its subsidiary-VIA Optical entered into a settlement agreement that
resolved all litigations about the patents in the U.S. and Taiwan on August 3, 2004.
According to the settlement agreement, all parties shall dismiss all their complaints in all
jurisdictions. Under this settlement agreement, the Company has licensed VIA Optical
certain copyrights and trade secrets and VIA Optical shall pay the Company a fee of US$25
million for usage of the rights upon the agreement made effected and shall annually pay
US$5 million during the following 5 years.
i. The Company and its subsidiary-MediaTek (ShenZhen) Inc. filed a complaint with the
ShenZhen Intermediate People’s Court against Zoran and Zoran’s Shenzhen representative
office, alleging that they have infringed the Company’s patent (PRC Patent No.
97120448.9). The Company is seeking court orders to prohibit Zoran from dealing in any
IC products that infringe the subject patent, monetary damages and cessation of sale,
importation and exportation of Zoran’s infringing products in/from China.
j. During August 2003, Sunplus Technology Co., Ltd. has filed a complaint against five
employees, including the general manager, of the Company’s subsidiary, Alpha Imaging
Technology Corp., for infringing rights. The management has been unable to assess the
indirect operating and financial influences on the Company and the subsidiary since the
Company has not been informed of all the facts and the dollar amounts that Sunplus has
asked for compensation and no further actions were taken from the court. While, the
subsidiary has contracted an attorney to watch and evaluate the case.
(2) Commitments.
a. In 2002, ESS Technology, Inc. (“ESS”) filed a complaint with the Northern District of
California, against the Company, alleging that the Company infringed ESS copyrights in
firmware used with ESS chipsets in DVD players. In June 2003, ESS and the Company
entered into a settlement agreement resolving all of the issues in dispute between two
parties. Under this settlement agreement, ESS has licensed the Company certain copyrights
and the Company should pay ESS a fee of US$45 million for usage of the rights in the past.
The Company recorded such amount as R&D expenses. Also, the settlement agreement
provides that the Company should pay quarterly royalties based on the sales volume of the
DVD player chipsets within 2 years, starting from third quarter of the year 2003. The
maximum royalties are no more than US$45 million.
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MEDIATEK INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
b. The Company has entered into an assets purchasing agreement with Pixtel
Communications, Inc. (“Pixtel”) in May 2004. The Company then acquired Pixtel’s
wireless communication related software technology and patents in amount of US$8,305
thousand. As of December 31, 2004, the Company has paid US$7,059 thousand, equivalent
to NT$236,125 thousand, for this agreement and recorded it as R&D expenses. Also, the
Company has deposited the remaining balance of US$1,246 thousand, equivalent to
NT$39,770 thousand, in an escrow account and recorded it as restricted deposits-current.
c. The Company has entered into several contracts in total of NT$3,241,269 thousand (sale
tax excluded) for constructing its headquarter tower. As of December 31, 2004, the
Company has paid out NT$941,243 thousand. The other amount of NT$2,300,026
thousand remained an irrevocable commitment.
d. As of December 31, 2004, totaling US$31,377 thousand of the Company’s other significant
contracts remained unpaid.
e. The Company has entered certain lease agreements for land with the Administrative
Bureau of HSIP for its need of operation. Related rent incurred in the future would be as
follows:
Lease Period

Amount

2005.01.01~2005.12.31
2006.01.01~2006.12.31
2007.01.01~2007.12.31
2008.01.01-2008.12.31
2009.01.01~2023.12.31

$25,474
25,474
25,474
24,406
343,084

Total

$443,912

9. Significant Casualty Loss
None

10. Significant Subsequent Events
None
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MEDIATEK INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
11. Others
(1) Financial instruments
a. Derivative financial instruments
(i) Contract amount or nominal amount and credit risk
Ⅰ. As of December 31, 2004,
Financial
Contract amount
Type
Maturity
Instruments
(US$’000)
Forward
exchange-Hedging

Sell USD January 2005~
February 2005

Ⅱ. As of December 31, 2003,
Financial
Type
Instruments
Forward exchange
-Hedging

Sell USD
Purchase
USD

Maturity
January 2004~
February 2004
January 2004

$130,500

Contract amount
(US$’000)
$105,000
$1,000

Exercise rate

Credit
risk

31.885~33.413

-

Exercise rate

Credit
risk

33.975~34.235
34.235

Ⅲ. Credit risk relates to the extent to which failures by counter parties to discharge their
obligations could reduce the amount of future cash flows from financial assets on hand
as of the balance sheet date. The Company and its subsidiaries minimized exposure to
credit risks by only dealing with reputable banks.
(ii) Price risk
The Company and subsidiaries considered that the price risk related to the hedge
transactions is minimal as gains or losses from contracts for hedging purposes are likely to
be offset by gains or losses from the underlying assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies.
(iii)Liquidity risks
The exchange rate of the forward exchange contracts are fixed, the Company and its
subsidiaries anticipate that they have enough USD assets, no significant additional cash
requirement is anticipated, and therefore, cash flow risk is minimal.
.
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MEDIATEK INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
(iv)Types of derivative financial instruments, purpose of holding the derivative financial
instruments and the strategy for achieving the hedging purpose:
The Company and its subsidiaries’ derivative financial instruments are not held for trading
purpose and held for decreasing cost of hedging. The purpose of holding forward exchange
contracts is to hedge exchange rate fluctuation risk resulting from assets, liabilities or
commitments denominated in foreign currency. The Company and its subsidiaries’ hedging
strategy are to avoid majority of market price risk. Derivative financial instruments selected
for hedging are highly anti-co-related with the fluctuation of the fair value of derivatives
hedged. Derivatives are evaluated periodically.
(v) Presentation of deriva tive financial instruments
Forward exchange contracts receivable and payable are reported under current assets or
liability on a net basis. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, details were as follows:
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD
Forward contract receivable
Forward contract payable
Discount

2004
$4,237,649
(4,165,107)
14,222

Forward exchange contracts receivable - net

2003
$3,574,425
(3,567,690)
1,518

$86,764

$8,253

The forward exchange contracts receivable-net was recorded under the caption of others
receivables.
Foreign exchange gain (loss) incurred from the derivatives for the years ended December 31,
2004 and 2003 amounted to NT$149,121 thousand and NT$13,399 thousand, respectively.
b. Disclosures of risks for investments in credit- linked notes and structured deposits
(i) Contract amount (In thousand USD)
As of December 31,
Underlying investments

2004

POU CHEN Credit-linked deposit
NanYa Plastics Credit- linked deposit
Mega Fin Hold Credit- linked deposit
Quanta Computer Credit-linked deposit
Delta Electronic Inc. Credit- linked deposit
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$1,000
$2,450
$1,500
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2003
$4,000
-
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MEDIATEK INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
(ii) Credit risk
Default by the issuers of underlying securities may reduce the value of credit- linked deposits
to zero. The Company and subsidiaries minimized the credit risk by selecting counter parties
who are reputable and in good financial standing.
(iii)Liquidity risk
The Company and its subsidiaries are unable to have the credit-linked investments redeemed
or called before maturity, which being the liquidity risk. In minimizing such risk, the
Company and its subsidiaries only invested in securities whose maturities are within a year.
(iv) Market risk
There is no market risk for the underlying investment except for the fluctuations in the
exchange rate of US Dollar to NT Dollar.
(v) Cash flow risk
No cash flow risk is involved as the entire amounts of credit-liked investments have been
fully paid.
c. Fair value of financial instruments
As of December 31,
In thousand NTD

2004
Carrying
value

Fair value

2003
Carrying
Fair value
value

Non-derivative
Assets
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted
deposits
Short-term investments
Receivables (including due from related
parties)
Other receivables (excluding forward
exchange contracts receivable -net)
Long-term investments
- Those with market value
- Those without market value
Long-term bonds investments
- Those without market value
Refundable deposit

$33,229,762
$1,507,725
$3,582,479

$1,512,723
$3,582,479

$1,711,698
$3,726,335

$1,721,095
$3,726,335

$198,620

$198,620

$252,718

$252,718

$639,463
$317,284

$1,175,501
-

$3,668
$336,931

$136,305
-

$67,576
$12,568

$12,568

$7,733

$7,733

- 120 Global Reports LLC

$33,229,762 $32,239,692 $32,239,692

English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

MEDIATEK INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
Liabilities
Payables (including due to related parties)
Income tax payable
Accrued expenses
Payables to equipment suppliers
Long-term debts (including current portion)
Derivatives
Forward exchange contracts- hedging

$2,666,569

$2,666,569

$4,203,697

$4,203,697

$568,704
$1,425,300
$144,488
$10,643

$568,704
$1,425,300
$144,488
$10,643

$325,524
$1,337,212
$28,182

$325,524
$1,337,212
$28,182

$86,764

$74,829

$8,253

$7,262

The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of derivative financial instruments
are as follows:
(i) The fair value of the Company and its subsidiaries’ short-term financial instruments is based
on the carrying value of those instruments at the reporting date due to the short maturity of
those instruments. The method is applied to cash and cash equivalents, receivables, other
receivables, payables, payables to equipment suppliers, accrued expenses and income tax
payable.
(ii) The fair value of the Company and its subsidiaries’ short-term investments and long-term
investments is based on market prices at the reporting date if market prices are available. The
fair value of the Company and sub sidiaries’ long-term investments is based on relevant
financial or any other information if market prices are not available.
(iii) The fair value of the Company and its subsidiaries’ refundable deposits and restricted deposits
is based on the book value at the reporting date because the estimated future cash receipts were
similar to the book value.
(iv) The fair value of long-term debts is estimated using the discounted cash flow method based on
the Company and its subsidiaries’ borrowing rates for similar types of borrowings.
(v) The fair value of derivative financial instruments (normally including unrealized gains or
losses from outstanding forward exchange contracts) is the amount that the Company and
subsidiaries are entitled to receive or obligated to pay, assuming the Company and subsidiaries
terminated contracts at reporting date.
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MEDIATEK INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – (continued)
(2) Elimination entries between the Company and its subsidiaries
a. Elimination of the long-term investment accounts and the related equity balances:
As of and for the year ended December 31,
In thousand NTD
Entries

2004
Debit

2003
Credit

Debit

Credit

Common stock
11,950,000
11,850,000
Additional paid- in capital
3,448
Legal reserve
22,156
14,582
Consolidated debits
176,009
Minority interest income
9,776
Gain from equity investment
274,780
Long-term equity investments
11,379,858
11,491,008
Minority interest
719
Retained earnings
337,495
108,202
Cumulative translation adjustments
714,649
49,071
Loss from equity investment
219,749
b. Elimination inter-company transactions - sale revenue, cost of goods sold and so on:
Sales revenue
421,758
456,941
Sales returns and discounts
17,727
Cost of sales
47,461
368,006
Selling expense
270,119
29,239
Research and development expense
104,178
41,969
c. Elimination of reciprocal balance:
Payables to related parties
Deferred revenue
Receivables from related parties
Intangible assets
d. Elimination of reciprocal balance:
Dividends income
Amortization
Loss from equity investment
Consolidated debits

9,432
172,596

12,802
100,267
9,432
172,596

43,777
6,995

12,802
100,267

30,356
5,019
43,777
6,995

30,356
5,019

(3) Certain accounts in the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2003 have been reclassified to conform to the presentation of the current
period.
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8. The impact of financial difficulties or insolvency of Mediatek and its affiliates, if any,
upon Mediatek’s financial standing: Nil.
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Six. Financial Profile, Analysis of Operating Performance and
Risk Management
1. Analysis on the financial standing:
Expressed in Thousand New Taiwan Dollars
Year
Descriptions

Year 2003

Year 2004

Increase/decre Variation ratio
(％)
ase amount

Current assets
Long-term investment
Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Other assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Share capital
Capital reserve
Retained earnings
(Legal and special earning reserve)

29,198,230

32,065,252

2,867,022

9.82

11,459,763
1,048,591
275,229
5,490
41,987,303
5,887,267
10,643
54,319
5,952,229
6,415,473
115,906

12,051,928
2,026,699
1,397,248
8,385
47,549,512
4,837,168
74,064
4,911,232
7,693,359
155,924

592,165
978,108
1,122,019
2,895
5,562,209
(1,050,099)
(10,463)
19,745
(1,040,997)
1,277,886
40,018

5.17
93.28
407.67
52.73
13.25
(17.84)
(100.00)
36.35
(17.49)
19.92
34.53

29,608,736

35,559,616

5,950,880

20.10

Cumulative translation adjustments

(49,071)

(714,649)

(665,578)

1,356.36

Treasury stocks
(55,970)
(55,970)
Total shareholders’ equity
36,035,074
42,638,280
6,603,206
18.32
Analytical explanation on increase/decrease change exceeding 20%:
1. Increase in fixed assets: Due primarily to the increase of the uncompleted work for the
construction of the Headquarters Building.
2. Increase in intangible assets:. Due primarily to the increase of the special technology and patents
acquired.
3. Decrease in the long-term liabilities: Due primarily to the repayment completed, without increase
of new liabilities this term.
4. Increase in other liabilities: Due primarily to the increase of the number of employees this term
which led to the rise of pension liabilities.
5. Increase in capital reserve: Due primarily to the facts that the Mediatek stocks held by affiliates
were deemed as treasury stocks and the cash dividend allocated were converted as capital
reserve.
6. Increase in retained earnings: Due primarily to the increase in net earnings this term.
7. Cumulative translation adjustments: Due primarily to the balance of cumulative translation
adjustments incurred by appreciation of the local currency against the greenback and, in turn, the
conversion of the financial statements of the overseas investees, the long-term equity evaluated
by equity method.
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2. Analysis of operating results:
Expressed in Thousand New Taiwan Dollars
Year

Year 2003

Descriptions

Year 2004

Increase/decreas Variation ratio
e amount

(％)

Total operating revenues

39,778,263

41,885,020

2,106,757

5.30

Sales return & allowance

(1,713,844)

(1,830,718)

(116,874)

6.82

Operating revenues, net

38,064,419

40,054,302

1,989,883

5.23

(18,409,446)

(20,438,854)

(2,029,408)

11.02

Gross operating profit

19,654,973

19,615,448

(39,525)

(0.20)

Operating expenses

(4,574,193)

(4,863,857)

(289,664)

6.33

Operating interests

15,080,780

14,751,591

(329,189)

(2.18)

Nonoperating revenues & interests

1,903,858

244,631

(1,659,227)

(87.15)

Nonoperating expenses and loss

(375,594)

(654,945)

279,351

74.38

16,609,044

14,341,277

(2,267,767)

(13.65)

(86,955)

(18,292)

(68,663)

(78.96)

16,522,089

14,322,985

(2,199,104)

(13.31)

Operating costs

Net profit before tax of the
continuing department
Income tax expenses
Net profit after tax of the continuing
department

Analytical explanation on increase/decrease change exceeding 20%:
Decrease of nonoperating revenues and interests:
The major reason:

In 2003, in the litigation Mediatek vs. OAK, ITC of the United States ruled a

decision in favor of Mediatek.

In assessment of the subsequent development, Mediatek is not supposed

to undergo a significant loss in the future.

The sum of approximately NT$1.56 billion previously

anticipated payable was thus restored.
Increase in nonoperating expenses and losses:
Mediatek amortized losses for dull inventory and underwent a rise in losses in foreign exchange this term,
leading to the rising losses in foreign exchange this term.
Increase in income tax expenses:
Due primarily to the facts that the ratio of Mediatek’s nontaxable income increased and the amount of
investment credit increased as well which led to increase in income tax benefits.
In the future as the target market is anticipated to broaden and our new products are scheduled to start up
volume production. In the upcoming year, the sales volume will further grow over the 2004 performance.
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3. Analysis of cash flow:
Expressed in Thousand New Taiwan Dollars
Beginning cash
balance

Net cash flow from
operating activities
year-round

Annual cash
outflow

Amount of
surplus
(inadequacy)
in cash

21,603,107

11,850,806

10,683,766

22,770,147

Countermeasures to make up
the inadequacy
Investment Moneymaking
phase
plan
-

-

3.1 Change in cash flow in the present year
yOperating activities: Net cash inflow NT$11,850,806,000.
yInvesting activities: Net cash outflow NT$3,573,668,000.
y Financing activities: Net cash outflow NT$7,110,098,000.
3.2 Countermeasures to make up the inadequacy in cash and analysis of the current status:
Mediatek does not anticipate any possible shortage in cash.
3.3 Analysis on the current status in cash in the year ahead:
Beginning cash
balance
$22,770,147

Net cash flow from
operating activities
year-round

$10,332,581

Annual cash
outflow

Amount of
anticipated
surplus
(inadequacy) in
cash

$(13,528,127)

$19,574,601

Countermeasures to make
up the inadequacy
Investment Moneymaking
Phase
plan

-

-

4. Impact of major capital expenditures upon the financial performance:
4.1 Application of the Major Capital Expenditure and the Capital Sources:
Expressed in Thousand New Taiwan Dollars
Project items

Actual or
anticipated
capital sources

House
Owned capital
construction
Equipment &
software required Owned capital
for R&D design

Actual or anticipated capital
utilization
Year 2004 2005~Feb 2006

Date of actual or
anticipated
completion

Total amount of
capital required

Feb 2006
(Anticipated)

$3,241,269

$941,243

$2,300,026

Dec 2004
(Actual)

328,149

328,149

-

4.2 Benefits anticipated to yield:
The output and shipment volume, value anticipated to grow:
Expressed in Thousand New Taiwan Dollars
Year

Items

2004

Multimedia IC

Output volume
Shipment
(kpcs)
volume (kpcs)
21,828
21,828

* : Other benefits are enumerated below:
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Shipment
value
$1,228,641

Other
benefits
*

(1) House construction:
To provide employees with comfortable workplaces which would help us recruit
high-caliber talents to develop new products to assure sustainable Mediatek business
operation.
(2) Equipment & software required for R&D design:
They are essential aids and tools for our R&D and new product design.
help accelerate product development and enhance the efficiency of R&D.

These tools

5. Reinvestment Policies, Major Reasons of the Profit or Loss Incurred by Such
Policies, Improvement Plans and Investment Plans for the Coming Year
Expressed in Thousand New Taiwan Dollars
Descriptions

Items
Chih Yang
Technology
Co., Ltd.

Amount of
investment
(*)
994,588

Policies
Investing in related
businesses domestically so as
to enhance our technological
level, expand our product
lines and strengthen our
vertical and horizontal
integration.

Major causes leading to
profit or loss

Corrective
action

1. Cutthroat competition in
the market where the
Mediatek sales have not
been up to anticipation.
2. Mediatek costs have not
been competitive enough.

1. Step up cost
control.
2. Develop new
products of high
gross profits.

Other
investment
plans ahead
Nil

*: The investment of the year in amount in excess of 5% of the paid-in capital.

6. Risk Management
6.1 Impact of Fluctuations in Interest Rate, Exchange Rate and Inflation to the Company’s
Earnings upon the Profitability in the Latest Fiscal Year and Countermeasures in the Future:
The foreign currency held in the Company’s assets and liabilities is primarily U. S. Dollars.
We manage forward foreign exchange contracts in a prudent way so as to minimize the losses
incurred by changes in exchange rates.
In recent years interest rates have rallied step-by-step while the world economy has upturned
at too slow a pace and interest rates in the world market will be still lingering low in the
foreseeable future. We shall invest in short-term products with secured gain. Through such
efforts, we will enhance the profitability in cash. As inflation is not anticipated in the
foreseeable future, Mediatek is subject to very insignificant impact.
6.2 Policies Regarding High Risk, Highly Leveraged Investments, Loans to Third Parties,
Endorsements, Guarantee, Derivatives and Major Reasons Leading to Profit/Loss Incurred in
the Latest Fiscal Year and Future Countermeasures:
We have been extremely cautious in financial management and never engage in high-risk,
highly leveraged investments. We have enacted comprehensive policies and internal control
procedures as required for capital loans to third parties, endorsements, guarantee and trades of
derivative products. We have never engaged in financial deals providing capital loans to any
third parties or endorsements. We only negotiate contracts of derivative trades for hedge
purposes. The profit or loss incurred by fluctuations in exchange rates are thus largely offset
by the loss or profit generated by our hedging activities.
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6.3 R&D Projects in the Latest Fiscal Year and as of the Annual Report Publication Date, future
R&D plans and the R&D costs anticipated to be invested in the future:
R&D Plans

Budget anticipated
(NT$million)

High performance Optical storage chipsets
190
HD-DVD/Blu-ray chipsets
100
High performance DVD-Player single chips
90
High performance DVD-Recorder chipsets
170
Chipsets for new generation and high integration cell phones
637
Digital TV chipsets
626
Subtotal
1,813
6.4 Impact of Changes in Major Domestic or International Policies and Laws upon Mediatek’s
Balance Sheet in the Latest Fiscal Year and the Countermeasures:
All Mediatek managerial team members have been keenly watchful of policies and laws that
are likely to have an impact upon Mediatek. All changes in laws and regulations concerned
in the recent years have not had significant impact upon Mediatek business operations at all.
We shall continually watch the development of laws and make due adjustment as necessary.
6.5 Impact of Technological Changes on the Company’s Balance Sheet in the Latest Fiscal Year
and as of the Annual Report publication date and our countermeasures:
A. In the PC industry, the constant and significant growth in notebook computers will surely
stimulate into growth of slim CD-ROMs. Our key CD-ROM buyers both at home and
abroad have successfully landed in such market and are believed to boost our slim
CD-ROM sales. Besides, DVD-Rewritable and Combi are virtually replacing CD-ROM
drives. We shall, therefore, incessantly develop high performance and low cost
DVD-Rewritable and Combi single chips to successfully transform and materialize such
CD-RW markets and, in turn, broaden the market shares in DVD-Rewritable and Combi.
B. Meanwhile, as the DVD Player market is gradually transforming towards DVD Recorders,
the very key to the success in the market are leading performance and effective system
integration. We shall, therefore, as always, develop high integration function (e.g.,
H.264 and the like) and develop more and more new products.
C. In the process where cell phones are transforming from communications products to cross
into the consumer-oriented electronic products, how shall we integrate the systematic
multimedia integration in an efficient manner and cut short the period required to develop
new products? This should be the key to our success. The Mediatek multimedia cell
project is exactly operating towards a high integration, curtailed development process and
dropping overall costs. As an encouraging result, our such products have been widely
adopted by a good number of cell phone design houses and have been widely marketed
towards Europe, Asia and America. In the future multimedia application of cell phones,
we shall further strive for high integration and low costs. Our such striking products are
believed to be adopted by more and more cell phone giants both at home and throughout
the world.
6.6 Impact of Changes in Corporate Image on Mediatek’s Crisis Management in the Latest Fiscal
Year and the Countermeasures:
As always, Mediatek boasts its respectable corporate image. Firmly sticking to the
human-friendly philosophy, we spare no effort to provide challenging environments optimal
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for learning where our employees are given room to bring out their potential to the maximum.
We solicit top caliber talents and successfully safeguard our honorable position as one of the
world’s leading IC chipset designers. Following our consistent guiding mottos of integrity,
faithfulness, courageousness, prudence and attentiveness, we have not run into any risks that
might untowardly affect our corporate image in recent years and as of the Annual Report
publication date.
6.7 Benefits anticipated from the Merges &Acquisitions underway and the potential risks: Nil
6.8 Benefits anticipated out of the efforts to expand factories and the potential risks: Mediatek
started up the effort to expand its factory buildings in August 2004. The benefits anticipated
out of such efforts include: Providing optimal workplaces to all employees in Hsinchu area
to operate and work together, step up efficiency in work and communications, offer adequate
room for meetings, enhance efficiency in co-working and communications with customers, cut
short the design process for customers, boost customer satisfaction, provide sound living
environments, enhance employee health and loyalty to Mediatek. In the factory broadening
plan, we also reserve the right room and space to accommodate the future growth. All costs
required for factory broadening come from our own capital. The new factory construction
has been carried out by selected and creditable contractors. All the engineering works have
been well insured. We, therefore, do not expect to see any potential risks in such aspect.
6.9 Risks in concentrated vendors or customers: Our current production lines have been in
flexible and scattered layout and are capable of supporting all outsourced production lines in
case of a contingency. We are free of any risk of concentrated vendors. In terms of the
buyers, our products have been extensively marketed to dozens of leading customers in Japan,
Korea, Europe, Southeast Asia and Greater China. We are, as well, free of any risk of
concentrated buyers.
6.10 The impacts and risks upon Mediatek incurred by massive shareholding transfer or
replacement by directors and supervisors or key shareholders holding over 10%: In latest
fiscal year and as of the Annual Report publication date, we have not undergone any
massive shareholding transfer or replacement by directors and supervisors or key
shareholders holding over 10%.
6.11 The impacts and risks upon Mediatek incurred by changes in managerial power: Mediatek
has not undergone such changes in the latest fiscal year and as of the Annual Report
publication date.
6.12 Litigious, non-litigious incidents: In such events, we should name the companies and the
companies’ directors and supervisors, general managers, de facto responsible persons, key
shareholders holding more than 10% of shareholding involved, as well as the affiliates, in
cases having been ruled with a final and irrevocable court verdict or having been pending in
litigious, non-litigious or administrative events.
If the results might affect the
shareholders’ equity or have significant impact upon the stock prices, we should disclose the
facts, target amounts, starting dates of the litigation, major litigants and the progress as of
the Annual Report publication date:
6.12.1 In the initial phase, Mediatek’s technology in CD-ROM drive control chipsets came
from United Microelectronics Corporation. But UMC and OAK of the United
States had been in infringement dispute on such products. In October 1997, OAK,
based on the agreement of settlement reached with UMC, filed litigation with
Northern District of California. Subsequently, Mediatek became one of the
litigants of the patent dispute with OAK. In April 1998, OAK, for the same reason,
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accused Mediatek and UMC through the International Trade Commission (ITC) of
violation of Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 . The final and irrevocable court
verdict rendered in May 2001 proved against OAK. While OAK was merged into
Zoran, the litigant position of OAK was obtained by Zoran. In 2003, on the
grounds of the ITC’s final and irrevocable verdict and the subsequent development,
Mediatek assessed that the litigious case would not possibly lead to a gross loss to
Mediatek and, in turn, restored NT$1,557,540,000 as licensing fee payable from the
accounts concerned.. For cases existent between Mediatek and Zoran, there is only
one case on infringement of pecuniary interests pending with Northern District of
California. As of March 31, 2005, the balance of royalty payable estimated came
to NT$419,056,000 which has been entered under the title of “accrued expense
payable”.
6.12.2 On March 10, 2004, Zoran and OAK accused Mediatek through ITC that Mediatek
CD-ROM drive and DVD player ship sets had infringed upon three American patents
of Zoran and OAK (Patent codes: 6466736, 6584527 and 6546440) in violation of
Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930). ITC of the United States already held a
hearing on the case in February 2005. At the moment, ITC is scheduled to come to
the final verdict in September 2005. Besides, Zoran and OAK further filed patent
infringement litigation with Central District of California on the three patents,
claiming damages indemnity and discontinuation of infringement. That litigation
has been referred to Northern District of California.
6.12.3 On July 23, 2004, Mediatek file litigation with ITC and Delaware Federal District
Court of the United States, accusing Zoran and OAK of having infringed upon
Mediatek’s Patents in the United States on Servo control chip and player quakeproof
system (Patent Codes 6229773 and 5970031). Mediatek requested that ITC start up
investigation right away and further requested that ITC ban import of all Zoran and
OAK products which had infringed upon the two patents. We demanded that
Delaware Federal District Court ban Zoran and OAK from infringing upon the two
patents of Mediatek with a claim of indemnity in an amount three times the value of
the willful infringement. ITC already launched an investigation on August 26, 2004.
Subsequently, Mediatek demanded that Sunext Technology Co., Ltd. be additionally
named as a Defendant and that additional accusation be imposed upon Zoran, OAK
and Sunext Technology Co., Ltd. for having infringed upon another CD-ROM
firmware renewal technology in the United States, Patent Code 6170043. The ITC
of the United States approved on October 7, 2004 of the amended claim by Mediatek
and was scheduled to hold hearing on the case in late June 2005. The final and
irrevocable verdict is anticipated to come out no later than November 2005.
6.12.4 The motion picture companies Metro-Goldwyn-Mayer Studios Inc., Paramount
Pictures Corporation, Sony Pictures Entertainment Inc., Twentieth Century Fox Film
Corporation, Universal City Studios LLLP, The Walt Disney Company and Warner
Bros. Entertainment Inc. accused Mediatek in the Superior Court of the State of
California on August 23, 2004 with a claim that Mediatek had violated a certain
licensing contract by selling certain chips to unlicensed customers. In April 2005,
Mediatek already reached the out-of-court settlement. In the premise that neither
party admits fault, the Plaintiff agreed to withdraw the accusation and Mediatek
agreed to jointly team up with the Plaintiff to safeguard the consistent standing of
complying with the contract to respect and safeguard the Plaintiff’s intellectual
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property rights.
6.12.5 Mediatek and its investee file litigation with the Medium People’s Court Shenzhen,
accusing Zoran and its Shenzhen Representative Office of having their products
infringed upon Patent 97120448.9 that Mediatek had registered in China. Mediatek
requested that the court immediately launch investigation with a claim that the
Defendants indemnify Mediatek of the pecuniary loss and that the Defendants be
banned from import, export, marketing of all products that have infringed upon
Mediatek patent.
6.13 Major risks otherwise: Nil.

7. Major events otherwise: Nil.
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Seven. Corporate Governance
Item
1. Company’s stock right structure and shareholder equity
1.1 How does Mediatek manage shareholders’
proposals and dispute?
1.2 List of the shareholders having the substantial
control over Mediatek and the people having the
final control over the key shareholders.
1.3 How does Mediatek set up the risk control regime
and firewall with affiliates?
2. The organization, powers and responsibilities of board
of directors.
2.1 Mediatek’s setup of independent directors.

2.2 Regular assessment of the independence of the
auditing CPAs.
3. The organization, powers and responsibilities of
supervisors.
3.1 Facts of Mediatek’s setup of independent
supervisors.

3.2 The coordination and communications by
supervisors with employees and shareholders.

Execution

Deviation from the Corporate
Governance Best-Practice Principles for
TSE /GTSM Listed Companies and the
causes

Mediatek has set allocated people in charge of corporate relationships, public relations, Nil
legal affairs to take charge of shareholders’ proposals and disputes.
Mediatek takes firm command of the shareholding update of directors and supervisors, Nil
managerial officers and key shareholders who hold over 10% of shareholding.
In all affiliates, the firewall regime has been put into consideration. The subsidiaries Nil
have enacted sound internal control systems as well.
At the moment, Mediatek has two director seats held by external directors (i.e., Mediatek has set up external directors
Statutory representative Mr. Ming-Je Tang of National Taiwan University and Statutory and will further set up independent
representative Mr. Chung-yu Wu of National Chiao Tung University.)
directors in the future as the actual
requirements may justify.
Mediatek’s hiring and replacement of the CPAs shall be subject to approval by the board Nil
of directors which shall, meanwhile, conduct regular assessment and discussion on the
CPAs’ independence. To ensure the CPA independence, the board of directors will
replace a CPA who has audited Mediatek for up to five years.
At the moment, Mediatek has an external supervisor (Statutory representative: Mr. Mediatek has set up external supervisors
Chiung-lang Liu of National Tsing Hua University)
and will further set up independent
supervisors in the future as the actual
requirements may justify.
The Mediatek staff shall report to the supervisors on a periodic basis. All supervisor Nil
information is deemed open and public to all employees, shareholders and interested
parties who may take the initiative to contact the supervisors all the time.
Mediatek has allocated designated people to manage affairs with different targets and Nil
situations.

4. Setup of the communications channels with interested
people.
5. Full disclosure of information
5.1 Facts of corporate websites to disclose financial
Through Mediatek website in both Chinese and English (www.mtk.com.tw), Mediatek Nil
standing and corporate governance.
discloses corporate governance related information all the time.
5.2 Other methods adopted by Mediatek for information Mediatek has assigned allocated people to collect and disclose corporate information, Nil
disclosure (e.g., establishment of website in English, putting into effect thoroughly the spokesman system as required. In the corporate
designation of allocated people to disclose corporate person presentation, Mediatek synchronous and asynchronously places corporate data
information, putting into effect thoroughly the
through the websites and provide observatory information and the update to
spokesman system, process of corporate person
shareholders through open information observatory.
presentation and placement of corporate websites)
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Deviation from the Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice Principles for
Item
Execution
TSE /GTSM Listed Companies and the
causes
6. Fact of Mediatek’s establishment of Audit Committee Nil
Mediatek will set up in the future as the
and such functional committees.
actual requirements may justify.
7. If Mediatek has enacted the Practical Corporate Governance Regulations based on the “Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for TSE/GTSM Listed Companies”, please describe
the operation and the discrepancy from the Practical Corporate Governance Regulations:
Mediatek has not yet enacted the Practical Corporate Governance Regulations. For performance of corporate governance, please refer to the disclosure of the Annual Report.
8. Other facts that are helpful to look into the corporate governance (e.g., higher education by the directors and supervisors, attendance by directors, and by the supervisors as an observer, in
the board of directors meeting, policies of risk management and enforcement of risk measuring criteria; the liability insurance purchased by Mediatek for the directors and supervisors and
the social responsibility.
8.1 All Mediatek’s directors and supervisors are experts coming from respective fields. Mediatek keep all directors and supervisors informed of all legal updates all the time.
Meanwhile, Mediatek’s managerial team briefs directors and supervisors of business and other updates. Update regarding higher education by directors and supervisors is disclosed
in Mediatek’s “Open Information Observatory/Corporate governance / Facts of Directors and Supervisors’ Participation in the Board of Directors Meeting and Higher Education”
8.2 Mediatek’s board of directors held a total of 18 meetings in 2004. The Directors and Supervisors show the following participating records:
Names
Chairman
Director
Director
Director

Ming-Kai Tsai
Jyh-Jer Cho
Ding-jen Liu
National Taiwan University

Statutory representative:

Ming-Je Tang

Times of participation as a director
or as an observer
18
10
12
12

Director

National Chiao Tung University

Statutory representative:

Chung-yu Wu

16

Supervisor United Microelectronics Corporation

Statutory representative: Grace Li

Supervisor Century Venture Capital Corp.
Statutory representative: Paul Wang
Supervisor National Tsing Hua University Statutory representative: Chiung-lang Liu

17
10
16

As of the Annual Report publication date, the facts of participation by directors and by supervisors as an observer were detailed in “Open Information Observatory/Corporate
governance / Facts of Directors and Supervisors’ Participation in the Board of Directors Meeting and Higher Education”
8.3 In accordance with laws and regulations concerned, Mediatek has enacted comprehensive internal control system and put it into solid enforcement. Meanwhile, Mediatek conducts
assessment on risks over corresponding banks, customers and vendors in due time to minimize credit risks.
8.4 All Mediatek’s directors shall withdraw from the issues which involve their interests.
8.5 Mediatek has purchased liability insurance for directors and supervisors and key staff members.
8.6 Mediatek donated and set up Mediatek Technology Education Foundation in 2002 to encourage academic R&D. This well suggests that Mediatek is a typical corporate citizen
faithfully assuming the social responsibility.
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Eight. Special Notes
1.Affiliate Information
1.1 Organizational Chart of Affiliates
As of December 31, 2004

MediaTek Inc.

Ali Corporation
31.28﹪
(Table I)

Chih Yang
Electronics
Co.,Ltd.
99.00﹪

MediaTek Captial

Core Tech

Core Tech

Core Tech

Limited

100﹪

Resources Inc.

Resources Inc.

Resources Inc.

34.96﹪

32.52﹪

32.52﹪

MediaTek

CrystalMedia

Inc.

Limited

Technology,Inc.

100﹪

100﹪

100﹪

MediaTek
Inc(Hofei)
100﹪

MediaTek
Singapore Pte.
Ltd.
100﹪

MediaTek Software
Programming
(Shenzhen)Co., Ltd.
100﹪
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Hsu-Kang
Investment
100﹪

Gaintech Co.

100﹪

Wireless ICs,

Hsu-Chia
Investment
100﹪

Hsu-Ta
Investment
100﹪

MediaTek
Investment
100﹪

Alpha Imaging
Technology
Corporation
52.66﹪

Pixtel Media
Technology Private
Ltd.
99.99﹪

(Table I)

As of December 31, 2004

ALi Corporation

Yu Li Electronics
Co., Ltd.

Microelectronics Corporation

Chih Tung
Electronics Co., Ltd.

ALi Microelectronics
Corporation, USA

Teng Chih (H.K.)
International Co.,
Ltd.

100%

100%

100%

100% (*1)

ALi (BVI)

58.18%

ULi Electronics
Inc. (BVI)
100%

ALi Electronics
(Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd.

ALi Electronics
(Suzhou) Co.,
Ltd.

T-Square
Technology Inc.
(Cayman)

100%

100% (*2)

100%

Yu Tong Electronics
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd

ULi Electronics
Inc. USA

100%

100%

*1:

ALinx
Technology
(BVI) Corp.
100%

Ke Guang
Electronics
(Beijing) Co., Ltd

Ke Guang
Electronics
(Zhuhai) Co., Ltd

100%

100%

T-Square
Design Inc.
100% (*2)

Ke Guang
Electronics
(Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd
100%

Teng Chih International (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. entered into liquidation procedures in October 2004 . The
liquidation procedures have not been completed yet.

*2:

ALi Electronics (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. and T-Square Design Inc.completed the liquidation procedures in
August and November 2004 respectively.
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1.2 Fundamental particulars of affiliates:
Expressed in Thousands in NT Dollars/foreign currencies

Company name

Date of
incorporation
2000/07/28
2000/09/11
2002/09/11
2002/09/11
2002/09/12
2000/08/03
2000/10/19
2002/11/12
2003/06/23
2003/06/02

Address

MediaTek Investment Co.
Taiwan
MediaTek Capital Co.
Taiwan
Hsu-Ta Investment Ltd.
Taiwan
Hsu-Kang Investment Ltd.
Taiwan
Hsu-Chia Investment Ltd.
Taiwan
Gaintech Co. Limited
Cayman Islands
MediaTek Limited
Western Samoa
Core Tech Resources Inc.
B.V.I.
Wireless Ics, Inc.
U.S.A.
Crystal Media Technology, Inc.
U.S.A.
Alpha
Imaging
Technology
Taiwan
2002/10/27
Corporation
Mediatek Technology (Hofei) Co.,
China
2003/08/11
Ltd. .
Mediatek Software Programming
China
2003/10/16
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
Chih Yang Electronics Co., Ltd.
2004/3/10 Taiwan
Pixtel Media Technology Private Ltd.
2004/5/20 India
MediaTek Singapore Pte. Ltd.
2004/6/17 Singapore
Chih Yang Technology Co., Ltd.
1993/6/10 Taiwan
Teng Chih International (Hong Kong)
Hong Kong
1992/8
Co., Ltd.
ALi Microelectronics Corporation, USA
1996/12
USA
ALi (BVI)
British
Virgin
1999/11
Microelectronics Corporation
Islands
Chih Yang Electronics (Shanghai) Co.,
2000/5
China
Ltd.
T-Square Technology Inc.
1999/12
Cayman Islands
Yang Chih Electronics (Suzhou) Co.,
2002/6
China
Ltd.
T-Square Design Inc.
1996/8
USA
Ko Guang Electronics (Zhuhai) Co.,
1996/11
China
Ltd.
Ko Guang Electronics (Beijing) Co.,
1996/7
China
Ltd.
Chih Tung Electronics Co., Ltd.
2002/10
Taiwan
British
Virgin
ALinx Technology (BVI) Corp.
2003/4
Islands
Ko Guang Micro-Electronics
2001/6
China
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Yu Li Electronics Co., Ltd.
2002/12
Taiwan
British Virgin
ULi Electronics Inc.(BVI)
2004/9
Islands

Paid-in capital

Major business lines

NTD1,850,000 Investment-oriented business
NTD520,000 Investment-oriented business
NTD3,500,000 Investment-oriented business
NTD3,250,000 Investment-oriented business
NTD3,250,000 Investment-oriented business
USD
35,407 Investment-oriented business
USD
3,500 Investment, sales
USD
2,860 Investment-oriented business
USD
100 IC design services
USD
100 IC design services
IC design services
NTD 148,110
Technological services toward
customers
Technological services toward
USD
400
customers
NTD 100,000 IC design services
INR 55,000 R&D
SGD
1,360 R&D
NTD1,820,607 IC design services
USD

400

HKD

3,800 Buy and sales of chipsets

USD

1,800 Buy and sales of chipsets

USD

22,628 Holding corporation

NTD

IC product sales and
after-sales service
4,040 Holding corporation
IC product sales and
after-sales service
- Buy and sales of chipsets
IC product sales and
5,716
after-sales service
IC product sales and
1,242
after-sales service
150,890 IC design services

USD

360 Holding corporation

RMB 10,681
USD

RMB
RMB

IC product sales and
after-sales service
NTD 825,000 IC design services
Holding corporation
USD
1,410
RMB

ULi Electronics Inc.(USA)

2004/9

USA

USD

Yu Tong Electronics (Shanghai) Ltd.

2004/12

China

RMB

8,280

IC product sales and
after-sales service
IC product sales and
2,483
after-sales service
900

1.3 Data of shareholders presumed same as the holding and affiliate relationship: Nil.
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1.4 Business lines covered by the entire Mediatek and affiliates:
Business lines operated by the entire Mediatek and affiliates include optical storage products,
high-end consumer oriented digital products and wireless communications product chipsets
for R&D, marketing, after-sales service as well as general investment-oriented business.
Through sound division of labor, affiliates obtain advanced know-how to safeguard
Mediatek’s leading position in the world markets.
1.5 Information of directors and supervisors, general managers of affiliates:

Company name
MediaTek
Investment Co.

Position title
Director/chairman
Director/General
manager
Director
Supervisor

MediaTek Capital
Director/chairman
Co.
Director/General
manager
Director
Supervisor
Hsu-Ta Investment
Ltd.
Hsu-Kang
Investment Ltd.
Hsu-Chia
Investment Ltd.
Gaintech Co.
Limited
MediaTek Limited
Core Tech
Resources Inc.

Wireless ICs, Inc.

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

Director

Director
Director
Director

Crystal Media
Technology, Inc.

Director
Director
Director

Expressed in number of shares; %
No. of shares held
Name or statutory representative
Shareholding
No. of shares
ratio
Mediatek Inc.
185,000,000
100.00
(Statutory representative: Ming-Kai Tsai)
Mediatek Inc.(Statutory representative:
185,000,000
100.00
Jyh-Jer Cho)
Mediatek Inc.
185,000,000
100.00
(Statutory representative: Ming-tuo Yu)
Mediatek Inc.
185,000,000
100.00
(Statutory representative: Hui-ling Lin)
MediaTek Investment Co.
52,000,000
100.00
(Statutory representative: Ming-Kai Tsai)
MediaTek Investment Co.
52,000,000
100.00
(Statutory representative: Jyh-Jer Cho)
MediaTek Investment Co.
52,000,000
100.00
(Statutory representative: Ming-tuo Yu)
MediaTek Investment Co
52,000,000
100.00
.(Statutory representative: Hui-ling Lin)
Mediatek Inc.
N/A
100.00
(Statutory representative: Ming-Kai Tsai)
Mediatek Inc.
N/A
100.00
(Statutory representative: Ming-Kai Tsai)
Mediatek Inc.
N/A
100.00
(Statutory representative: Ming-Kai Tsai)
MediaTek Investment Co
35,407,000
100.00
.(Statutory representative: Ming-Kai Tsai)
Gaintech Co. Limited
3,500,000
100.00
(Statutory representative: Ming-Kai Tsai)
Hsu-Ta Investment Ltd.
Hsu-Kang Investment Ltd.
2,860,000
100.00
Hsu-Chia Investment Ltd.
(Statutory representative: Ming-Kai Tsai)
Gaintech Co. Limited
100,000
100.00
(Statutory representative: Ming-Kai Tsai)
Gaintech Co. Limited
100,000
100.00
(Statutory representative: Jyh-Jer Cho)
Gaintech Co. Limited
100,000
100.00
(Statutory representative: Hung-hsi Hsueh)
Gaintech Co. Limited
100,000
100.00
(Statutory representative: Ming-Kai Tsai)
Gaintech Co. Limited
100,000
100.00
(Statutory representative: Jyh-Jer Cho)
Gaintech Co. Limited
(Statutory representative: Ming-tuo Yu)
100,000
100.00
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Company name
Alpha Imaging
Technology
Corporation

Position title

Name or statutory representative

Director/chairman

MediaTek Capital Co.
(Statutory representative: Ming-Kai Tsai)

Director/General
manager
Director
Director
Supervisor
Mediatek
Technology (Hofei) Director/chairman
Co., Ltd. .

3.38

Yi-chih Lin
MediaTek Capital Co.
(Statutory representative: Shih-lang Tsai)
MediaTek Capital Co.
(Statutory representative: Ming-tuo Yu)

360,000

2.43

7,800,000

52.66

7,800,000

52.66

N/A

100.00

N/A

100.00

N/A

100.00

N/A

100.00

N/A

100.00

N/A

100.00

100,000

1.00

100,000

1.00

100,000

1.00

100,000

1.00

56,926,200

31.28

1,205

0.00

56,926,200

31.28

3,800,000

100.00

3,600,000

100.00

0

0.00

22,628,000

100.00

MediaTek Limited
(Statutory representative: Wen-chen Huang)

Director

ALi(BVI)
(Statutory representative: Ping-hsing Lu)

Director/chairman
Director
Director
Supervisor
Director/chairman
Director/General
manager
Supervisor

ALi(BVI)
Microelectronics
Corporation
Chih Yang
Electronics
(Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd.

500,000

Chih Yang Technology Co., Ltd.

Director

Teng Chih
International (Hong
Kong) Co., Ltd.
Ali
Microelectronics
Corporation, USA

Chih-chan Yen

Director

Mediatek Software
Director/chairman
Programming
(Shenzhen)
Co.,
Ltd.
Director

Chih Yang
Technology Co.,
Ltd.

52.66

General manager

Director

Chih Yang
Electronics Co.,
Ltd.

7,800,000

MediaTek Limited
(Statutory representative: Ching-chiang Hsien)
MediaTek Limited
(Statutory representative: Wen-hsin Wang)
MediaTek Limited
(Statutory representative: Wen-chen Huang)
MediaTek Limited
(Statutory representative: Ching-chiang Hsien)
MediaTek Limited
(Statutory representative: Wen-hsin Wang)
Chih Yang Technology Co., Ltd.
(Statutory representative: Ching-chiang Hsien)
Chih Yang Technology Co., Ltd.
(Statutory representative: Ming-Kai Tsai)
Chih Yang Technology Co., Ltd.
(Statutory representative: Hsiu Huang)
Chih Yang Technology Co., Ltd.
(Statutory representative: Ming-tuo Yu)
Mediatek Inc.
(Statutory representative: Ming-Kai Tsai)
MediaTek Capital Co.
(Statutory representative: Ping-hsing Lu)
Mediatek Inc.
(Statutory representative: Ching-chang Yeh)
Under liquidation procedures, Yang Chih
Technology Co., Ltd. (Former Statutory
representatives: Chih-chih Wu, Chun-liang Hsiu)
Chih Yang Technology Co., Ltd.
(Statutory representative: Jyh-Jer Cho,
Ching-chiang Hsien)
Ping-hsing Lu

Director

Director

Director
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No. of shares held
Shareholding
No. of shares
ratio

100.00
N/A

Company name

Name or statutory representative

Director

ALi(BVI) Microelectronics Corporation

Director

T-Square Technology Inc.
(Statutory representative: Ping-hsing Lu,
Ching-lin Tsai)

N/A

100.00

Director

T-Square Technology Inc.
(Statutory representative: Ping-hsing Lu)

N/A

100.00

Director/chairman

Chih Yang Technology Co., Ltd.
(Statutory representative: Ching-chiang Hsien)

15,089,000

100.00

15,089,000

100.00

15,089,000

100.00

15,089,000

100.00

360,000

100.00

N/A

100.00

48,000,000

58.18

48,000,000

58.18

250,000

0.30

48,000,000

58.18

1,410,000

100.00

900,000

100.00

0

0.00

T-Square
Technology Inc.

Ko Guang
Electronics
(Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.
Ko Guang
Electronics
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.
Chih Tung
Electronics Co.,
Ltd.

Director
Director
Supervisor
ALinx Technology
(BVI) Corp.
Ko Guang
Micro-Electronics
(Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd.
Yu Li Electronics
Co., Ltd.

Director

Director

Director/chairman
Director
General manager
Supervisor

ULi Electronics
Inc.(BVI)
ULi Electronics
Inc.(USA)

Director
Director
General manager

Yu Tong
Electronics
(Shanghai) Ltd.

Chih Yang Technology Co., Ltd.
(Statutory representative: Ching-lin Tsai)
Chih Yang Technology Co., Ltd.
(Statutory representative: Ping-hsing Lu)
Chih Yang Technology Co., Ltd.
(Statutory representative: Ming-tuo Yu)
Chih Tung Electronics Co., Ltd.
(Statutory representative: Ping-hsing Lu)
ALinx Technology (BVI) Corp
Chih Yang Technology Co., Ltd.
(Statutory representative: Ming-tuo Yu)
Chih Yang Technology Co., Ltd.
(Statutory representative: Tsung-ling Kuo,
David Ku)
Tsung-ling Kuo
Chih Yang Technology Co., Ltd.
(Statutory representative: Mei-wen Wang)
Yu Li Electronics Co., Ltd.
(Statutory representative: Tsung-ling Kuo)
Uli Electronics Inc.(BVI)
(Statutory representative: Yi-chung Cheng,
Ming-teh Chen)
Yi-chung Cheng

Director

Uli Electronics Inc.
(Statutory representative: Tsung-ling Kuo)

N/A

100.00

General manager

Tsung-ling Kuo

N/A

0.00
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No. of shares held
Shareholding
No. of shares
ratio
20,000,000
including:
16,800,000
common
100.00
shares,
3,200,000
preferred
shares

Position title

1.6 Business performance by various affiliates:
Expressed in Thousand in NT Dollars/foreign currencies
Profitability
EPS
Total
Total
Operating Operating
Capital
Net worth
this term
(NT$)
Company name
assets liabilities
revenues profit/(loss)
(after tax) (after tax)
MediaTek Investment Co. NTD 1,850,000 1,610,472
40 1,610,431 136,624
136,607
136,601
0.74
MediaTek Capital Co.
NTD 520,000 603,008
4,919 598,089 118,423
104,616
99,776
1.92
Hsu-Ta Investment Ltd. NTD 3,500,000 3,316,703
50 3,316,653
48,100
47,901
47,901
N/A
Hsu-Kang Investment
NTD 3,250,000 3,083,459
51 3,083,408
44,745
44,682
44,682
N/A
Ltd.
Hsu-Chia Investment Ltd. NTD 3,250,000 3,083,494
50 3,083,444
44,804
44,741
44,741
N/A
Gaintech Co. Limited
USD 35,407
32,450
830
31,620
1,186
1,093
1,093
0.03
MediaTek Limited
USD
3,500
3,689
106
3,583
6,000
2,997
2,505
0.72
Core Tech Resources Inc. USD
2,860 292,748
1 292,747
4,359
4,114
4,114
1.44
Wireless ICs, Inc.
USD
100
2,534
2,866
(332)
1,700
(694)
(672)
(6.72)
Crystal Media
USD
100
1,774
2,341
(567)
1,417
(1,085)
(1,072)
(10.72)
Technology, Inc.
Alpha Imaging
NTD 148,110 383,441 63,233 320,208 444,971
172,658
162,295
10.96
Technology Corporation
Mediatek Technology
USD
400
375
452
(77)
799
(396)
(395)
N/A
(Hofei) Co., Ltd. .
Mediatek Software
Programming (Shenzhen) USD
400
777
491
286
1,257
(35)
(35)
N/A
Co., Ltd.
Chih Yang Technology
NTD 1,820,607 4,365,008 2,863,509 1,501,499 6,085,869
(311,108)
(1,390,863)
(7.66)
Co., Ltd.
Chih Yang Electronics
NTD 100,000 118,415
5,716 112,699
35,125
16,915
12,699
1.27
Co., Ltd.
Teng Chih International
NTD 15,597
0
0
0
0
(36)
(36)
(0.01)
(Hong Kong) Co., Ltd.
ALi Microelectronics
NTD 57,451
29,553 10,562
18,991 142,177
(20,437)
(26,454)
(7.35)
Corporation, U.S.A
ALi(BVI)
Microelectronics
NTD 722,218 177,520
2,014 175,506 113,417
(1,913)
(343,489)
(15.18)
Corporation
Chih Yang Electronics
NTD 41,189
86,727
8,927
77,801 124,133
(875)
644
N/A
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Yang Chih Electronics
0
(111)
(151)
N/A
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd.
T-Square Technology Inc. NTD 128,945
83,970
173
83,797 158,159
3,651
(11,027)
(0.55)
T-Square Design Inc.
0
(867)
(6,053)
Ko Guang Electronics
NTD 22,004
32,566
4,620
27,946
66,735
5,821
11,374
N/A
(Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.
Ko Guang Electronics
NTD
4,789
6,759
1,898
4,861
26,618
7,383
7,401
N/A
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.
Chih Tung Electronics
NTD 150,890
49,015
5,126
43,888
25,410
(107,550)
(106,036)
(0.70)
Co., Ltd.
ALinx Technology (BVI)
NTD 11,490
16,328
0
16,328
49,986
(242)
5,068
14.08
Corp.
Ko Guang
NTD 31,930
20,290
4,043
16,247
66,574
14,210
14,313
N/A
Micro-Electronics
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Yu Li Electronics Co.,
NTD 825,000 1,349,957 371,606 978,351 1,630,144
150,304
92,107
1.12
Ltd.
ULi Electronics Inc.
NTD 31,730
34,426
4,963
29,463
8,864
397
(16,225)
(11.51)
(BVI)
ULi Electronics
NTD 28,725
15,947
3,462
12,485
0
(16,959)
(16,956)
(18.84)
Inc.(USA)
Yu Tong Electronics
NTD
9,575
18,115
8,229
9,886
2,866
485
325
N/A
(Shanghai) Ltd.
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2. Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliates and CPA’s Re-audit Reports

Declaration
I. We have duly worked out the Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliates for Fiscal 2004
(Starting from January 1, 2004 till December 31, 2004) in accordance with “Guidelines for
Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliates and Relevant Reports”, laws and regulations
concerned and generally accepted accounting principles.

II. We further declare subject to penalty of perjury that all facts mentioned above are true and
correct, free of misrepresentation.

Company name:

Mediatek Inc.

Responsible person:

Ming-Kai Tsai

February 2, 2005
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Mediatek Inc.
CPAs’ Re-audit Reports on Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliates
We, the Undersigned CPAs, have duly re-audited the Consolidated Financial Statements of
Affiliates of Mediatek Inc. 2004. We completed the re-audit process in accordance with
“Guidelines Governing Re-audit of Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliates” with re-audit
process as necessary. Where we have not conducted audit in accordance with generally accepted
auditing principles, we are not in a position to express opinions regarding whether or not the
aforementioned Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliates demonstrate an overall
appropriateness.
The results of our re-audit indicate that in the process of re-audit, we have not found that the
Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliates of Mediatek Inc. 2004 mentioned in the first
paragraph have violated “Guidelines Governing Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliates and
the Related Report”, laws and regulations concerned and generally accepted accounting principles.
Therefore, the Statements call for no major amendment or administration.

To:

Mediatek Inc.
Diwan Ernst & Young
File # of Securities and Futures Commission
Approval of Public Companies in Financial
Statements
Audit certification code:
(90)-Tai-Tsai-Cheng-(VI)-100690
(91)-Tai-Tsai-Cheng-(VI)-144183
Hui-hsin Yeh

CPA:
Ting-ming Chang

February 2, 2005
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MEDIATEK INC.
AND AFFILIATES
COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WITH
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2004
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REPRESENTATION LETTER
The combined balance sheet as of December 31, 2004 and the related combined statement of income
for the year ended December 31, 2004 of Mediatek Inc. and affiliates were prepared in conformity
with the “Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and
Consolidated Financial Statement of Affiliated Enterprises,” relevant regulations, and generally
accepted accounting principles in the Republic of China.
No misrepresentations were made and no important matters were concealed in the preparation of the
combined financial statements of Mediatek Inc. and affiliates.
Very truly yours,

MediaTek Inc.

Chairman: Ming-Kai Tsai

Date: February 2, 2005

- 144 Global Reports LLC

English Translation of a Report Originally Issued in Chinese
Independent Auditors' Review Report
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Mediatek Inc.
We have reviewed the combined balance sheet of MediaTek Inc. and affiliates as of December 31,
2004 and the related combined statement of income for the year then ended. Our review was made
in accordance with the “Guidelines for the Review of Combined Financ ial Statements of
Affiliates.” It is substantially less in scope than an examination in accordance with auditing
standard generally accepted in the Republic of China (R.O.C .), the objective of which is the
expression of an opinion regarding the combined balance sheet and the combined statement
of income taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
combined balance sheet and the combined statement of income referred to above in order for them to
be in conformity with the “Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated
Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises,” relevant
regulations, and generally accepted accounting principles in the R.O.C.

Diwan, Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
February 2, 2005
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

Notice to Readers
The reader is advised that these financial statements have been prepared originally in Chinese. In the event of
a conflict between these financial statements and the original Chinese version or difference in interpretation
between the two versions, the Chinese language financial statements shall prevail.
The accompanying combined financial statements are intended only to present the combined financial
position and results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in the R.O.C. and not those of any other jurisdiction. The standards, procedures and
practices to audit such combined financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in the R.O.C.
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English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
MEDIATEK INCO. AND AFFILIATES
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 2004
(Reviewd, Not Audited)
(Amounts in thousand New Taiwan dollars)

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments(net)
Notes and accounts receivable(net)
Receivables from related parties
Other receivables
Inventories(net)
Prepayments and other current assets
Deferred income tax assets-current(net)
Restricted deposits-current
Total current assets
Long-term investments
Long-term equity investments
Accounted for under the cost method
Long-term bond investments
Total long-term investments
Property, plant and equipment
Land
Buildings and facilities
Machinery and equipment
Research and development equipment
Miscellaneous equipment
Total cost
Less : Accumulated depreciation
Add : Construction in progress
Prepayments for equipment
Property, plant and equipment(net)
Intangible assets
Software
Patents and IPs
Total intangible assets
Other assets
Leased assets(net)
Refundable deposits
Deferred expenses
Deferred income tax assets-noncurrent
Consolidated debits
Total other assets
Total assets

2004

Notes

ASSETS

2, 4(1)
2, 4(2), 6
2, 4(3)
5
4(4), 10(1)
2, 4(5)

$

2, 4(22)
6

33,709,495
2,033,720
4,335,565
9,752
365,203
3,924,703
623,058
852,118
191,670
46,045,284

64.54
3.89
8.30
0.02
0.70
7.51
1.19
1.63
0.37
88.15

Current liabilities
Short-term loans
Short-term notes(net)
Notes and accounts payable
Payables to related parties
Income tax payable
Accrued expenses
Payables to equipment suppliers
Convertible bonds-current portion
Long-term debts-current portion
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

4(8)
4(9)

％

Amount
$

5
2, 4(22)
7(1)
2, 4(10)
4(11)

1,030,000
109,868
2,401,676
1,009,091
587,933
1,601,524
144,488
929,234
10,643
185,787
8,010,244

1.97
0.21
4.60
1.93
1.13
3.07
0.28
1.78
0.02
0.36
15.35

184,445
39,808
1,362,867
1,587,120

0.35
0.08
2.61
3.04

9,597,364

18.39

7,693,359

14.73

69,689
84,975
1,260
155,924

0.13
0.16
0.29

2, 4(6)
454,391
67,576
521,967
2, 4(7), 5, 6
932,153
1,278,920
82,914
925,886
191,563
3,411,436
(708,708)
943,865
20,064
3,666,657

2
2, 5

513,242
762,139
1,275,381

4(7), 6

135,424
18,899
17,604
102,724
451,704
726,355

2
2, 4(22)

$

52,235,644

0.87
0.13 Other liabilities
1.00 Other liabilities
Accrued pension liabilities
Minority interest
1.78
Total other liabilities
2.45
0.16
Total liabilities
1.77
0.37
6.53
(1.36) Shareholders' equities
1.81 Capital
0.04
Common stock
7.02 Capital reserve
Additional paid-in capital
Treasury stock transaction
0.98
Donated assets
1.46
Total capital reserve
2.44 Retained earnings
Legal reserve
Special reserve
0.26
Undistributed earnings
0.04 Cumulative translation adjustments
0.03 Treasury stock-cost
0.20
Total shareholders' equities
0.86
1.39
100.00 Total liabilities and shareholders' equities

The accompanying notes are an integral part to these financial statements.
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2004

Notes

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equities

％

Amount

2, 4(12)

4(13)
4(15)

4(14), 4(17)
4(17)
4(17)
2
2, 4(18)

4,147,524
49,071
31,363,021
(714,649)
(55,970)
42,638,280

$

52,235,644

7.94
0.09
60.04
(1.37)
(0.11)
81.61

100.00

English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
MEDIATEK INC. AND AFFILIATES
COMBINED STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2004
(Reviewd, Not Audited)
(Amounts in thousand New Taiwan dollars, except earnings per share)
Description

Notes

Gross sales

$

2004
Amount
49,982,433
(1,865,964)

Less : Sales returns and discounts
Net sales

2, 4(20), 5

Cost of goods sold

4(21)

Gross profits
Operating expenses

%
103.88
(3.88)

48,116,469

100.00

(26,803,001)

(55.70)

21,313,468

44.30

2, 4(21), 5

Selling expenses
Administration expenses
Research and development expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating income

(604,049)

(1.26)

(1,345,201)

(2.79)

(4,917,243)

(10.22)

(6,866,493)

(14.27)

14,446,975

30.03

352,965

0.73

Non-operating income
Interest income
Gain on disposal of short-term investments

2

20,854

0.04

Gain on market price recovery of short-term investments

2

6,334

0.01

Reversal of bad debts

2

21,804

0.05

80,093

0.17

482,050

1.00

(30,810)

(0.06)

Others
Total non-operating income
Non-operating expenses
Interest expense
Permanent loss on long-term investments

2, 4(6)

(29,054)

(0.06)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

2

(30,465)

(0.06)

Foreign exchange loss(net)

2

(184,213)

(0.38)

Inventory loss provision

2

(1,069,306)

(2.22)

(403,583)

(0.85)

(1,747,431)

(3.63)

13,181,594

27.40

Others
Total non-operating expenses
Income before income tax
Income tax expenses

2, 4(22)

Minority interest in loss and loss from pre-acquisition of the affiliates

4(19)

Net income

4(19)

Earnings Per Share (in New Taiwan dollars)

2, 4(19)

Income before income tax

(103,687)

2.59

$

14,322,985

29.77

$

17.23

Income tax expenses

(0.13)
1.63

Minority interest in loss and loss from pre-acquisition of the affiliates
$

Net income

The accompanying notes are an integral part to these financial statements.

- 147-

Global Reports LLC

(0.22)

1,245,078

18.73

MEDIATEK INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Reviewed, Not Audited)
(Amounts in Thousand of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specified Otherwise)
1. General Descriptions of Reporting Entities
Organization and Operation
MediaTek Inc. (the"Company") was incorporated in the Hsinchu Science-Based Industrial Park
("HSIP"), Taiwan on May 28, 1997. The Company operates principally as a designer, manufacturer
and supplier of integrated circuit chips and decoders of optical storage.
As of December 31, 2004, the Company and its affiliates had a totaled of 2,072 employees
Principles of Co mbination
(1) The controlling company: Mediatek inc. (the "Company")
(2) Combined entity:
Percentage of
Ownership
As of December
Company

Relations

Main Business

31,2004

MediaTek Investment Corp.

Affiliated company

General investing

100.00%

Hsu-Ta Investment Limited

Affiliated company

General investing

100.00%

Hsu-Chia Investment Limited

Affiliated company

General investing

100.00%

Hsu-Kang Investment Limited

Affiliated company

General investing

100.00%

Wiseali Technology Inc.

Affiliated company

IC design and sales

Core Tech Resources Inc.

Affiliated company

General investing

100.00%

MediaTak Capital Corp.

Affiliated company

General investing

100.00%

Gaintech Co. Limited

Affiliated company

General investing

100.00%

Alpha Imaging Technology Corporation

Affiliated company

IC design and sales

52.66%

Pixtel Media Technology Private Ltd.

Affiliated company

Research and development

99.99%

MediaTek Limited

Affiliated company

Trading and general investing

100.00%

Wireless ICs, Inc.

Affiliated company

Research and development

100.00%

CrystalMedia Technology, Inc.

Affiliated company

Research and development

100.00%

MediaTek Singapore Pte. Ltd.

Affiliated company

Research and development

100.00%

MediaTek Inc.China

Affiliated company

Research and development

100.00%

MediaTek (ShenZhen) Inc.

Affiliated company

Research and development

100.00%
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99.00%

English Translation of Financial Statement Originally Issued in Chinese

MEDIATEK INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENT-(continued)
ALi Corporation and it’s consolidated The Company has a direct
subsidiaries

IC design and sales

31.28%

or indirect control over the
management of the
personnel, financial or
business operation of ALi
Corporation and it’s
consolidated subsidiaries

(3) The following diagram presented information regarding the relationship and ownership
percentages among the Company and affiliates as of December 31, 2004:
(Diagram 1)
MediaTek Inc.

ALi Corporation

Wiseali

MediaTek

Hsu-T a

Hsu-Chia

Hsu-Kang

31.28%

Technology Inc.

Investment Corp.

Investment Ltd.

Investment Ltd.

Investment Ltd.

(Diagram 2)

99.00%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Gaintech Co.

MediaTek Capital

Core Tech

Core Tech

Core Tech

Limited

Corp.

Resources Inc.

Resources Inc.

Resources Inc.

100%

100%

34.96%

32.52%

32.52%

Wireless

MediaTek

CrystalMedia

MediaTek

Alpha Imaging

Pixtel Media

ICs, Inc.

Limited

Technology, Inc.

Singapore Pte.

Technology

Technology Private

100%

100%

100%

Ltd. 100%

Corporation

Ltd. 99.99%

52.66%

MediaTek Inc.China

MediaTek (ShenZhen) Inc.

100%

100%
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English Translation of Financial Statement Originally Issued in Chinese

MEDIATEK INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENT-(continued)
(Diagram 2)
ALi Corporation

ALi (BVI)

ULi Electronic Inc.
58.18% (Note 2)

ULi Electronics

ALinx

Inc. (BVI)

Technology

ALi (Shanghai)
Corp.

ALi (Suzhou)
Corporation

T -Square
Technology Inc.
(Cayman)

100%

ULi Electronics
(Shanghai) Inc.
100%

ALi (HK) Ltd.

Microelectronics

100%

Corporation, USA

(Note 1)

100%
100%

100%

ALi

ALinx Technology Corp.

Microelectronics Coporation

ULi Electronics
Inc. USA
100%

100%

(BVI) Corp.
100%

100%

T -square

T -Square

Electronics

Electronics

(Beijing)

(ZHUHAI)

100%

100%

T -Square
Design Inc.
100%

T -Square
Electronics
(Shanghai)
100%

Note1: ALi (HK) Ltd. has been liquidated in October 2004 and remitted the rest of its cash in amount
of NT$14 thousand to its parent company, Ali Corporation. The liquidation process has not
been completed yet as of December 31, 2004.
Note2: ALi Corporation sold 40% of its ownership in an affiliate, Uli Electronic Inc., in June 2003.
ALi Corporation’s ownership further reduced to 58.18% from 60% since the shareholders’
meeting of Uli Electronic Inc. has resolved to distribute employee bonus in shares during the
year ended December 31, 2004.
Note3: T-Square Design Inc. and ALi (Suzhou) Corporation had been liquidated in August 2004 and
in November 2004, respectively. The net income (loss) for the period from January 1, 2004 to
liquidation dates had been combined in the combined financial statements.
Note4: ALi (HK) Ltd., ALi Microelectronics Corporation, USA, ALi (BVI) Microelectronics
Corporation, ALinx Technology Corp. and ULi Electronic Inc. have been included in the
combined entities of the combined financial statements. All direct or indirect subsidiaries of
them are also included.
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English Translation of Financial Statement Originally Issued in Chinese

MEDIATEK INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENT-(continued)
2. Significant Accounting Policies
The combined financial statements are presented in conformity with the “Criteria Governing
Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Report and Consolidated Financial
Statements of Affiliated Enterprises,” regulations governing the preparation of financial statement
of public companies and generally accepted accounting principles in the R.O.C.
Significant accounting policies are summarized as follows:
Combination
(1) All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in the
combined financial statements.
(2) Combined financial statements are prepared if the Company owns more than 50% of the
investee’s voting shares, or if the Company has a direct or indirect control over the
management of the personnel, financial or business operation of another company, it is also
considered the controlling company, while the said controlled company is considered the
subordinate company. However, the financial statements of any affiliate in which the total
assets and total revenue for the current year are less than 10% of those of the Company are not
included in the combined financial statements.
Foreign Currency Transactions
The Company maintains its accounting records in New Taiwan dollars ("NT Dollars" or "NT$").
Each foreign affilate maintains its accounting records in the local currency of each foreign
subsidiary as its functional currency. Transactions in any given year involving payments
denominated in foreign currencies are converted into with the local currency at exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet
date. Foreign exchange gains or losses are included in other income or losses.
The assets and liabilities of the foreign affilate are translated into NT Dollars, with the local
currency of each foreign affilate as its functional currency, at current exchange rates in effect at the
balance sheet date. Revenue and expense accounts are translated using a weighted average
exchange rate for the relevant period. Translation gains and losses are included as a component of
shareholders’ equity. The accumulated exchange gains or losses resulting from the translation are
recorded as cumulative translation adjustments under shareholders’ equity.
Long-term investments in foreign equity investee companies accounted for under cost method are
translated into NT Dollars using the prevailing exchange rate at acquisition date or the rate at the
balance sheet date, whichever is lower. Any difference is included in cumulative translation
adjustment account.
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English Translation of Financial Statement Originally Issued in Chinese

MEDIATEK INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENT-(continued)
Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash, and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in interest
rates. Commercial papers, negotiable certificates of deposit, and bank acceptances with original
maturities of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.
Short-term Investments
Short-term investments are recorded at cost when acquired and are stated at the lower of aggregate
cost or market value at the balance sheet date. The market value of listed equity securities or
closed-end funds is determined by the average closing price during the last month of the fiscal year.
The market value for open-end funds is determined by their equity per unit at the balance sheet date.
The amount by which aggregate cost exceeds market value is reported as a loss in the current year.
In subsequent periods, recoveries of market value are recognized as a gain to the extent that the
market value does not exceed the original aggregate cost of the investment. No revenue is
recognized when stock dividends are received. Instead, the number of shares increases and the cost
per share is recalculated. Gain or loss on disposal of open-end funds is recognized using
first- in-first-out method. Interest income of credit- linked structured deposits matured within a year
is accrued based on the contracted interest rate.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The allowance for doubtful accounts are provided based on the collectibility and aging analysis of
notes receivable, accounts receivable, receivables from related parties and by examining
current trends in the credit quality of its customers as well as its internal credit policies.
Inventories
Inventories are carried at lower of cost or market value using the weighted average cost method.
Replacement cost is used to determine the market value of raw materials. Net realizable value is
used to determine the market value of work in process and finished goods. The lower of cost or
market value is applied on aggregate basis to total inventory. A slow-moving reserve is provided
based on inventory aging.
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English Translation of Financial Statement Originally Issued in Chinese

MEDIATEK INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENT-(continued)
Long-term Investments
Long-term equity investments
(1) Long-term investments accounted for under the cost method
Long-term investments in which the Company holds less than 20% of the outstanding voting
shares of the investee companies and is not able to exercise significant influence over the
investee companies are stated at cost except for investments in listed companies which are
stated at lower of cost or market value. The unrealized loss on long-term investments is
recorded as a contra equity account. If it is evidenced that the stock price is unlikely to recover
in the future, an other-than-temporary loss will be recognized in the current period, and the
cost of a long-term investment shall be reduced to the market price, which will then become
the new cost.
(2) Long-term investments accounted for under the equity method
Long-term investments in which the Company holds an interest of 20% or more and has the
ability to exercise significant influence over the investee’s operating and financial policies are
accounted for under the equity method of accounting. The difference between the cost of the
investment and the underlying equity in the investee’s net assets at the date of acquisition is
amortized over five years. Adjustment to capital reserve is required when holding percentage
changes due to unproportionate subscription to investee’s new shares issued. If the capital
reserve is insufficient, retained earnings are adjusted.
Unrealized intercompany gains and losses are eliminated under the equity method. Profit from
sales of depreciable assets between the investee and the Company is amortized and recognized
based on the assets’ economic service lives. Profit from other types of intercompany
transactions is recognized when realized.
When equity in loss of an investee exceeds carrying value accounted for by the equity method,
the Company recognizes the investme nt loss by reducing the balance of the investment to zero.
However, if the Company intends to provide further financial supports for the investee
company, or the investee company’s losses are temporary and there exists sufficient evidence
showing imminent return to profitable operations, then the Company shall continue to
recognize investment losses in proportion to the stock ownership percentage. Such credit
long-term investment balance shall first offset the advance, if any, the Company made to the
investee company; the remaining credit balance is recorded under other liabilities.
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENT-(continued)
For any investee company that was accounted for under equity method and to dissolve at a
dissolution date, the Company shall recognize investment income (loss) up to that date and
cease to apply equity method then and afterwards. If the liquidation procedure is not
completed at the financial statement closing date, an unrealized loss shall be estimated and
charged to income to the extent that the carrying value of the underlying investment in excess
of the estimated recovery value. No gain shall be recognized until the completion of
liquidation if the estimated recovery value is over the carrying value of the underlying
investment at the financial statement closing date.
Long-term Bond Investments
Long-term bond investments are recorded at cost when acquired and accounted for under cost
method.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Significant
additions, renewals and betterments incurred during the construction period are capitalized.
Maintenance and repairs are expensed in the year incurred. Interest expense from borrowing
specifically for a project during the purchase and construction period is also capitalized. When
property, plant and equipment are disposed of, their original cost and accumulated depreciation are
written off and related gains or losses are included in other income or losses. Property, plant and
equipment for lease are reclassified to leased assets on book value. Depreciation is computed on a
straight- line basis over the useful lives.
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the following useful lives:
Buildings and facilities
2 to 50 years
Machinery and equipment
3 to 5 years
Research and development equipment
3 to 5 years
Miscellaneous equipment
2 to 15 years
Leased assets
50 years
Improvements and replacements are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful lives
while ordinary repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
Intangible Assets
Software, patents and IPs are stated at cost and amortized on a straight- line basis over three years.
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Deferred Expenses
Deferred expenses, including subsidies for electric wire, bond issuance cost, long-term license fees
of computer software and so on are amortized on a straight- line method over 3 to 5 years.
Consolidated Debits (Credits)
Consolidated (credits) represent the excess of the consideration paid for acquisition over the fair
market value of identifiable net assets acquired. Consolidated debits (credits) are amortized using
the straight-line method over the estimated lives of 5 to 10 years.
Convertible Bonds
(1) The interest-premium of puttable convertible bonds, which is the difference between the
specified put price and the par value, should be amortized using the interest method and be
recognized as a liability over the period from the issuance date of the bonds to the expiry date
of the put option. If the bondholder does not exercise the put option, the interest-premium,
which has been recognized as a liability, should be amortized over the period from the expiry
date to the maturity date using the interest method.
(2) When bondholders exercise their conversion rights, the book value of convertible bonds is
credited to common stock at an amount equal to the par value of the common stock and the
excess is credited to capital reserve. No gain or loss shall be recognized on bond conversion.
(3) The cost of issuing convertible bonds is recorded as deferred charges and amortized over the
period from the issuance date of the convertible bonds to the expiry date of the put option.
Capital Expenditures vs. Revenue Expenditures
If the expenditure increases the future service potential of an assets and the lump sum purchase
price per transaction exceeds criteria, the expenditure is capitalized, while the others are expensed
as incurred.
Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized in accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 32, "Accounting for Revenue Recognition."
Warranty Cost
For the sale of some products with warranty, warranty cost shall be estimated and recorded as the
revenue from sale of the related products incurred.
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Employee Retirement Benefits
In accordance with the Labor Standards Law of the R.O.C., the Company, ALi Corporation and
ULi Electronic Inc. make monthly contributions based on certain percentage of the wages and
salaries paid to a pension fiduciary fund maintained with the Central Trust Bank of China. The fund
is administered by the Employees' Retirement Fund Committee and deposited in the committee's
name. Therefore, the fund is not included in the financial statements of the Company and its
affiliates mentioned above.
The Company, ALi Corpration and ULi Electronic Inc. have a defined benefit pension plan
covering substantially all of their employees and adopt the R.O.C. Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 18, "Accounting for Pensions." A minimum pension liability was
recorded for the excess of accumulated pension obligations over the fair value of plan assets. Net
transition assets or obligations from the plan assets are amortized using the straight- line method
over the employees’ expected average rema ining service period of 20 to 23 years.
The Company’s affiliates having a defined contribution pension plan make monthly contributions
to pension funds in accordance with the native law. The monthly amount to be contributed is
recorded as an expense as incurred.
Income Tax
In accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 22, “Accounting
for Income Taxes,” income tax is accounted for under the inter-period and intra-period income tax
allocation method. Provision for income tax includes deferred tax resulting from temporary
differences and investment tax credits. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
expected tax consequences of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their reported amounts in the financial statements using enacted tax rates and laws that will be
in effect when the difference is expected to reverse. Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets is
provided to the extent that it is more likely than not that the tax benefits will not be realized.
Income tax credit is accounted for in accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 12, "Accounting for Income Tax Credit." Income tax credits resulting
from the acquisition of equipment, research and development expenditures, and employee training
shall be recognized using the flow-through method.
Income taxes (10%) on undistributed earnings are recorded as expenses in the year when the
stockholders have resolved that the earnings shall be retained.
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Financial instruments-hedging purpose
a. Foreign exchange forward contracts
A forward foreign exchange contract obligates the Company to exchange predetermined
amounts of specified foreign currencies at specified exchange rates for another currency on a
specified date. For contracts that are designated as hedges, discounts or premiums, being the
difference between the spot exchange rate and the forward exchange rate at the inception of the
contract, are accreted or amortized to the income statement over the contract lives using the
straight- line method. Realized gains and losses from settlement or unrealized gains and losses
resulting from changes in the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date are recorded in the
income statement as foreign exchange gains or losses in the period in which they relate. The
related amounts due to or from counter parties are included in other current assets or other
current liabilities.
b. Option contracts
At maturity the Company or the financial institution, depending upon which party has the right
of the option, exercises the option to receive a said amount denominated in one currency and pay
a said amount in a different currency. The conversion rate is stated in the contract. For options,
premiums are amortized over the contract lives using the straight- line method. Gains and losses
are recorded in the income statement upon exercise.
Earnings Per Share
In accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.24, “Earnings Per
Share,” the Company presents basic earnings per share. Earnings per common share are computed
by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common share outstanding during the
year. Earnings per common share are adjusted retroactively by stock dividends resulting from
retained earnings or capital surplus. Furthermore, if the base date of the capital increase for a stock
dividend is before the issuance date of the financial statements, the earnings per common share
shall be adjusted retroactively.
Treasury Stock
The Company’s shares owned by its subsidiaries were accounting-treated as treasury stock
according to the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 30, “Accounting for
Treasury Stock.” Cash dividends distributed to the Company’s subsidiaries are deducted from
investment income and credited to capital reserves-treasury stock transaction.
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In accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 30, “Accounting
for Treasury Stock,” treasury stock transactions are accounted for under cost method. The gross
cost of shares reacquired is recorded in a contra shareholders’ equity account called treasury stock.
At the date of subsequent resale, the treasury stock account is credited for the cost of the treasury
stock. When treasury stock is sold for more than its acquisition cost, the difference is credited to
capital reserve – treasury stock transaction. If treasury stock is sold for less than its acquisition cost,
the difference is charged to the same capital reserve account to the extent the capital reserve
account to reduce to zero. If the balance of the capital reserve is insufficient, any further reduction
shall be charged to retained earnings instead.
When treasury stock is retired, the treasury stock account is credited and all capital account
balances related to the treasury shares, including capital reserve – treasury stock transactions, are
reduced on a proportionate basis. Any difference, if on credit side, is recorded in capital reserve –
treasury stock transaction; if on debit side, retained earnings are charged.
3. Reasons and Effects for Change in Accounting Principles
None.

4. Contents of Significant Accounts
(1) Cash and Cash Equivalents
In thousand NTD

As of December 31, 2004

Petty cash
Saving and checking accounts
Time deposits
Cash equivalents- CP-Repo and bonds-Repo
Total

$833
8,126,341
20,383,479
5,198,842
$33,709,495

As of December 31, 2004, the Company and its affiliates have committed to sell the CP-Repo
and bonds-Repo, in cost amount of NT$4,780,544 thousand and NT$418,298 thousand,
respectively, back to the brokers during the three months period ended March 31, 2005.
Cash and cash equivalents were not pledged as of December 31, 2004.
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(2) Short-term Investments-Net
As of December 31, 2004
In thousand NTD

Cost

Mutual fund
Stocks
Short-term notes and bonds
Credit- linked structured deposits
Subtotal
Less: Allowance for market value decline
Net

Market Value

$1,070,636
542

$1,079,716
539

651,422
317,575

644,240
318,186

2,040,175
(6,455)
$2,033,720

2,042,681
$2,042,681

For short-term investments pledged as colleterals, please refer to the Note 6. Also, please refer
to the Note 10 for risk disclosure of credit-linked structured deposits.
(3) Notes and Accounts Receivable-Net
In thousand NTD

As of December 31, 2004

Notes receivable
Accounts receivable

$3,663
4,544,217

Subtotal
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts
Allowance for sales returns and discounts

4,557,880
(199,266)
(13,049)

Net

$4,335,565

(4) Other Receivables
In thousand NTD

As of December 31, 2004

Forward exchange contracts receivable- net
Interest receivable
VAT refundable
Others
Total

$365,203
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENT-(continued)
(5) Inventories-Net
In thousand NTD

As of December 31, 2004

Raw materials
Work in process
Finished goods
Inventories in transit

$605,762
2,136,086
2,313,528
127,327

Subtotal
Less: Allowance for inventory obsolescence

5,182,703
(1,258,000)

Net

$3,924,703

a. The insurance coverage for inventories amounted to NT$865,342 thousand as of December
31, 2004. The subcontractors provided insurance policies for the inventories at their hand for
processing. Thus, the subcontractors will assume the responsibility of damage, if any.
b. None of inventories were pledged as of December 31, 2004.
(6) Long-term Investments
a.
Investee Companies

As of December 31, 2004
Types

Shares/units

Amounts

Ownership

Accounting

(NT$ ’000)

(%)

Method

Equity investments-cost method
Yuantonix, Inc.

Common share

1,500,000

$15,000

5.66%

Cost

Quanta Storage Inc.

Common share

975,000

3,668

0.48%

Cost

Browave Corporation

Common share

940,000

13,922

1.14%

Cost

Communication V.C. Corp.

Common share

8,000,000

73,049

14.41%

Cost

Legend Tech. V.C. Inc. Corp.

Common share

5,000,000

57,681

6.33%

Cost

Pixart Imaging Inc.

Common share

4,458,811

69,533

7.17%

Cost

Inprocomm Inc.

Common share

2,400,000

-

14.81%

Cost

VIA Optical Solution, Inc.

Common share

77

1

-

Cost

VIA Networking Technologies, Inc.

Common share

4

-

-

Cost

Araftek Inc.

Preferred share

1,100,000

1,574

5.85%

Cost

IPC

Preferred share

2,400,000

26,129

13.83%

Cost

Sino Photonics Venture Holding,

Common share

1,200,000

38,300

9.88%

Cost

Common share

1,000

20,502

5.66%

Cost

Ltd.
VenGlobal International Fund
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V Web Corp.

Preferred share

1,500,000

1,593

4.75%

Cost

and common share
Prosperity V.C. Corp.

Common share

5,000,000

50,000

6.10%

Cost

Dayshine Technology Incorporation

Common share

1,526,887

-

0.47%

Cost

Richwave Technology Corp.

Common share

3,800,000

42,222

19.00%

Cost

EE Solutions Inc.

Common share

650,000

9,300

2.43%

Cost

DivX Networks, Inc.

Common share

430,441

31,917

1.17%

Cost

-

Cost

Subtotal

454,391

Long-term bonds Investments
EoNex Technologies, Inc.

Convertible bonds

Total

236

67,576
$521,967

b. For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company and its affiliates recognized the
investment loss in amount of NT$29,054 thousand for the permanent diminution of value in
the investments of Inprocomm Inc. and Dayshine Technology Incorporation. The carrying
value of the investments in these two companies was fully written off as of December 31,
2004.
c. Long-term investments were not pledged as of December 31, 2004.
(7) Property, Plant, Equipment and Leased Assets
a. The insurance coverage for property, plant, equipment and leased assets amounted to
NT$2,308,928 thousand as of December 31, 2004.
b. No interest was capitalized for the year ended December 31, 2004.
c. Please refer to the Note 6 for property, plant, equipment and leased assets pledged as
collaterals.
d. Leased assets of the Company’s affiliates as of December 31, 2004 were as follows :
In thousand NTD
As of December 31, 2004
Land
Buildings and facilities

$96,144
41,954

Subtotal

138,098

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Net

(2,674)
$135,424
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(8) Short-term Loans
As of December 31, 2004
In thousand NTD

Amount
$1,030,000

Credit Loans

Interest rates
1.38%~1.50%

The unused short-term lines of credit of the Company’s affiliates including commercial paper
payable amounted to NT$1,219,012 thousand as of December 31, 2004.
There was no asset pledged for short-term loans as of December 31, 2004.
(9) Short-term Notes-Net
In thousand NTD

As of December 31, 2004

Commercial Papers
Less: Unamortized discount

$110,000
(132)

Net

$109,868

Interest rates

1.000%~1.298%

There was no asset pledged for short-term notes as of December 31, 2004.
(10) Convertible Bonds
In thousand NTD

As of December 31, 2004

Secured convertible bonds
Add: Reserve for redemption

$900,000
29,234

Total
Less: Current portion

929,234
$(929,234)

Net

-

On November 13, 2002, ALi Corporation issued 5- year secured convertible bonds. The major
terms of the issuance are as follows:
a. Total amount is NT$900,000 thousand.
b. Coupon interest rate: 0%
c. Duration: 5 years (from November 13, 2002 to November 12, 2007)
d. Security:
The bonds are secured by China Developing Industrial Bank with the security term from the
issuance date to the date when all principal and interest are fully paid. The coverage of
security includes the principal of the bonds, the interest incurred as ALi Corporation
executes the option of redemption and calculated based on the rate of return on bond
redemption, and/or the compensative interest expense incurred as the bondholders execute
the option of redemption based on the term of bonds.
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e. Redemption at the option of ALi Corporation:
ALi Corporation may redeem the bonds at any time on the period from November 13, 2003 to
on October 4, 2007, if (i) the closing price of ALi Corporation’s shares for each of the 30
consecutive trading days is at least 50% of the conversion price; or, (ii) the principal amount of
the bonds outstanding is less than 10% of the principal amount at the issuance date.
f. Redemption at the option of the holders:
The bonds are redeemable at 104.568% and 107.728 % of par at the option of the bondholders, in
whole or in part, on November 13, 2005 and November 12, 2007, respectively.
g. Conversion period/Conversion price and adjustment
(a) Conversion period: From February 13, 2003 to November 3, 2007.
(b) Conversion price and adjustment:
The conversion price was NT$58.3 per share at the issuance date. The conversion price will
be subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of certain events set forth in the indenture,
including, among other things, the declaration of dividend in common shares,
subdivisions, consolidations, and the issuance of common shares in cash. However, the
conversion price will be subject to adjustments in the event that changes occur to the capital
structure. As of December 31, 2004, the adjusted conversion price was NT$36.9 per share
and none of the secured convertible bonds have been converted for common shares.
(11) Long-term Debts
The authorities of HSIP financed the Company by providing free- interest loans for certain
R&D projects:
Original
As of December 31,
Items
balance
2004
Repayment
(NT$’000)
(NT$’000)
Third project

24,000

$10,643

The first repayment of NT$2,715 thousand
was made in August 2003. The remaining
portion is repayable in eight quarterly
installments, starting January 1, 2003, each
of NT$2,661 thousand .

Less: Current portion
Total

(10,643)
$-
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(12) Accrued Pension Liabilities
a. The components of net pension cost
In thousand NTD

For the year ended
December 31, 2004

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization
Over statement
Gain from curtailment (Note)

$35,317
5,811
(373)
(3,130)
10,078
(34,672)

Net pension cost

$13,031

Note: In accordance with the the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
18, "Accounting for Pensions," the gain of the affiliates from curtailment was
NT$34,672 thousand recorded as a contra to net pension cost. This resulted from
employee redundancy and department transfer for the year ended December 31, 2004.
The coresponding severance pay was recorded as an additional expense other than net
pension cost.
b. The funded status of the Company and its affiliates pension plans
In thousand NTD
For the year ended
December 31, 2004
Benefit obligations
Vested benefit obligation
Non-vested benefit obligation

$(3,305)
(88,326)

Accumulated benefit obligation
Effect of projected future salary increase
Projected benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

(91,631)
(104,791)
(196,422)
132,462

Funded status of pension plan
Unrecognized net transitional obligation
Unrecognized loss (gain)
Over-accrual
Accrued pension liabilities

(63,960)
4,613
44,078
(24,539)
$(39,808)

c. The pension fund is not included in the combined financial statements of the Company and
its affiliates. As of December 31, 2004, the fund amounted to NT$132,462 thousand.
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d. The employees' vested benefit of the Company and its affiliates amounted to NT$3,744
thousand for the year ended December 31, 2004.

The underlying actuarial assumptions:
For the year ended December 31, 2004
Discount rate
Rate of increase in future compensation levels
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets

3.5%
3.0%~5.0%
3.5%

e. For those affiliates adopting defined contribution pension plans and making contribution to
pension funds in accordance with the native law, pension expenses amounted to NT$20,040
thousand for the year ended December 31, 2004.
(13) Common Stock
As of January 1, 2003, the authorized and issued common shares of the Company amounted to
NT$5,700,000 thousand and NT$4,604,654 thousand, divided into 570,000,000 shares and
460,465,370 shares, respectively, each share at par value of NT$10.
Based on the resolution of sharehold ers’ general meeting on May 16, 2003, the Company
increased its authorized capital to NT$8,960,000 thousand, divided into 896,000 thousand
shares, each share at par of NT$10. Among the authorized capital, 40,000 thousand shares were
preserved for the execution of employee stock options. The shareholders further resolved to
issue 181,081,886 new shares for the capitalization of shareholders’ bonus of NT$1,611,629
thousand and employees’ bonus of NT$199,190 thousand. The capitalization had been
governmentally approved.
Following the resolution of the shareholders’ annual general meeting on June 9, 2004, the
Company issued 131,225,575 new shares, each share at par value of NT$10, for the
capitalization of shareholders’ bonus of NT$1,154,785 thousand and employees’ bonus of
NT$157,471 thousand. The capitalization had been governmentally approved.
Based on the approval from the Company’s board of directors meeting held on May 7, 2004,
the Company was allowed to purchase back its own common share. The Company bought
3,437,000 shares from market during the period from May 8 to July 7, 2004. On September 22,
2004, the Board further resolved to cancel the treasury stocks and set registered the
measurement date at September 29, 2004. The cancellation of shares has been successfully
updated to government.
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As of December 31, 2004, the authorized and issued common stock of the Company amounted
to NT$8,960,000 thousand and NT$7,693,359 thousand, divided into 896,000,000 shares and
769,335,831 shares, respectively, each share at par value of NT$10.
(14) Legal Reserve
According to the R.O.C. Company Law, 10% of the Company's net income, after deducting
previous years' losses, if any, is appropriated as legal reserve prior to any distribution to the
extent that such reserve is equal to the Company's paid- in capital. When the legal reserve is
equal to or more than 50% of paid- in capital, 50% of such reserve may be distributed to the
Company's shareholders through the issuance of additional common share.
(15) Capital Reserve
In thousand NTD

As of December 31, 2004

Additional paid- in capital
Treasury stock transaction
Donated assets

$69,689
84,975
1,260

Total

$155,924

According to the R.O.C. Company Law, capital reserve can only be used for making up
deficiencies or distributions of stock dividends. The Company shall not use capital reserve to
make up its loss unless legal reserve is insufficient for making good such losses.
For the year ended December 31, 2004, the cash dividends in amount of NT$43,777 thousand
distributed to the Company’s subsidiary were credited to the Company’s capital reserve
account in accordance with the R.O.C. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 30,
“Accounting for Treasury Stock.”
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(16) Employee Stock Option Plans
As of December 31, 2004, the Company’s affiliates have adopted certain employee stock
option plans. Information with respect to each stock option plan was as follows:
Approve date

Grant

Units

Exercisable

Restrict

Exercise

Adjust ed

by board of

Dates

Granted

Period

Period

Price

Exercise Price

2001.06.04~

2001.06.04~

2005.06.04

2003.06.03

2001.07.18~

2001.07.18~

2005.07.18

2003.07.17

2002.04.01~

2002.04.01~

2006.04.01

2004.03.31

2002.04.17~

2002.04.17~

2006.04.17

2004.04.16

2004.05.20~

2004.05.20~

2008.05.20

2006.05.19

2003.07.01~

2003.07.01~

2007.07.01

2005.06.30

2003.08.14~

2003.08.14~

2007.08.14

2005.08.13

2003.08.01~

2003.08.01~

Plan
directors
meeting /SFB
ALi Corporation

First Employee stock
option plan in 2001

2001.05.28

2001.06.04

7,000

Note1

First Employee stock
option plan in 2001

2001.05.28

2001.07.18

7,150

Note1

Second Employee stock
option plan in 2001

2001.12.04

2002.04.01

4,245

Note1

First Employee stock
option plan in 2002

2002.04.16

2002.04.17

2,605

Note1

First Employee stock
option plan in 2003

2003.12.31

2004.05.20

1,616

Note1

$35.0

$29.0

30.7

25.4

74.5

61.7

77.0

63.8

19.6

18.7

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

ULi Electronic Inc.
First Employees’ stock
options in 2003

2003.06.26

2003.07.01

8,000

Note1

Second Employee stock
option plan in 2003

2003.08.14

2003.08.14

4,000

Note1

ALinx Technology Corp.
First Employee stock
option plan in 2003

2003.07.10

2003.08.01

2,000

Note1

2007.08.01

2005.07.31

10.0

2004.05.31

2004.05.31

474,000

Note2

-

-

12

-

2004.12.20

2004.12.20

212,000

Note2

-

-

12

-

Alpha Imaging Technology Corp.
First Employee stock
option plan in 2004
Second Employee stock
option plan in 2004

Note 1：Each unit can be e xcercised for one thousand common shares.
Note 2：Each unit can be e xercised for one common share.
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For the year ended December 31, 2004, additional 1,629,000 common shares of ALi
Corporation were issued for employee stock options exercised. The accumulative common
shares of ALi Corporation issued for this purpose were 3,286,000 shares as of December 31,
2004. Also, additional 686,000 common shares of Alpha Imaging Technology Corp. were
issued for its employee stock options exercised for the year ended December 31, 2004. ULi
Electronics and ALinx Technology ha ve also granted employee stock options. But none of the
option has been executed yet as of December 31, 2004.
According to Securities and Futures Bureau, Financial Supervisory Commission, Executive
Yuan, R.O.C. (“SFB”) letters No. 0920003788 released on September 15, 2003, employee
stock option plans with a grant date or revise date after December 31, 2003 shall be accounted
for in accordance with accounting standards issued by the Accounting Research and
Development Foundation.
Alpha Imaging Technology Corp. has adopted the intrinsic value method. The compensation
expense incurred was NT$1,272 thousand. As of December 31, 2004, all employees’ stock
options have been executed and therefore, no outstanding employees stock options were
outstanding.
ALi Corporatio n has adopted the intrinsic value method. For the year ended December 31,
2004, no compensation expense shall be recognized as the exercise prices equal to the market
prices of the underlying stocks on the dates of grant. Pro forma information under fair value
method using Black-Schole Option Pricing Model is shown as follows:
For the year ended
December 31, 2004
Dividend yield
Volatility factors for expected market price
Risk free interest rate
Expected life
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As of December 31, 2004, information related to ALi Corporation’s compensatory employee
stock options granted in the year ended December 31, 2003 is shown as follows:
For the year ended December 31, 2004
Stock Options

Number (Unit)

Outstanding at beginning of year
Options granted in current year
Options exercised in current year
Options revoked in current year

1,616
-

Ending outstanding balance

1,616

Ending Options exercisable

-

Weight-average fair value of options
granted after December 31, 2003

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price (NT$)
$

19.6
18.7

NT$8.8

(17) Earnings Distribution
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2002 may be appropriated or distributed in the
following sequences:
(a) Income tax obligation;
(b) Offsetting accumulated deficits, if any;
(c) Legal reserve at 10% of net income;
(d) Reserve or reverse for special reserve in compliance with the Company Law or the
Securities and Exchange Law;
(e) Remuneration for directors and supervisors at 0.5% of the remaining of (a) through (d);
(f) 10% to 15% of the remaining balance after the appropriations from (a) to (e) shall be
distributed as employees' bonus;
(g) The remaining balance after all the above appropriations and distributions shall be
shareholders’ dividends, and may be retained or distributed proportionally.
Shareholders’ dividends and employee bonuses may be distributed in form of shares or cash,
or both. According the Company’s articles, cash dividend to be distributed shall not be more
than 70% of total earnings to be distributed. While, remuneration for directors and supervisors
is limited to cash.
In accordance with an amendment to the Company's articles of incorporation on May 16,
2003, the Company may appropriate or distribute proportionally the net income for the year
ended December 31, 2003 at following sequences:
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(a) Income tax obligation;
(b) Offsetting accumulated deficits, if any;
(c) Legal reserve at 10% of net income;
(d) Reserve or reverse for special reserve in compliance with the Company Law or the
Securities and Exchange Law;
(e) Remuneration for directors and supervisors to a maximum of 0.5% of the remaining of (a)
through (d);
(f) 10% to 15% of the remaining balance after the appropriations from (a) to (e) shall be
distributed as employees' bonus. Employees serving the Company’s subsidiaries are
inclusive;
(g) The remaining balance after all the above appropriations and distributions shall be
shareholders’ dividends, and may be retained or distributed proportionally.
Shareholders’ dividends and employee bonuses may be distributed in form of shares or cash,
or both. According to the amend ed articles, cash dividend to be distributed might not be less
than 10% of total earnings to be distributed while this guideline may be adjusted according to
the Company’s judgment on current performance. Remuneration for directors and supervisors
is limited to cash.
The Company's articles of incorporation, further amended on June 9, 2004, provide that net
income for the year ended December 31, 2004 may be appropriated or distributed
proportionally at following sequences:
(a) Income tax obligation;
(b) Offsetting accumulated deficits, if any;
(c) Legal reserve at 10% of net income;
(d) Reserve or reverse for special reserve in compliance with the Company Law or the
Securities and Exchange Law;
(e) Remuneration for directors and supervisors to a maximum of 0.5% of the remaining of (a)
through (d), while remuneration for directors and supervisors is limited to cash.
(f) The remaining balance after all the above appropriations and distributions, combining
with unappropriated earnings from prior years, shall be fully for shareholders’ dividends
and employee bonuses and may be retained or distributed proportionally. The portion of
employee bonus may be within 10% to 15% of total earnings resolved to distribute for
shareholders’ dividends and employee bonuses. Employee bonuses may be distributed in
form of shares or cash, or both. The qualification of employees entitled to the bonuses is at
the discretion of board meeting. Employees serving the Company’s subsidiaries are
inclusive.
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Shareholders’ dividends may be distributed in form of shares or cash, or both. According to
the amended articles, cash dividend to be distributed might not be less than 10% of total
dividends to be distributed while this guideline may be adjusted according to the Company’s
judgment on current performance.
According to the regulations of the Securities and Futures Bureau, Financial Supervisory
Commission, Executive Yuan, R.O.C., the Company is required to appropriate a special
reserve in the amount equal to the sum of debit elements under shareholders’ equity, such as
unrealized loss on long-term equity investment, negative cumulative translation adjustment,
at each year-end. Such special reserve is prohibited from being distributed. However, if any of
the debit elements is reversed, the special reserve in the amount equal to the reversal may be
released for earnings distribution.
(18) Treasury Stock
a. Following the resolution of board meeting held on May 7, 2004, the Company bought its
own common shares back from the open stock market. Treasury stock transactions for the
year ended December 31, 2004 were summarized as follows:
January 1, 2004
Purpose

Increase

Amounts
Share

Decrease

Amounts
Share

Amounts
Share

(NT$’000)

December 31, 2004

(NT$’000)

Amounts
Share

(NT$’000)

(NT$’000)

Protecting
shareholders’
equity

-

$-

3,437,000

$935,705

(3,437,000)

$(935,705)

-

$-

b. According to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Law, total shares bought back shall not
exceed 10% of the Company’s issued stocks. Total bought-back amounts shall not exceed the
sum of retained earnings and the realized capital reserve. The maximum shares that the
Company was allowed to buy back, calculated based on the financial statements as of
December 31, 2004, were 76,933,584 shares, and the maximum amount were
NT$34,915,916 thousand.
c. In compliance with the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Law, treasury stock shall not be
pledged, nor does it possess voting rights or the rights to receive dividends. The Company
shall cancel the treasury shares and file a change in registered paid- in capital to government
within 6 months. The Board had resolved to cancel the treasury stocks amounted to
3,437,000 shares and set the measurement date for reducing capital at September 29, 2004.
The cancellation of treasury stocks and reducing capital has been successfully filed to
government.
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d. The Company’s shares owned by its subsidiaries are also accounted for as treasury stocks.
The movement schedule of the Company’s shares owned by its subsidiary is shown as
follows:
Owner

January 1, 2004
Shares

Additions

December 31, 2004

Amount

Market
Amount

(NT$’000)

Shares

Amount
Shares

Value

(NT$’000)

(NT$’000)
(NT$’000)

MediaTek

5,122,656

$55,970

Capital Corp.

927,044

$-

6,049,700

$55,970

$1,280,177

(Note)

(Note) Stock dividend received.

(19) Earnings Per Share
The weighted average numbers of common shares outstanding were computed as follows:
(In shares)
For the year ended
Contents
December 31, 2004
Common shares outstanding, beginning

641,547,256

Buy and cancellation of treasury stock (Remark 1)
Stock dividend, August 5, 2004
Stock issuance for employees’ bonus, August 5, 2004

(2,018,628)
115,735,176
15,782,096

Subtotal
Less: : the Company’s shares owned by its subsidiary
(Remark 2)

771,045,900
(6,176,116)

Weighted average shares outstanding, ending

764,869,784

Remark1: Computed in a weighted-average basis.
Remark2: Adjusted retroactively by stock dividends and computed in a weighted-average
basis.
In thousand NTD

For the year ended
December 31, 2004

Income before tax
Income tax expense
Minority interest in loss and loss from pre-acquisition
of the affiliates

$13,181,594
(103,687)
1,245,078

Net income

$14,322,985
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Earnings Per Share (in NTD)

For the year ended
December 31, 2004

Income before tax
Income tax expense
Minority interest in loss and loss from pre-acquisition
of the affiliates

$17.23
(0.13)
1.63

Net income

$18.73

(20) Sales Revenues-Net
In thousand NTD

For the year ended
December 31, 2004

Revenues from sales of chipsets
Others

$48,975,532
1,006,901

Subtotal
Less: Sales returns and discounts

49,982,433
(1,865,964)

Net sales

$48,116,469

(21) Personnel, Deprecation and Amortization Expenses
For the year ended December 31, 2004
In thousand NTD

Recorded under
cost of goods sold

Recorded under
operating expenses

Total

Personnel Expense
Salary expense

$116,988

$2,077,358

$2,194,346

Insurance expense

7,421

97,686

105,107

Pension expense

3,577

29,494

33,071

Other

1,354

30,024

31,378

Total

$129,340

$2,234,562

$2,363,902

$28,126

$254,833

$282,959

$4,964

$929,933

$934,897

Depreciation
Amortization (Remark)

Remark: The amount includes amortization recorded under non-operating expenses and
amortization of technical rights.
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(22) Income Tax
a. Pursuant to the “Statute for the Establishment and Administration of Science-Based
Industrial Park,” the Company was granted several periods of tax holiday with respect to
income derived from approved investments. The tax holidays expired on December 31,
2004.
b. Pursuant to the “Statute for Upgrading Industries,” the Company is entitled to several
income tax exemption periods for five consecutive years on the income generated from
qualifying high technology activities. The Company has elected the tax exemption periods to
be from January 1, 2002 through December 31, 2006, from January 1, 2003 through
December 31, 2007, and from January 1, 2004 through December 31, 2008, respectively.
c. Pursuant to the “Statute for the Establishment and Administration of Science-Based
Industrial Park,” ALi Corporation was granted a period of tax holiday with respect to income
derived from approved investments. ALi Corporation has elected the tax exemption period
to be from January 1, 2000 through December 31, 2003.
d. Pursuant to the “Statute for Upgrading Industries,” ULi Electronic Inc. is entitled to an
income tax exemption period for five consecutive years on the income generated from
qualifying high technology activities. ULi Electronic Inc. has elected the tax exemption
period to be from June 13, 2004 through June 12, 2008.
e. The Company and its affiliates have filed respective business income tax return separately. There is
no allowance for combining the ir filings into one.
f. The Company’s income tax returns for the years 1998 and 1999 have been assessed and
approved by the tax authorities in 2002 and 2003, respectively. The Company should pay
additional income tax of NT$26,947 thousand and NT$41,290 thousand for the years 1998
and 1999, respectively. The Company has recorded the additional assessed tax as expenses
and also has filed a reinvestigation to t he tax authorities and filed an administrative appeal to
the Ministry of Finance (“MOF”). The administrative appeal was rejected in December 2004.
The Company will file an administrative proceeding in future.
g. The Company’s income tax returns for the year 2000 have been assessed and approved by
the tax authorities in November 2004, and the Company was imposed to pay additional tax
of NT$142,862 thousand. The Company has recorded the additional tax as an expense and
filed an administrative appeal to the tax authorities in December 2004.
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h. The income tax returns of ALi Corporation for all the years through 2002 have been assessed
and approved by the tax authorities. However, the tax authorities ruled out that the Company
should pay an additional income tax plus penalty of NT$4,291 thousand and NT$5,376
thousand for 1996 and 1997, respectively. ALi Corporation had filed a reinvestigation to tax
authorities, but the reinvestigation was rejected. ALi Corporation still had to pay an income
tax of NT$4,291 thousand and delinquent payment of NT$2,401 thousand. Then, ALi
Corporation further filed an administrative appeal to MOF in March 2003 by making half of
the assessed tax payment, which was recorded as an income tax expense currently.
i. The income tax returns of MediaTek Investment Corp., MediaTek Capital Corp., Hsu-Ta
Investment Limited, Hsu-Chia Investment Limited, Hsu-Kang Investment Limited, Alpha
Imaging Technology Inc. and ULi Electronics for all the years through 2002 have been
assessed and approved by the tax authorities. The tax authorities have not assessed and
approved the income tax return of ALinx Technology Corp. for the year 2002.
j. According to the R.O.C. Income Tax Law, net operating loss can be carried forward for 5
years. As of December 31, 2004, the unutilized accumulated loss carry forwards of domestic
affiliates were as follows:
Total credit amount
Unused amount
Year incurred
(NT$’000)
(NT$’000)
Year expired
2000
2003
2004 (Estimated)

$429,193
73,822
482,269

$358,797
69,381
482,269

$985,284

$910,447

2005
2008
2009

The tax effects of such amounts were included in deferred income tax assets.
k. As of December 31, 2004, Wireless ICs, Inc. (USA) had a net operating lo ss of
approximately USD1,300 thousand and USD1,200 thousand to be carried over to offset
future income for Federal and California income tax purposes and to expire in the years 2023
and 2012, respectively.
As of December 31, 2004, CrystalMedia Technology, Inc. (USA) had a net operating loss of
approximately USD1,390 thousand and USD1,230 thousand to be carried over to offset
future income for Federal and California income tax purposes and to expire in the years 2023
and 2013, respectively.
The net operating loss carry forwards mentioned above ha ve been included in deferred
income tax assets.
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l. The Company and its affiliates’ available investment tax credits as of December 31, 2004
were as follows:
Total credit amount Unused amount
Year
Nature of Expenditures
Year incurred
(NT$’000)
(NT$’000)
expired
2001
R&D
$115,105
$70,771
2005
2002
285,901
214,603
2006
R&D
2002
938
938
2006
Human development
2002
Investment in important
28,000
28,000
2006
technology-based
enterprises
2003
R&D
1,179,653
554,037
2007
2003
Human development
874
874
2007
2004(Estimate) R&D
1,496,846
1,487,448
2008
2004(Estimate) Human development
1,712
1,712
2008
Total
$3,109,029
$2,358,383
The investment tax credits listed above have been included in deferred income tax assets.
m.
(a) Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) (In thousand NTD)

As of December 31, 2004

Total deferred income tax liabilities

$(30,742)

Total deferred income tax assets

$3,318,820

Valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets

$2,333,236

(b) Temporary differences that generated from deferred income
tax ( liabilities) assets (In thousand NTD)
The Company and domestic subsidiary affiliates

Amount

Deductible temporary difference-Recognition of unrealized
accrued expenses

$443,730

$5,354

Deductible temporary difference-Recognition of unrealized
allowance for inventory obsolescence
$1,258,000

$198,915

Tax effect

Deductible temporary difference-Unrealized allowance for
doubtful accounts

$161,559

$1,994

Deductible temporary difference-Unrealized
license fee and computer software cost

$566,387

$116,379
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Deductible temporary difference-Unrealized foreign exchange
loss
$37,680
Taxable temporary difference-Unrealized foreign exchange gain
and others

$(100,433)

$(6,456)

Deductible temporary difference-Unrealized long-term
investment loss

$636,863

$159,216

Deductible temporary difference-Unrealized sales returns

$337,961

$84,490

$13,049

$3,263

Taxable temporary difference-cumulative translation adjustments

$(38,985)

$(9,746)

Taxable temporary difference-Unrealized pension expense

$(34,256)

$(8,564)

Deductible temporary difference-product warranty reserves

$3,829

Deductible temporary difference-Allowance for sales returns and
discounts

$957

Deductible temporary difference-others

$395,703

$98,926

Loss carry forwards

$910,447

$227,611

Investment tax credits

$2,358,383

Foreign affiliates
R&D Investment tax credits

$17,059

Loss carry forwards

$35,182

Deductible temporary difference-others
Taxable temporary difference-others
(c)

In thousand NTD

Net deferred income tax assets-current
Deferred income tax liabilities-current
Net deferred income tax assets and liabilities-current
(d)

$1,671
$(5,976)

Deferred income tax assets-current
Valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets-current

In thousand NTD
Deferred income tax assets-noncurrent
Valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets- noncurrent
Net deferred income tax assets- noncurrent
Deferred income tax liabilities-noncurrent
Net deferred income tax assets and liabilities- noncurrent
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(e) Income tax payable and income tax expense are reconciled as follows:
For the year ended
In thousand NTD
December 31, 2004
Income tax payable
10% tax on undistributed earnings
Investment tax credits
Deferred income tax effects
Investment tax credits
Valuation allowance
Loss carry forwards
Unrealized technical rights and computer software cost
Unrealized allowance for inventory obsolescence
Loss on long-term investment
Estimate sales discounts and allowances
Cumulative translation adjustments
Pension expense
Others
Accruals for additional prior year income tax
Prior year income tax adjustment
Others

$187,997
666,480
(440,995)

Income tax expense

$103,687

(f) Integrated income tax information

(852,173)
792,723
(116,339)
(40,413)
(55,263)
(113,521)
(84,490)
(5,436)
8,564
5,181
142,862
(14,671)
23,181

As of December 31, 2004

Balance of the imputation credit account (ICA)
(In thousand NTD)
Expected creditable ratio

$547,753
2.96%(Note)

Note: The ratio was computed based on the amount of actual available shareholders’ tax
credits plus estimated income tax payable as of December 31, 2004.
(g) Information related to undistributed retained earnings
(In thousand NTD)
Prior to 1998
After 1998 (inclusive)
Total

$31,363,021
$31,363,021
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5. Related Party Transactions
(1) Related Parties and Relations
Related parties
United Microelectronics Corp. (“UMC”)
King Yuan Electronics Co., Ltd.
(“KING YUAN”)
UMC Japan (“UMCJ”)
Jmicron Technology Corp. (“Jmicron”)
Richwave Technology Corp.
(“Richwave ”)

Relations
The supervisor of the Company
The chairmen of the Company and KING YUAN
are close relatives.
Affiliated company of UMC
Same person represents the chairman of both
companies’ boards.
ALi Corp. is legal representative of Richwave
Technology Corp.

(2) Major Transactions with Related Parties
a. Sales
In thousand NTD

For the year ended December 31, 2004
Amount

Richwave

$33,736

% of net sales
0.07

The prices were made according to the product specification and the price terms for the
related parties were similar to those for regular customers.
b. Purchases
In thousand NTD

For the year ended December 31, 2004
Amount

% of total purchase

UMC
UMCJ
Others

$7,690,155
799,601
242

42.05
4.37
-

Total

$8,489,998

46.42

Prices for purchases from related parties are not comparable because the manufacturing process
and product specification are significantly different. Payment terms to UMC and UMCJ were
end-of-month 45 to 60 days, which were similar those to other suppliers.
c. Alpha Imaging Technology Inc. pledged a time deposit of NT$30,000 thousand to UMC as a
production deposit for the year ended December 31, 2004.
d. The Company and its affiliates totally paid NT$921,632 thousand to KING YUAN for the
year ended December 31, 2004 for its various IC testing and experimental services.
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e. Service revenue
The revenue ALi Corporation earned from related part was recorded as a credit to operating
expense. The nature and amount of service revenue were listed as following to:
For the year ended
Nature
December 31, 2004
Richwave

R&D and Administrative service

$3,262

f. ULi Electronics Inc. paid technology license fee to Jmicron in amount of NT$6,196
thousand for the year ended December 31, 2004.
g. ALi Corporation purchased certain technical rights from Jmicron in amount of NT$6,350
thousand for the year ended December 31, 2004.
h. Richwave paid rent to ALi Corporation amounted to NT$813 thousand for the year ended
December 31, 2004.
i. ALi Corporation paid on behalf of Richwave for its operating expenses in amount of
NT$8,755 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2004.
j. ALi Corporation has sold R&D equipment, machinery equipment and miscellaneous
supplies to Richwave at a price of NT$10,491 thousand for the year ended December 31,
2004.
(3) Receivables and payables resulting from the above transactions:
(a) Receivables from related parties
In thousand NTD
As of December 31,2004
Amount

%

Richwave

$9,752

0.22

(b) Payables to related parties
In thousand NTD

As of December 31,2004

UMC
UMCJ
KING YUAN
Jmicron
Total
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6. Assets Pledged As Collateral
As of December 31, 2004
In thousand NTD
Net book value Secured financial institutions Contents (Purpose)
Restricted deposits-current
$42,000
Farmers Bank of China
Long-term debt
Restricted deposits-current
39,770
Pixtel
Contract execution
deposits
Restricted deposits-current
102,000
UMC
Production deposit
Restricted deposits-current
793
International Commercial
Pledged forward
Bank of China
exchange contract
Restricted deposits-current
7,027
ChiaoTong Bank
Tariff execut ion
deposits
Restricted deposits-current
80
Chinese Petroleum Corp.
Membership of auto
club
Short-term investment
72,014
UMC
Production deposit
(bond fund) (Note)
Land, buildings and facilities
1,460,418
Chinese Development
Secured convertible
(including leased assets)
Industrial Bank
bonds
Total
$1,724,102
Note: The pledged item from ULi Electronics Inc. has been substituted by time deposits. Though, it
was presented since the procedures for dismissing the collateral has not been completed yet
as of December 31, 2004.

7. Commitments and Contingencies
(1) Law suits
a. The Company acquired its manufacturing technology of CD-ROM control chips mainly
from UMC. UMC, however, was involved in certain legal action with OAK, an U.S.
company, for patents of such technology. In October 1997, OAK filed a complaint with the
United States Northern District Court of California alleged that UMC breached a prior
Settlement Agreement and later sought against the Company and UMC for the damages,
injunctive and other relief. In April 1998, OAK filed a complaint with the International
Trade Commission (“ITC ”) against the Company and UMC for the infringement of the
patents stated above and violation of Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930. In May 2001, the
Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit (“CAFC”) affirmed that there was no violation of
Section 337. OAK did not appeal to Supreme Court of the United States regarding the
CAFC’s decision within the legal period. In August 2003, Zoran Corporation acquired OAK
and succeeded to OAK’s position in this litigation. As a result, the only dispute for certain
damages between the Company and Zoran that remains pending is that in Northern District
Court of California. It is probable that the Company would suffer no more significant
litigation loss from the underlying dispute. Accordingly, the Company has made a reversal
of related loyalty fee accrual amounted to NT$1,557,540 thousand, recorded as
non-operating income for the year ended December 31, 2003. While, the remaining balance
of related royalty fee accrual amounted to NT$419,056 thousand was still recorded as
accrued expenses as of December 31, 2004.
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b. On March 10, 2004, Zoran and OAK filed a complaint with the U.S. ITC (“the ITC
Complaint”) naming MediaTek as a proposed respondent. By the ITC Complaint, Zoran
and OAK alleged that the Company has engaged in unfair trade practices in violation of
Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930. They alleged that certain of the Company’s chipsets
infringed their own patents (U.S. Patent No.6466736, No.6584527 and No.6546440).
Around March 18, 2004, Zoran and OAK also filed a complaint against the Company with
the U.S. District Court for the Central District of California based on the same patents and
the same allegations of infringement as were the subject of the ITC Complaint. The District
Court action ha s been transferred to the District Court for the Northern District of
California. The Company has engaged U.S. attorneys to defend both cases vigorously.
c. On July 23, 2004, the Company filed a complaint against Zoran and OAK with the U.S.
ITC and the District Court for the District of Delaware alleging patent infringement. The
Company alleged that optical disc drive controller products of Zoran and OAK infringe the
Company’s patents (U.S Patent No.6229773 and No.5970031). The Company further
requested the ITC to issue an order to bar any importation of Zoran and OAK’s products
infringing MediaTek’s U.S Patents. The Company also requested that the Court stops
Zoran and OAK to further infringe the Company’s patents and that Zoran and OAK shall
compensate the Company’s losses by the amount tripling of the losses. The Company
further amended the complaint to add Sunext Technology Co., Ltd. (“Sunex”) as a
co-defendant. In addition to the patents allegedly infringed in the original complaint, the
Company further alleged that optical disc drive products of Zoran, OAK, and Sunext
infringe another MediaTek’s patent (U.S Patent No 6170043) too. The ITC accepted the
company’s Amendment to the complaint on October 7, 2004.
d. The Company is the defendant in a lawsuit brought by motion picture studios, including
Metro-Goldwyn-Mayer Studios Inc., Paramount Pictures Corporation, Sony Pictures
Entertainment Inc., Twentieth Century Fox Film Corporation, Universal City Studios
LLLP, The Walt Disney Company and Warner Bros. Entertainment Inc. The lawsuit was
filed on or about August 23, 2004, with the Los Angeles Superior Court of the State of
California. Plaintiffs have alleged that the Company breached its agreement (the license
agreement between MediaTek and the DVD Copy Control Association, the licensor of a
DVD encryption system called the “Content Scramble System,” or “CSS”) by selling
descrambler chips to entities that are not licensed by CSS. The Company ha s engaged U.S.
attorneys to defend this District Court case vigorously.
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MEDIATEK INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENT-(continued)
e. In June 2002, the Company filed a complaint with the Northern District of California
against VIA Technologies, Inc., (“VIA”) and AOpen, Inc. (“AOpen”), alleging that VIA
and AOpen are infringing two patents related to optical disc drivers. In September 2003, the
District Court granted the Company’s motion for preliminary injunction against VIA and
AOpen. The Company has also named the U.S. subsidiaries of VIA and Aopen, as well as
VIA Optical Solution, Inc. (“ VIA Optical ”), as co-defendants.
f. In June 2003,VIA filed a complaint against the Company with the Northern District of
California, alleging that the Company infringes its own patent (U.S. Patent No. 6459665).
g. In June and July 2003, VIA filed a complaint against the Company the Hsinchu District
Court of Taiwan, alleging that the Company infringed its own patent (Taiwan Patent No.
163889). VIA’s compliant alleged that the Company’s DVD-ROM and COMBI chipsets
infringed the patent.
h. The Company, VIA and its subsidiary-VIA Optical entered into a settlement agreement that
resolved all litigations about the patents in the U.S. and Taiwan on August 3, 2004.
According to the settlement agreement, all parties shall dismiss all their complaints in all
jurisdictions. Under this settlement agreement, the Company has licensed VIA Optical
certain copyrights and trade secrets and VIA Optical shall pay the Company a fee of US$25
million for usage of the rights upon the agreement made effected and shall annually pay
US$5 million during the following 5 years.
i. The Company and its subsidiary-MediaTek (SkenZhen) Inc. filed a complaint with the
ShenZhen Intermediate People’s Court against Zoran and Zoran’s Shenzhen representative
office, alleging that they have infringed the Company’s patent (PRC Patent No.
97120448.9). The Company is seeking court orders to prohibit Zoran from dealing in any
IC products that infringe the subject patent, monetary damages and the cessation of sale,
importation and exportation of Zoran’s infringing products in/from China.
j. During August 2003, Sunplus Technology Co., Ltd. has filed a complaint against five
employees, including the general manager, of the Company’s subsidiary, Alpha Imaging
Technology Corp., for infringing rights. The management has been unable to assess the
indirect operating and financial influences on the Company and the subsidiary since the
Company has not been informed of all the facts and the dollar amounts that Sunplus has
asked for compensation and no further actions were taken from the court. While, the
subsidiary has engaged an attorney to watch and evaluate the case.
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MEDIATEK INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENT-(continued)
(2) Commitments
a. In 2002, ESS Technology, Inc. (“ESS”) filed a complaint with the Northern District of
California, against the Company, alleging that the Company infringed ESS copyrights in
firmware used with ESS chipsets in DVD players. In June 2003, ESS and the Company
entered into a settlement agreement resolving all of the issues in dispute between two
parties. Under this settlement agreement, ESS has licensed the Company certain copyrights
and the Company should pay ESS a fee of US$45 million for usage of the rights in the past.
The Company recorded such amount as R&D expenses. Also, the settlement agreement
provides that the Company should pay quarterly royalties based on the sales volume of the
DVD player chipsets within 2 years, starting from third quarter of the year 2003. The
maximum royalties are no more than US$45 million.
b. The Company has entered into an assets purchasing agreement with Pixtel
Communications, Inc. (“Pixtel”) in May 2004. The Company then acquired Pixtel’s
wireless communication related software technology and patents in amount of US$8,305
thousand. As of December 31, 2004, the Company has paid US$7,059 thousand, equivalent
to NT$236,125 thousand, for this agreement and recorded it as R&D expenses. Also, the
Company has deposited the remaining balance of US$1,246 thousand, equivalent to
NT$39,770 thousand, in an escrow account and recorded it as restricted deposits-current.
c. The Company has entered into several contracts in total of NT$3,241,269 thousand (sale
tax excluded) for constructing its headquarter tower. As of December 31, 2004, the
Company has paid out NT$941,243 thousand. The other amount of NT$2,300,026
thousand remained an irrevocable commitment.
d. As of December 31, 2004, totaling US$31,377 thousand of the Company’s other significant
contracts remained unpaid.
e. For using patents license of others, ALi Corporation shall pay royalty fees on the basis of
the sales quantity of the Product, or at a certain percentage of net sales as defined in patent
license agreements.
f. The Chinatrust Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. issued a guarantee letter to the Ministry of
Economic Affairs for certain technology projects of ALi Corporation in amount of
NT$25,988 thousand as of December 31, 2004.
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MEDIATEK INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENT-(continued)
g. The Company has entered certain lease agreements for land with the Administrative
Bureau of HSIP for its need of operation. Related rent incurred in the future would be as
follows:
Lease Period

Amount

2005.01.01~2005.12.31
2006.01.01~2006.12.31
2007.01.01~2007.12.31
2008.01.01-2008.12.31
2009.01.01~2023.12.31

$25,474
25,474
25,474
24,406
343,084

Total

$443,912

8. Significant Casualty Loss
None

9. Significant Subsequent Events
None

10. Others
(1) Financial Instruments
a. Derivative financial instruments
(i) Contract amount or nominal amount and credit risk
Ⅰ.As of December 31, 2004
Financial
Instruments
Forward exchange
-Hedging

Contract
Type

Maturity

amount

Exercise rate

(US$’000)
Sell USD

January 2005~

$130,500

31.885~33.413

Credit
risk
-

February 2005

Ⅱ. Credit risk relates to the extent to which failures by counter parties to discharge their
obligations could reduce the amount of future cash flows from financial assets on
hand as of the balance sheet date. The Company and its affiliates minimize exposure
to credit risks by only dealing with reputable banks.
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MEDIATEK INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENT-(continued)
(ii) Price risk
The Company and its affiliates considers that the price risk related to the hedge transactions is
minimal as gains or losses from contracts for hedging purposes are likely to be offset by gains
or losses from the underlying assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.
(iii) Liquidity risk
The exchange rate of the forward exchange contracts are fixed, the Company and its affiliates
anticipate that they have enough USD assets, no significant additional cash requirement is
anticipated, and therefore, cash flow risk is minimal.
(iv) Types of derivative financial instruments, purpose of holding the derivative financial
instruments and the strategy for achieving the hedging purpose:
The Company and its affiliates’ derivative financial instruments are not held for trading
purpose and held for decreasing cost of hedging. The purpose of holding forward exchange
contracts is to hedge exchange rate fluctuation risk resulting from assets, liabilities or
commitments denominated in foreign currency. The Company and its affiliates’ hedging
strategy are to avoid majority of market price risk. Derivative financial instruments selected
for hedging are highly anti-co-related with the fluctuation of the fair value of derivatives
hedged. Derivatives are evaluated periodically.
(v) Presentation of derivative financial instruments
Forward exchange contracts receivable and payable are reported under current assets or
liability on a net basis. As of December 31, 2004, details were as follows:
In thousand NTD
As of December 31,2004
Forward contract receivable
Forward contract payable
Discount

$4,237,649
(4,165,107)
14,222

Forward exchange contracts receivable - net
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MEDIATEK INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENT-(continued)
The forward exchange contracts receivable-net was recorded under the caption of other
receivables.
Foreign exchange gain incurred from the derivatives for the year ended December 31, 2004
amounted to NT$152,014 thousand.
(b) Disclosures of risks fo r investments in credit- linked notes and structured deposits
(i) Contract amount (In thousand USD)
Underlying investments

As of December 31, 2004

NanYa Plastics Credit- linked deposit

1,000

Mega Fin Hold Credit- linked deposit

2,450

Quanta Computer Credit- linked deposit

1,500

Delta Electronic Inc. Credit- linked deposit

5,000

(ii) Credit risk
Default by the issuers of underlying securities may reduce the value of credit- linked
deposits to zero. The Company and its affiliates minimize the credit risk by selecting
counter parties who are reputable and in good financial standing.
(iii) Liquidity risk
The Company and its affiliates are unable to have the credit-linked investments redeemed
or called before maturity, which being the liquidity risk. In minimizing such risk, the
Company and its affiliates only invests in securities whose maturities are within a year.
(iv) Market risk
There is no market risk for the underlying investment except for the fluctuations in the
exchange rate of US Dollar to NT Dollar.
(v) Cash flow risk
No cash flow risk is involved as the entire amounts of credit- liked investments have been
fully paid.
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MEDIATEK INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENT-(continued)
C. Fair value of financial instruments
In thousand NTD

As of December 31,2004
Carrying value

Fair value

$33,901,165
2,033,720
4,345,317
278,439

$33,901,165
2,042,681
4,345,317
278,439

3,668

30,657

450,723

-

Non-derivative
Assets
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted deposits
Short-term investments
Receivables (including due from related parties)
Other receivables
(excluding forward exchange contracts receivable-net)
Long-term investments
-Those with market value
-Those without market value
Long-term bonds investments
-Those without market value
Refundable deposits
Liabilities

67,576
18,899

18,899

Short- term loans
Short-term notes (net)

1,030,000
109,868

1,030,000
109,868

Payables (including due to related parties)
Income tax payable
Accrued expenses

3,410,767
587,933
1,601,524

3,410,767
587,933
1,601,524

144,488
929,234

144,488
909,180

10,643

10,643

132

132

86,764

74,829

Payables to equipment suppliers
Convertible bonds (including current portion)
Long-term debts (including current portion)
Guarantee deposit received (recorded as other liabilities)
Derivatives
Forward exchange contracts- hedging
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MEDIATEK INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENT-(continued)
The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of derivative financial instruments
are as follows:
(i) The fair value of the Company and its affiliates’ short-term financial instruments is based
on the carrying value of those instruments at the reporting date due to the short maturity of
those instruments. The method is applied to cash and cash equivalents, receivables, other
receivables, short- term loans, short-term notes, payable s, payables to equipment suppliers,
accrued expenses and income tax payable.
(ii) The fair value of the Company and its affiliates’ short-term investments and long-term
investments is based on market prices at the reporting date if market prices are available.
The fair value of the Company and its affiliates’ long-term investments is based on
relevant financial or any other information if market prices are not available.
(iii) The fair value of the Company and its affiliates’ refundable deposits and restricted deposits
is based on the book value at the reporting date because the estimated future cash receipts
are similar to the book value.
(iv) The fair value of long-term debts is estimated using the discounted cash flow method
based on the Company and its affiliates’ borrowing rates for similar types of borrowings.
(v) The fair value of the Company and its affiliates’ convertible bonds is based on the market
prices at the reporting date.
(vi) The fair value of derivative financial instruments (normally including unrealized gains or
losses from outstanding forward exchange contracts) is the amount that the Company and
affiliates are entitled to receive or obligated to pay, assuming the Company and affiliates
terminated contracts at reporting date.
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MEDIATEK INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENT-(continued)
(2) Elimination entries between the Company and its affiliates
a. Elimination of the long-term investment accounts and the related equity balances:
In thousand NTD
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2004
Entries

Debit
13,770,607
913,742
75,770
457,633

Common stock
Additional paid- in capital
Legal reserve
Consolidated debits
Retained earnings
Cumulative translation adjustments
Minority interest in loss
Net loss from pre-acquisition
Long-term equity investments
Minority interest
Net loss from equity investments

Credit

262,335
685,410
911,248
465,539
12,016,735
799,634
76,851

b. Elimination intercompany transactions-sale revenue, cost of goods sold and so on:
In thousand NTD
As of and for the year ended December 2004
Entries

Debit

Minority interest income
Sales revenue
Rent revenue
Other revenue
Unrealized gross profits
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Cost of goods sold
Intangibles assets
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MEDIATEK INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENT-(continued)
c. Elimination of reciprocal balance:
Payables to related parties
Guarantee deposit received
Deferred revenue
Sales revenue received in advance
Receivables from related parties
Other receivables
Refundable deposits
Intangibles assets

112,029
3,478
172,596
105,711
110,933
1,096
3,478
278,307

d. Elimination of other reciprocal balance:
Gain on disposal of long-term investment
Dividends income
Various amortization
Long-term equity investment loss
Deferred debits
Consolidated debits

159,131
43,777
26,525

e. Elimination of inventories and property, plant and equipment :
Land
272,904
Buildings and facilities
127,907
Other current assets
300
Leased assets
Accumulated depreciation -buildings
and facilities
Miscellaneous equipment
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43,777
159,131
26,525

392,034
8,777
300

3. Enforcement of the Internal Control Systems
3.1 Statement of Internal Control:
Mediatek Inc.
Statement of Internal Control
Date: April 7, 2005
Based on the results of a self-examination, we hereby announce the following statement concerning the
internal control system at this company for the period between 1/1/2004 and 12/31/2004:

I.

This company is well aware that the establishment, implementation, and maintenance of an internal
control system are the responsibility of the company’s management and the Board of Directors, and
the company has already established such a system. The objective of this system is to provide
reasonable assurance that the goals of business efficiency and effectiveness (including profitability,
performance, and protection of asset security), financial report reliability, and compliance with
relevant laws will be achieved.

II.

It is known that the internal control system is subject to inherent limitations. No matter how well
designed, an internal control system can provide only reasonable assurance that the three
above-mentioned goals will be achieved. Moreover, changes in circumstances and the environments
may, as well, cause consequent changes in the effectiveness of the internal control system. But
because this company’s internal control system has a built-in self-oversight function, the company
will make immediate modifications as soon as any shortcomings are identified.

III.

Exactly in accordance with the internal control effectiveness judgment article in the “Processing
Criteria for the Establishment of Internal Control System by Publicly Traded Companies” (hereafter
referred to as “Processing Criteria”) issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission. Ministry of
Finance, this company has judged whether the design and implementation of its internal control
system are effective. The internal control judgment approach adopted in the “Processing Criteria”
seeks, on the basis of the management control process, to divide internal controls into the following
five constituent elements: (1) the control environment; (2) risk assessment; (3) control tasks; (4)
information and communication; and (5) oversight. Each constituent element also includes several
other items. Please refer to the requirements of the “Processing Criteria” for more concerning the
above-mentioned elements.

IV.

The company has already adopted the above internal control judgment approach, and has examined
the effectiveness of the design and implementation of its internal control system.

V.

Based on the results of the assessment mentioned in the previous item, this Company believes that
during the stated period the design and implementation of the company’s internal control system
(including the oversight and management of its subsidiaries), including awareness of the internal
control of business performance and efficiency as well as the extent of target accomplishment, the
reliability of financial reports, and compliance with relevant laws, were indeed effective, and were
able to provide reasonable assurance that the above-mentioned goals could be achieved.

VI.

This statement shall be publicly issued and shall form a major part of this company’s annual report
and prospectus. If the above publicly disclosed contents should contain any falsehoods, deceptions or
other unlawful aspects, this shall entail legal responsibility as stated in Articles 20, 32, 171 and 174
of the Securities Exchange Law.

VII.

This statement has been passed by the Board of Directors on April 7, 2005. Among the four
directors attending the meeting, none expressed a dissenting point of view, and all agreed with the
content of the statement.

Mediatek Inc.
Chairman: Ming-Kai Tsai
(Signed with seal)
General manager: Jyh-Jer Cho
(Signed with seal)
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3.2 Independent Auditors’ Assessment Report to be Disclosed by the Auditor Commissioned
Exclusively to Examine the Internal Control System: Nil.
4. Any Dissenting Opinions from a Director or a Supervisor against any Major Resolutions
Passed by the Board of Directors in writing: Nil.

5. Private Placement Securities: Nil.

6. Holdings or Sale of Company Shares by Subsidiaries:
Expressed in Thousand NT Dollars; % in shareholding
Name of
Paid-in
subsidiary
capital

MediaTek
Capital Co.

Endorsement Amount
No. of shares
No. of shares No. of
Date of
Mediatek’s
& guarantee loaned by
and amounts of
and amounts shares and Investment
Capital
by Mediatek Mediatek
holding as of the
shareholding acquirement
amounts
acquired
Pledging
return
sources
or sale
ratio
to its
for the
Annual Report
sold
(*)
subsidiary subsidiary
publication date
927,044

520,000

Nil

100.00%

6,049,700

2004.09.20 shares: NT$0

-

(*)

-

shares;

-

-

-

NT$55,970,000

*: As stock dividend obtained.

7. Major decisions resolved in the shareholders’ meeting and the board of directors:
Shareholders’ meeting:
The Mediatek’s shareholders’ meeting was held in the Hsinchu Science-based
Industrial Park in the auditorium of the recreational center on June 9, 2004. During
the event, it resolved business report 2003, earnings allocation 2003, earnings
converted for capital augment 2003 as well as an amendment of Mediatek’s Articles
of Incorporation.
The decisions resolved in 2004 in the regular meeting of shareholders have been
satisfactorily enforced free of discrepancy from the decisions originally resolved.
Board of directors：
During 2004 until the Annual Report publication date, 2005, there were a total of
twenty-one board of directors meeting held as exacted below:
Convening the regular meeting of shareholders as approved at the convening of the
meeting 2004, with approval of the business report and financial statements 2003,
approval of 2003 earning allocation, approval of 2003 earnings converted into capital
augment, approval of the 2004 financial forecast, approval of amendment of the
Articles of Incorporation regarding earning allocation; approval of the plan to
repurchase the Mediatek’s common stocks from Taiwan Securities Central Depository
Co., Ltd., approval of purchase of IP from Pixtel, approval of purchasing Yang Chih
Technology Co., Ltd. shareholding, setting 2003 earning allocation base date for 2003
earning allocation, approval of financial statements, first half, 2004; approval of
releasing the Chairman from the competitive ban; approval of the annulment of the
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repurchase of treasury stocks, approval of the construction of the Headquarters
building, approval of purchase of Chih Yang Electronics shareholding, approval of
purchase of technology and intellectual property rights, approval of acquirement of
the Sarnoff patent complex, approval of convening the regular meeting of
shareholders 2005, approval of Hsi-yuan Hsu to be the company’s Deputy General
Manager, approval of the 2004 business report and financial statements; approval of
quota of warrant, range of remuneration to directors and supervisors and principles of
bonus to shareholders; approval of earning allocation 2004, approval of 2004
earnings converted into capital augment, approval of supplementary election of
directors and releasing the newly elected directors from the competition ban,
approval of change in the location to convene the meeting, approval of the
establishment of the remuneration to managerial officers and approval of Mediatek of
business budget.

8. Penalty Received by the Company and its Internal Staff in Accordance with the Laws,
Penalty Handed Down by the Company to Its Internal Staff in Violation of Internal
Control System Regulations, Major Shortcomings and Improvements: Nil.

9. Recent Events Having a Significant Impact on the Shareholder’s Equity or Stock Price as
Stipulated in Paragraph 2, Item 2, Articles 36 in the Securities & Exchange Law: Nil.

10.Other Required Supplemental Items: Nil.
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